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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTSThis Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements about us and our industry that involve substantial risks and
uncertainties. All statements other than statements of historical facts contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including statements regarding our strategy, future
financial condition, future operations, projected costs, prospects, plans, objectives of management, and expected market growth, are forward-looking statements. In some
cases, you can identify forward-looking statements because they contain words such as a€cemay,a€ a€cewill,a€ a€ceshall,a€ a€ceshould,a€ a€ceexpects,a€ a€ceplans,a€
a€ceanticipates,a€ a€mecould,a€ a€ceintends,a€ a€cetarget,a€ a€mprojects,a€ a€cecontemplates,a€ a€cebelieves,a€ a€oeestimates,a€ a€cepredicts,a€ a€cepotential,a€
a€megoal,a€ d€ceobjective,a€ a€ceseeks,a€ or a€cecontinue,a€ or the negative of these words or other similar terms or expressions that concern our expectations, strategy,
plans, or intentions. Forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K include, but are not limited to, statements about:a€¢our strategies to increase
awareness of Reddit, including through search engine optimization, partnerships, and investment in full-funnel marketing;a€¢our strategies to increase user growth and
engagement;a€¢our expectations regarding the growth and availability of valuable and appealing user-generated content on our platform;a€¢our ability to develop new
products and services and bring them to market in a timely manner and make enhancements to our platform;a€¢our ability to implement artificial intelligence and machine
learning to increase user growth and engagement and support advertising growth;a€¢user and advertiser growth strategies in geographies outside of the United States and in
languages besides English;a€¢strategies to increase revenue from new and existing advertisers, including by (i) evolving our service model to more types of advertisers and
building deeper advertiser relationships, (ii) providing product opportunities and offerings that deliver value to our advertisers, and (iii) developing measurements solutions to
increase the effectiveness of our advertisersa€™ return on investment;a€¢strategies to expand revenue sources from non-advertising sources, including content licensing and
our user economy;a€¢strategies to empower Redditors, including monetization tools for creators and communities;a€¢our content moderation model relative to complex
content ranking algorithms;a€¢our ability to attract and retain Redditors and their level of engagement;a€¢the impact of the macroeconomic environment, including as a
result of the ongoing conflicts between Russia and Ukraine and in the Middle East, on our business and other uncertainties in the global economy generally;a€¢our ability to
maintain and enhance our brand and reputation;a€¢our history of losses and ability to maintain profitability in the foreseeable future;a€¢our ability to maintain the security
and availability of our platform and protect against data breaches and other security incidents;a€¢our ability to manage risks associated with our business, in particular, risks
related to content on our platform, and our content moderation approach, which depends on users who volunteer to be moderators of their communities;a€¢potential harm
caused by changes in internet search enginesa€™ methodologies, particularly search engine optimization methodologies and policies;a€¢our ability to attract and retain
advertisers and scale our revenue model;a€¢our ability to develop effective products and tools for advertisers, including measurement tools;a€¢our ability to compete




effectively in our industry;a€¢our ability to expand and monetize our platform internationally;3Table of Contentsa€¢fluctuations in our operating results and seasonality of our
business;a€¢our ability to comply with modified or new laws and regulations applying to our business, and potential harm to our business as a result of those laws and
regulations;a€¢changes in technology or methodology that impact our calculation of DAUq, including our ability to identify automated agents on our platform;a€¢real or
perceived inaccuracies in current or historical metrics related to our business;a€¢the increased expenses associated with being a public company;a€¢our ability to effectively
manage our growth and expand our infrastructure and maintain our corporate culture;a€¢expectation of increased losses and decline in operating margins as we invest in
product improvements and innovations and our international growth;a€¢challenges in increasing ARPU on an absolute basis outside of the United States;a€¢potential need to
absorb the costs related to investments in product improvements and innovations without generating sufficient revenue to offset these costs;a€¢our opportunity to continue to
grow our DAU(q in the United States and around the world and our focus on growing our platform globally, including through entering new geographic markets and investing
in under-penetrated ones;a€¢our aim to increase DAU(q by scaling internationally, developing products that are more compelling for our users, and improving the quality of
our products across all platforms;a€¢our expectation of an increase in our costs and expenses from the launch of new ad formats, products, and features, primarily as
additional hosting costs although most of these areas of focus will not initially generate revenue;a€¢potential decline in users due to a reduction in third-party applications;a€
¢potential near-term volatility in Redditor and revenue growth rates;a€¢sufficiency of our existing cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities and amounts available
under our revolving credit facility to meet our working capital and capital expenditure needs over at least the next 12 months; anda€¢other risks and uncertainties described
in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including those described in d€ceRisk Factors.a€We caution you that the foregoing list does not contain all of the forward-looking
statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.We have based the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K primarily on our current
expectations, estimates, forecasts, and projections about future events and trends that we believe may affect our business, results of operations, financial condition, and
prospects. Although we believe that we have a reasonable basis for each forward-looking statement contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we cannot guarantee that
the future results, levels of activity, performance, or events and circumstances reflected in the forward-looking statements will be achieved or occur at all. The outcome of the
events described in these forward-looking statements is subject to risks, uncertainties, and other factors described in 4€ceRisk Factorsa€ and elsewhere in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K. Moreover, we operate in a very competitive and rapidly changing environment. New risks and uncertainties emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for
us to predict all risks and uncertainties that could have an impact on the forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The results, events, and
circumstances reflected in the forward-looking statements may not be achieved or occur, and actual results, events, or circumstances could differ materially from those
described in the forward-looking statements.The forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K relate only to events as of the date on which the
statements are made. We undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to reflect events or circumstances after
the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K or to reflect new information or the occurrence of unanticipated events, except as required by law. We may not actually achieve
the plans, intentions, or expectations disclosed in our forward-looking statements, and you should not place undue reliance on our forward-looking statements. Our forward-
looking statements do not reflect the potential impact of any future acquisitions, mergers, dispositions, joint ventures, or investments we may make.4Table of ContentsNOTE
REGARDING USER METRICS AND OTHER DATAWe define a daily active unique (4€0eDAUQa€) as a user whom we can identify with a unique identifier who has visited a page
on the Reddit website, www.reddit.com, or opened a Reddit application at least once during a 24-hour period. We calculate average DAU(q for a particular period by adding
the number of DAU(q on each day of that period and dividing that sum by the number of days in that period. We define a weekly active unique (a€ceWAUQa€) as a user whom
we can identify with a unique identifier who has visited a page on the Reddit website, www.reddit.com, or opened a Reddit application at least once during a trailing seven-
day period. We calculate average quarterly WAU(q for a particular period by adding the number of WAU(q on each day of that period and dividing that sum by the number of
days in that period. We define average revenue per unique (&€ ARPU&€) as quarterly revenue in a given geography divided by the average DAUq in that geography. For the
purposes of calculating ARPU, advertising revenue in a given geography is based on the geographic location in which advertising impressions are delivered, as this
approximates revenue based on user activity, while other revenue in a given geography is based on the billing address of the customer. We regularly review and continually
seek to improve the accuracy of, and our ability to track, such metrics. While these metrics are based on what we believe to be reasonable calculations for the applicable
period of measurement, there are inherent challenges given the complexity of the systems involved and the rapidly changing nature of mobile devices and systems. 5Table of
ContentsPart IItem 1. BusinessOur MissionOur mission is to empower communities and make their knowledge accessible to all. We built Reddit with the belief that
communities unlock the power of human creativity and create a sense of belonging and empowerment for their members. Our over 100,000 active communities have
channeled the power of human creativity to grow Reddit since our founding. We believe the world needs community more than ever, and that this represents our greatest
opportunity to further enrich the lives of everyone in the world.Overview: The Power of Reddita€™s CommunitiesReddit is a global, digital city where anyone in the world can
join a community to learn from one another, engage in authentic conversations, explore passions, research new hobbies, exchange goods and services, create new
communities and experiences, share a few laughs, and find belonging. People are diverse and have multiple interests. Just like in a city, where citizens are part of multiple
subcommunities, on Reddit, users often belong to multiple communities. At Reddit, users can dive into anything, and if a community does not already exist around a particular
topic, they can create one. In the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, an average of 101.7A million daily active uniques (4€eDAUqA€) around the world came together
on Reddit &€ continuously adding to our longstanding and constantly evolving human archive of information. They come together to share the rhythm of their daily
discoveries, ask questions and receive advice, research before making a purchase decision, hear reactions to recent events, and thrive as a community. Built on shared
interests, passion, and trust, Reddit has a community for everyone.Communities on Reddit are organized based on specific interests and are called subreddits. Within
subreddits, Redditors engage in active and in-depth conversations by sharing experiences, submitting links, uploading images and videos, and replying to one another in
comment threads on any topic. Subreddits are denoted by an &€cer/a€ before their names: r/A explainlikeimfive helps people learn anything with child-friendly explanations; r/
A 1gbt helps people find their identity; and r/A BeyondTheBump helps people transition from pregnancy to parenthood. Redditors invest time to shape their communities,
share their experiences, send support and supplies when someone is down on their luck, and even code scripts and develop tools to advance their communities. Similar to how
cities are made from cement and steel, but are really built by their citizens, Reddit is made from code and algorithms, but is really built by our users. It is a place where
human ingenuity and creativity thrive. We empower users to participate and to shape Reddit by sharing content, upvoting or downvoting, and commenting. In addition,
Redditors themselves not only create and build communities, but they also moderate these communities as volunteers to help keep them safe, vibrant, and true to themselves.
Like cities, we design tools that give communities what they need to make their communities their own and evolve over time, rebuilding and reshaping by adapting to new
technologies and reflecting new cultural trends. Newly created subreddits create a sense of belonging for their members, spurring the creation of more new subreddits to
continue the cycle. In this way, Redditda€™s community ecosystem grows and expands with the interests and passions of our users, keeping Reddit on trend and resilient to
fading fads.Reddita€™s community ecosystem is organically built upon shared interests, passions, and trust rather than friends, celebrities, and their followers. This
distinction results in a unique sense of belonging, privacy, and authenticity for our users. We do not require that users disclose their identities, freeing them from having to
perform and the associated pressures to always appear perfect. As a result, users come to Reddit for fundamentally distinct purposes, with each adding incremental value to
our entire community. Redditors are free to be vulnerable or ask questions they would not be able to ask anywhere else. Powerful Platform Built Around Context and User
InterestThese qualities not only make the experience more enjoyable for users, they also make Reddit a unique platform for advertisers due to our intentional, authentic,
trusted nature and our strength in contextual and interest-based advertising. For advertisers, we provide access to a unique and highly engaged audience where our trusted,
passionate communities drive recommendations on brands and buying decisions. Whether users come to Reddit through a third-party search engine or if they initiate their
search on Reddit, our users often have high intent a€“ they are looking for answers or recommendations that they can trust, and these users can benefit from the
conversations and contextual ads that are displayed on Reddit. 6Table of ContentsA Valuable Source of Conversational Data and KnowledgeOver time, Reddit has evolved to
become one of the interneta€™s largest corpuses of information, with over two billion posts and over 20 billion comments through DecemberA 31, 2024, and an average of 1.2
million posts created daily and 9.7 million comments created daily in December 2024. Our content is particularly important for artificial intelligence (a€ceAla€) a€“ it is a
foundational part of how many of the leading large language models (a€ceLLMs&€) have been trained. Furthermore, we use internally built and trained models to improve
many aspects of Reddit, including user onboarding, content translation, and moderation and safety. Our massive corpus of conversational data and knowledge is what makes
us unique, and we believe its value will continue to grow over time as our user-generated data continues to grow.Entrepreneurial User EconomyWe are developing a user-
powered economy on Reddit by providing our communities and creators with the requisite tools and incentives to drive continued creation and experiences. The Contributor
Program enables people to earn money when other users reward their posts or comments. We have also enabled the ability to pay for applications created in the Reddit
Development Platform. We believe these initiatives will open additional monetization channels for us.Why Users Come to RedditThe internet has given people the tools to
redefine how we live. We have search engines to find content and social networks to share and follow each other. Our community of communities sets itself apart with its
unique combination of characteristics and is designed to provide users with a trusted place to be authentic to themselves in sharing and discovering while maintaining their
privacy. Open, Growing Archive of Human Knowledge (2005a€“A A A A A )Over the last 19 years, Reddit has become one of the interneta€™s largest open archives of human
experiences. With over two billion posts and over 20 billion comments organized into communities, Reddit content provides authentic, human perspectives across almost any
topic imaginable. Our constantly updated user-generated content provides a vast collection of human experiences, answers, and conversations and provides a source of fresh
ideas. Reddita€™s influence and relevance organically grows, and Reddit quickly responds to new topics based on real experiences. Topical communities such as 1/A travel, r/
A vanderpumprules, r/A MachineLearning, r/A cricket, r/A boxoffice, and r/A TaylorSwift have had meaningful breakouts as the headlines have evolved. As a result of
Reddita€™ s scale and longevity, our content library is a broad memory of human interest, organically expanding and deepening into more topics. At times, Reddit may be the
only place to find the information users are looking for, and users searching for information often come to Reddit and discover conversations taking place there. Centered on
Interests, with Unmatched Breadth and Depth of Human KnowledgeTime spent on Reddit is guided by personal intention and interests. Breadth of communities and depth of
engagement means that Redditors benefit from a trove of knowledge organized by topic that we believe is unmatched by any other internet platform. Reddit is home to over
100,000 active subreddits, with over 500 subreddits that each have at least one million subscribers, which cover a wide variety of topicsa€”r/A wholesomememes, r/

A philosophy, r/A Cats, r/A InteriorDesign, r/A NBA, and r/A worldnews, to name a fewa€”and can be creative, humorous, informative, inspirational, absurd, serious, or
contemplative. People-powered Curation for Authentic Interactions and Trusted ContentOur differentiated community approach underlies the interactions on our platform:
Reddit is centered around human creativity and belonging. The content found in Reddit communities is curated by people, creating a highly relevant content experience that
attracts users to our platform. Every post and comment on Reddit, regardless of the author, starts with one upvote, and must earn its visibility through community members
upvoting it and boosting it to the subreddita€™s front page. Unlike traditional social media, voting (both up and down) is completely anonymous, encouraging broader
Redditor participation. This unique upvoting and downvoting system not only curates the quality and relevance of content, but also determines the prominence of a certain
piece of content. We believe community-driven promotion of content leads to greater trust of the content on Reddit.Authentic and Trusted RecommendationsReddita€™s
community-powered recommendations are a foundational part of why so many users visit Reddit on a daily basis. In a world where consumers are increasingly inundated with
curated messaging and product placement, Reddit stands out as a refreshing alternative, offering authentic human recommendations that people can actually trust. We see
that trust reflected in the high velocity of people coming to Reddit to find great content and trusted recommendations.7Table of ContentsFlexible Canvas for Self- and
Community-expressionEvery subreddit is a flexible canvas for communities to express themselves through a customizable experience. We give communities the ability to
choose the format for conversations in their communitiesa€”text, image, video, opinion polls, chatroomsa€”which enables them to create dynamic and engaging experiences.
We give moderators the creative tools to design the look and feel of communities, and we give developers an open application programming interface (d€ceAPIa€) to build bots
and create features that shape their communities, meaning what a community envisions for itself drives its unique development.Conversations flow across Reddit through
cross-posting, where a post from one community can be shared into another community to spur new conversation with a different audience. Layered Moderation, Community
Management, and Safety Supports TrustWe are committed to continuously enhancing our policies and processes to promote the safety of users and moderators, and the
health of our platform. Our approach is akin to a democratic city, wherein everyone has the ability to vote and self-organize, follow a set of common rules, and establish
community-specific norms. This approach gives Redditors a voice and agency in the process and also means that any content that gains traction on Reddit has been reviewed
in context by humans. Communities self-organize and create subreddit-level rules that are tailored to their unique circumstances, and volunteer moderators within the
community enforce those rules. Moderators have context as leaders and members of their communities to define and enforce the rules to create a harmonious community
experience. The result is that each community has its own unique environment in which Redditors can express their genuine perspective and share real experiences while



discouraging bad behavior. We backstop this bottoms-up organic moderation engine with our site-wide Content Policy, a set of overarching rules and policies that govern all
content on Reddit. Our Content Policy is intended to be protective, not intrusive. It helps protect against harassment, bullying, and violence a€“ especially hate based on
identity or vulnerability. Our Strategy for Growing Users and EngagementOur strategy is to support the growth and engagement of our communities. We aim to become
Redditorsa€™ first choice when they are exploring their passions, looking for entertainment, or keeping tabs on culture and news. We intend to grow users and engagement
through the following initiatives:4€¢Grow Awareness and Engagement of Reddit. We plan to expand the ways people become aware of Reddit through various strategies
depending on the type of use case and user, including search engine optimization and partnerships. We have also invested in improving our off-platform presence, by making
it easier to share and embed Reddit content on other surfaces and websites. We had an average of 101.7A million DAUq and 379.4A million WAU(q in the three months ended
DecemberA 31, 2024. We believe that there is a significant opportunity to convert many of the users who come to Reddit on a weekly or monthly basis to daily users. We plan
to continue to grow engagement by focusing on:a—|Improving Discovery and User Experience. We want to make it easier for new and existing Redditors to discover relevant
communities and content. To that end, we are applying machine learning to improve the classification of our content and interest-based recommendations. For example, we
are deploying internally built models to improve the experiences of Redditors by increasing the likelihood that their posts will qualify for a particular subreddit. In addition, we
want the basic features of Reddit to be easier to use and more accessible, including posting into communities, finding and creating new communities, and moderating these
communities. &—}Customized Content Recommendations. We utilize Al to recommend relevant posts and communities, utilizing factors such as search queries, post topics,
and engagement with similar users to enhance both the search and discovery experience. We believe our investments in AI have improved new user onboarding and driven
engagement with existing users. For example, we re-trained our New Home Feed ranking with significantly more data and user signals. In the three months ended
DecemberA 31, 2024 compared to the three months ended December 31, 2023, we observed an increase of 30% in 4€ceGood Visits,&€ defined as a user consuming a post for
more than 30 seconds.a€¢Reinventing Search. While we are still in the early innings, search is already a key action taken on Reddit with an average of over 40 million daily
search queries directly on Reddit in December 2024. We recognize the importance of search, and have made investments to make searches more relevant and drive deeper
engagement. In December 2024, we tested a new feature, Reddit Answers, which returns the most relevant conversations for any topic people are interested in learning more
about. We have seen people use Reddit Answers for a range of topics from planning trips to researching the best products before making a purchase decision.8Table of
Contentsa€¢Grow Our International User Base. During the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, approximately 53% of Redditors visited the platform from outside of the
United States. In the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, over 90% of all Reddit posts were made in English. We see a massive opportunity to grow in geographies
outside of the United States and in languages beyond English. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, approximately one billion posts have been translated in various languages, including
Spanish, French, Italian, German, Portuguese, Swedish, Dutch, and Filipino. We are continuing to make more content available in many more languages, including Polish,
Hindi, Bengali, Thai, Malaysian, and Vietnamese. Additionally, we are curating the Community Tab, Trending Today carousel, and sending highly relevant push notifications to
help international users find and engage regularly with locally relevant and trending content. We have captured increased international momentum, with an average of

53.7A million international DAU(q for the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, representing 46% growth year over year.Why Advertisers Come to RedditReddit is the
place where people, entities of public interest, and businesses come together to engage in authentic human-to-human conversations structured around their interests. Across
our diverse communities, people seek and share information in context about products and services, often with high purchase intent. We have made investments and
acquisitions that have enabled us to be a leader in contextual and interest-based advertising. Advertisers of all sizes rely on Reddit to find highly engaged, high-intent
customers in conversations that drive decisions at every stage of the path to purchase.Advertisers come to Reddit for distinctive benefits:4€¢Contextual and Interest-based
Advertising. Reddita€™s advertising platform enables marketers to find relevant audiences on the Reddit platform using our interest graph and to reach users in contextually
relevant communities and conversations, using engaging and performant formats. For example, an advertiser with a camping product can reach people who love outdoor
activities across Reddit. This is interest-based advertising. Similarly, the same advertiser can reach people who are in a conversation specifically about what to buy. A person
exploring what gear they need in r/A camping or r/A Outdoors may see an ad for camping gear, in context, within that conversation. That is contextual advertising.

Reddita€™ s unique community structure and interest-driven model acts as a strong signal for advertisers. a€¢Ability to Connect with a High-Intent Audience Seeking
Recommendations on the Path to Purchase. Many people come to Reddit, directly or through search, to get recommendations and make purchase decisions. The conversations
that happen on the platform play a strong role at every stage of the customer journey, assisting in discovery, consideration, validation, decision, and post-purchase. These
conversations create a unique opportunity for advertisers to engage Redditors who are considering brands and products.. 4€¢Authentic and Attentive Audience in an
Attractive Demographic. In December 2024, the average active minutes on Reddit per logged-in user in the United States was between 25 and 30 minutes per day, and there
was an average of 101.7A million DAUq during the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024. During this period, approximately 47% of DAUq were from the United States,
and the remainder were from the rest of the world. &€¢Gain Access to a Platform with Data Signals that is Built to Respect Privacy. The performance of our advertising model
is based on first-party data from user-directed activities on the platform, such as the communities that users visit or join and the content they are engaging in. The foundation
of our ad performance is based on context and interest instead of tracking users based on personally identifiable information. This is unique in the digital advertising
marketplace; our lack of reliance on third-party data makes our offering more resilient to the loss of signal that other platforms rely upon as well as forthcoming changes to
the internet ecosystem. a€¢Action-Oriented Outcomes that Drive Attractive, Measurable Return on Investment. Advertisers can bid in our auctions in a way that aligns with
their business objectives. They can select from objectives across the full-funnel (e.g., impressions, traffic, conversions, install) to reach the audience most relevant for their
desired goals. Our marketplace then optimizes to drive incremental value and efficiency for advertisers. a€¢Multiple Layers of Brand Safety and Customizable Controls.
Beyond our multiple layers of moderation and safety across platform content, we also offer advertiser-level controls. Our Content Policy establishes the type of content that is
not allowed across all communities, with community rules determining content within each community. From there, our brand safety approach expands coverage by providing
proactive solutions focused on creating a safe environment for any business on Reddit by showing ads in communities and alongside content that has been reviewed and
deemed appropriate for advertising. In addition, advertiser-level controls enable businesses to further customize their brand safety preferences on Reddit. Advertiser controls
include both 1P and 3P proactive capabilities. Our 3P proactive 9Table of Contentscontrols are built in partnership with IAS. In addition we provide post-campaign reporting
through IAS and DV across brand safety, viewability, and invalid traffic reporting.The Future of Our Platform and Monetization StrategiesAdvertisingReddit is a unique place
on the internet, and we believe that we have many avenues to increase value to advertisers through our interest- and community-based platform. We continue to expand our
ad platform capabilities to enable more ways for customers to invest to grow their business on Reddit. We are still in the early phases of our opportunity and plan to pursue
the following eight levers to expand our monetization and average revenue per unique(1):1.More Context and Interest. We plan to continue to add additional contextual and
interest-based signals and intelligence into our advertiser platform. We believe this will help advertisers find more relevant audiences on Reddit. This includes existing
placements in the home feed and in conversations, as well as potential future opportunities (e.g., ads on search pages; video ads). 2.Deliver ROI with Marketplace
Optimizations. We are in the early stages of using machine learning and prediction models to better match supply and demand and deliver return on investment (d€ceROI&€)
for our advertisers. We are currently focused on using our powerful prediction models to work across objectives, placements, and formats 4€“ helping to better predict
conversion rates of an ad (e.g., installs; purchases). 3.Advertiser Diversity and Depth. We plan to increase the types, sizes, and geographies of advertisers we reach and
expand annual partnerships for longer-term visibility. We aim to grow our advertisers from endemic advertisers in verticals where we have the largest number of active
communities, like technology and communications; business, legal, and finance; and media and entertainment, to newer verticals such as automotive; retail; consumer
packaged goods; pharmaceuticals; and food and beverage. We are focused on geographic markets where we have teams, channel partners, or vendors to help manage small-
and mid-size businesses globally.4.Demonstrate ROI. By improving the measurement of our ads, we can provide better data to show our advertisers the ROI of their presence
on Reddit. We have invested in measurement capabilities that enable advertisers to better understand the impact of their Reddit campaign. This includes expanding
Conversion API ecosystem to new partners, improving Pixel implementation, investing in the foundation of on-platform conversion-lift, and on-platform brand lift.5.AI-Powered
Audience Reach and Bidding. We are using machine learning models for contextual keyword audience reach and interest-based audience reach, ranking ads based on brand
suitability and machine learning-predicted user engagement. Additionally, machine learning-powered a€ceauto-biddinga€ (e.g., Maximum Clicks and Maximum Conversions)
helps advertisers maximize campaign objectives and ROI while avoiding extensive manual testing.6.Expanded Formats and Offerings. We plan to continue to develop new ad
positions based on evolving consumer behaviors on the platform (e.g., search usage growth). We plan to expand our ad formats in ways that allow advertisers to creatively talk
to communities and share more information (e.g., product-level creative; AMAs). 7.Automation/Scale Service Model. Through easier onboarding, setup, campaign
management, and optimization, we expect to scale our service model through diverse service channels matched to client needs a€“ from managed service models, to hybrid, to
enabling advertisers to activate with little to no sales team assistance (i.e., unmanaged). This simplifies core manual optimization tasks needed for more outcomes and better
performance.8.Acquire More Advertisers. With more automation in the future, we believe that we can become even more accessible to a larger portion of small- and medium-
sized businesses enabled by partnerships and accelerated demand generation. We are also deepening our relationships with large agencies through solutions that enable
enterprise operations across large clients. Content LicensingReddit is one of the interneta€™s largest corpuses of authentic and constantly updated human-generated
conversations, community, and content. In an increasingly data-driven world, we recognize that this information is increasingly important for a multitude of different uses and
applications. We believe the internet should work for consumers and they should be able to find the information they need or experiences they want. And, organizations need
to prioritize sources of real-time human (1)A A A A Average revenue per unique (3€ceARPU4€) is defined as quarterly revenue in a given geography divided by the average
DAUq in that geography10Table of Contentsperspectivesa€”from a company looking for feedback on a new consumer product to investors trying to capture market sentiments
or signalsa€”and Reddit provides a differentiated solution. Reddit data and information constantly grows and regenerates as users come and interact with their communities
and each other in genuine and authentic ways. We expect our growing data advantage to continue to be valuable across several applications of LLMs (e.g., search, run-time
inference). We continue to strategically explore content licensing agreements with collaborative partners in the ecosystem ranging from marketing intelligence companies to
enterprise-scale technology companies. We are also exploring go-to-market strategies for new verticals, including the financial services industry.User EconomyCommerce has
already emerged on our platform organically as a result of our interest-and community-based approach. Artisans sell their creations, collectors sell beloved items, and
developers sell entertainment via originally developed video games. This activity has been taking place in communities dedicated to creativity, memorabilia, and fandoms for
many years. We intend to support the Reddit user economy by providing our users and creators with the requisite tools and incentives to drive continued creation,
improvements, and commerce. In turn, we believe this will open additional monetization channels for Reddit:1.Developer Platform. We are providing developers with
additional tools and increased monetization opportunities to unlock creativity on Reddit and incentivize continued improvements to the overall user experience and utility of
the platform.2.Contributor Program. As creators, builders, and developers generate value on our platform, we intend to empower these groups to participate in their value
creation by receiving monetary benefits from Reddit and other community members. Increasingly, talented individuals are turning to online communities to share their
creations with fans, peer creators, and enthusiasts. We are focused on increasing the types of ways that users can recognize contributors with real-world money to incentivize
and reward quality content creation.3.Community Experiences. We have a Collectible Avatars Creator Program, which empowers users to create, own, and monetize their
artistic creations, and for which we receive a portion of the primary sales and royalty fees. We are also exploring ways to enable communities to offer subscriptions to
premium experiences and engage with other paying members.CompetitionWe are competing for peoplea€™s time and for global advertising spend. As such, we face
significant competition across many areas of our business. People may choose to spend their time using other products when looking to fulfill the needs Reddit provides, such
as being entertained, seeking information, diving into current events, exploring passions and hobbies, or peer-to-peer commerce. Examples of select competitors across
several time spent categories include:a€¢For Seeking Informationa€”Google, Amazon, YouTube, Wikipedia, X, and other news sites. Some users are also turning to LLMs such
as ChatGPT, Gemini, and Anthropic.4€¢For Entertainmenta€”Meta (including Facebook, Instagram, Threads, and WhatsApp), YouTube, Snap, X, TikTok, Roblox, and
Twitch.a€¢For Passions and Hobbiesa€”Facebook Groups, Discord, X, and Pinterest.a€¢For Peer-to-peer Commerce and User Economya€”Facebook Marketplace, Nextdoor,
Craigslist, Poshmark, Etsy, and Roblox.Advertisers can also reach consumers via many other digital advertising platforms and channels. We compete directly with all other
major advertising platforms as well as publishers including: Google, Meta, Snapchat, TikTok, Pinterest, and X. To compete effectively, we will need to enable advertisers to
identify the audiences they wish to reach effectively and be able to accurately show the value of their investment. In addition, our content licensing offerings face competition
from other sources of information, including news, publishing, entertainment, and social media.Seasonality in Our BusinessWe have historically seen seasonality in our
business and financial results, with an increase in overall advertiser spending in the fourth quarter, due in large part to end-of-year advertiser spending, typically followed by
a weaker first quarter.11Table of ContentsIntellectual PropertyOur success depends in part on our ability to protect our intellectual property and proprietary technologies,



and we rely on intellectual property rights in the United States and other jurisdictions, including patents, trademarks, copyrights, trade secret laws, license agreements,
internal procedures, and contractual provisions. We also enter into confidentiality and invention assignment agreements with our employees and contractors and sign
confidentiality agreements with third parties. Our internal controls restrict access to proprietary technology.As of DecemberA 31, 2024, we had 51 pending trademark
applications and 346 trademark registrations around the world. We also had 123 copyright registrations on various graphical designs and literary works and two pending
utility patent applications and three provisional patent applications in the United States as of DecemberA 31, 2024. See 4€ceRisk Factorsa€”Risks Related to Cybersecurity,
Information Systems, and Intellectual Propertya€ for more information regarding risks related to our intellectual property and proprietary rights.RegulationWe are subject to
many U.S. federal and state and foreign laws, rules, and regulations, including those related to privacy, rights of publicity, data protection, content regulation, intellectual
property, health and safety, competition, protection of minors, consumer protection, and taxation. These laws and regulations are constantly evolving and may be interpreted,
applied, created, or amended, in a manner that could harm our business.Furthermore, foreign data protection, privacy, consumer protection, content regulation, and other
laws and regulations are often more restrictive than those in the United States. It is possible that certain governments may seek to block or limit our products or otherwise
impose other restrictions that may affect the accessibility or usability of any or all our products for an extended period of time or indefinitely. We have a legal and a public
policy team that monitor legal and regulatory developments in the United States, as well as globally, and communicates regularly with policymakers and regulators.For
additional information about government regulation applicable to our business, see a€eRisk Factorsa€”Risks Related to Governmental Regulation and Litigation.a€Building
the Future of the Internet at RedditTo empower communities and make their knowledge accessible to all on Reddit, we believe that we must do so at Reddit first. It starts with
our employeesa€”whom we call Snoosa€”treating each other with respect through honoring our commitments and being kind, courteous, and professional to one another. Just
as our users seek community to address needs around belonging, we cultivate that within our company via our Employee Resource Groups (ERGs). These groups represent
Snoos who are veterans, BIPOC, LGBTQ+, of various abilities, women, and allies. We also host a range of less formal gatherings based on shared interests. Our Snoos often
describe our work culture as fun, quirky, and a place where you can be your authentic self; this makes working at Reddit special and something that we believe to be a
competitive advantage for us. To ensure that we continue to cultivate a strong workplace culture and make decisions that are best for our business, our users, and our Snoos,
we have the following values to guide us:a€¢Reddita€™ s Mission Firsta€”To achieve our mission, it is important to remember that wea€ ™re in this together. We move forward
with this one shared goal above all others.a€¢Make Something People Lovea€”Our surest path to success is to make something people love.a€¢Evolvea€”Only by continually
improving and learning will we succeed.a€¢Work Harda€”Our mission is ambitious. It requires taking on and solving hard problems, and solving hard problems requires hard
work. Nothing important is easy, and it is our firm belief that what we are working on is incredibly important. Each and every Snoo will have to give their best if Reddit is
going to get to the next level.d€¢Default Opena€”The free flow of ideas and feedback is the lifeblood of a healthy organization, and Reddit must embrace it if we are to
thrive.As of DecemberA 31, 2024, we had 2,233 employees, including 1,768 in the United States.Corporate InformationWe were incorporated as a Delaware corporation in
May 2011. We completed our initial public offering (&€ceIPO&€) in March 2024 and our Class A common stock is currently listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the
symbol &4€eRDDT.a€ Our 12Table of Contentsprincipal executive offices are located at 303 2nd Street, South Tower, 5th Floor, San Francisco, California 94107, and our
telephone number is (415)A 494-8016. 4€eREDDIT,&€ the Reddit logos, and other trade names, trademarks, or service marks of appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-
K are the property of Reddit, Inc. or its affiliates. Other trade names, trademarks, or service marks appearing in this Annual Report on Form 104€‘K are the property of their
respective holders.Available InformationOur Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to reports filed
pursuant to Sections 13(a) and 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the 4€ceExchange Acta€), are filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission (the &€eSECa€). We are subject to the informational requirements of the Exchange Act and file or furnish reports, proxy statements, and other information with
the SEC. Such reports and other information filed by us with the SEC are available free of charge on our website at investor.redditinc.com when such reports are available on
the SECA€™s website. We use investor.redditinc.com, our corporate website, www.redditinc.com, and the subreddits r/A RDDT and /A reddit, available at
www.reddit.com/r/RDDT and www.reddit.com/r/reddit, respectively, as means of disclosing material non-public information and for complying with our disclosure obligations
under Regulation FD.The SEC maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements, and other information regarding issuers that file
electronically with the SEC at www.sec.gov.Information contained on, or that can be accessed through, investor.redditinc.com, www.redditinc.com, www.reddit.com, or our
mobile applications are not incorporated into this filing, and the inclusion of our website address and references to any subreddits in this filing are inactive textual references
only.Item 1A. Risk FactorsA description of the risks and uncertainties associated with our business is set forth below. You should carefully consider the risks described below
as well as the other information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including our consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto, and a€ceManagementa€™s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.a€ The occurrence of any of the events or developments described below could adversely affect our
business, results of operations, financial condition, reputation, and prospects. In such an event, the market price of our Class A common stock could decline, and you may lose
all or part of your investment.Risk Factor SummaryOur business is subject to numerous risks and uncertainties, including those described more fully below in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K. The following is a summary of principal risks and uncertainties that could materially adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial
condition, and prospects. This summary should be read in conjunction with the 4&€ceRisk Factorsa€ section and should not be relied upon as an exhaustive summary of the
material risks and uncertainties facing our business.a€¢If we fail to increase or retain our user base, and in particular, our DAU(q, or if user engagement declines, our
business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects will be harmed.a€¢If Redditors do not continue to contribute content or their contributions are not valuable
or appealing to other Redditors, we may experience a decline in the number of Redditors accessing our products and services and in user engagement, which could result in
the loss of advertisers and may harm our reputation, business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.4€¢Our business depends on a strong brand and
reputation, and if we are unable to maintain and enhance our brand and reputation, our ability to expand our user and advertiser bases will be impaired and our business,
results of operations, financial condition, and prospects could be harmed.&a€¢Changes in internet search engine algorithms and dynamics could have a negative impact on
traffic for our website and, ultimately, our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.a€¢We have a history of net losses and we may not be able to
maintain profitability in the future.a€¢Our results of operations may fluctuate from quarter to quarter, which makes them difficult to predict.13Table of Contentsa€¢We are in
the early stages of monetizing our business, and there is no assurance we will be able to scale our business for future growth.4€¢We generate a majority of our revenue from
advertising. The failure to attract new advertisers, the loss of advertisers, or the reduction of or failure by advertisers to maintain or increase their advertising budgets would
adversely affect our business.a€¢We may not succeed in further expanding and monetizing our platform internationally and may be subject to increased international business
and economic risks.a4€¢We are exploring business opportunities in content licensing, but we are in the early stages and the market is new and evolving rapidly.a€¢Our
business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects may be harmed by our failure to timely and effectively scale and adapt our existing technology and
infrastructure.a€¢We anticipate that our ongoing efforts related to data privacy, safety, security, and content review will identify instances of misuse of user data or other
undesirable activity by third parties on our platform.a€¢If our security measures are breached, or if our products and services are subject to attacks involving our systems or
data, some of which contain personal information, or that degrade or deny the ability of users to access our products and services, our products and services may be perceived
as not being secure, Redditors and advertisers may curtail or stop using our products and services, and our reputation, business, results of operations, financial condition, and
prospects could be harmed.a€¢Redditor growth and engagement depends upon effective interoperation with operating systems, networks, devices, web browsers, online
application stores, regulations, and standards that we do not control. Changes in our products or to those operating systems, networks, devices, web browsers, online
application stores, regulations, or standards may harm Redditor retention, growth, and engagement, which could harm our business, results of operations, financial condition,
and prospects.a€¢Our business is subject to increasingly complex and evolving laws, rules, regulations, industry standards, and other legal obligations regarding content,
consumer protection, competition, privacy, and other matters. Failure to comply with such laws, rules, regulations, industry standards, and other legal obligations could harm
our business.a€¢Interest in our Class A common stock from retail and other individual investors, for reasons unrelated to our underlying business or macro or industry
fundamentals, could result in increased volatility in the market price of our Class A common stock.a€¢The multi-class structure of our common stock has the effect of
concentrating voting control with those stockholders who held our capital stock prior to the listing of our Class A common stock on the NYSE, including our directors,
executive officers, and 5% stockholders, and their respective affiliates. This ownership will limit or preclude your ability to influence corporate matters, including the election
of directors, amendments of our organizational documents, and any major corporate transaction requiring stockholder approval, including change of control transactions.a€
¢Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and the governance agreement we entered into with our principal stockholder grant our principal stockholder certain
rights with respect to the control and management of our business, which may prevent us from taking actions that may be beneficial to us and our other stockholders.Risks
Related to Our BusinessWe face intense competition, and if we fail to grow or retain our user base or maintain user engagement, our business, results of operations, financial
condition, and prospects could be adversely affected.The size of our user base and their level of engagement are critical to our success. Our financial performance has been,
and will continue to be, significantly determined by our success in growing our user base so that we add Redditors, and those Redditors become more active usersa€”more
specifically, daily active uniques (a€ceDAUqga€). We define a user whom we can identify with a unique identifier who has visited a page on the Reddit website,
www.reddit.com, or opened a Reddit application at least once during a 24-hour period as a DAUq. DAU(q is a user metric utilized by our management team. While it may be
used to gauge usage of our platform, it may not correlate to revenue. We also measure weekly active uniques (a4€ceWAUQqa€) to help us understand the reach of our platform.
We may not be successful in our strategies to convert monthly users or WAU(q into more DAU(q.14Table of ContentsThe absolute number of our DAUq and our DAUq growth
rate has decreased in the past and may fluctuate or decrease in one or more markets from time to time due to various factors, especially after periods of high growth, such as
we have experienced. For example, although we saw increased growth in our user base during the COVID-19 pandemic, we experienced lower levels of DAUq growth and
declining DAUq as the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic subsided. DAUq has also declined in the past in periods following usage peaks surrounding certain worldwide events,
such as the onset of the conflict between Russia and Ukraine in the three months ended March 31, 2022, and cultural trends, including video game releases, such as Elden
Ring in the three months ended March 31, 2022, and traffic related to r/A wallstreetbets in the three months ended March 31, 2021. These usage peaks are driven by external
factors that are outside of our control. Accordingly, such growth may not be repeatable and we may experience declines in DAU(q in the future in similar circumstances. DAUq
has also been volatile during community responses to domestic and international social unrest as well as in response to actions by us. For example, we saw increased growth
in our user base in the three months ended December 31, 2023, which may have been driven in part by performance improvements in our product and possibly by migration
of usage from certain third-party applications in response to changes in our application program interface (a€ceAPIa€) terms and policies. Such growth may not be
sustainable. In the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, logged-out DAUq comprised 55% of global DAUq. Logged-out users typically come to Reddit via search engines,
spend less time on the site, and do not monetize at the same rate as logged-in users. Furthermore, we anticipate that our DAUq growth rate will slow over time as the absolute
number of our DAU(q increases. To the extent our DAUq growth rate slows or becomes negative, our success will increasingly depend on our ability to increase levels of
engagement and monetization on our platform, including the level at which users visiting us from search traffic become more frequent users of our platform. A number of
factors could harm Redditor growth and engagement or impact our ability to compete effectively, including if:4€ ¢Redditors engage with other products, services, or activities
as an alternative to ours;a€¢our competitors incorporate features into their products that are substantially similar to ours or improve upon such features when including them
in their products;a€¢we fail to introduce new and improved products or services or we introduce new or improved products or services that negatively affect Redditor
engagement;a€¢we are unable to convert DAUqQ who come to our platform through internet search engines to sign-up and log in;a€¢Redditors feel that their Reddit
experience is diminished as a result of our decisions with respect to the frequency, prominence, and size of ads that we display, or the quality of the ads displayed;a€
¢influential Redditors or certain demographics of Redditors conclude that an alternative product or service better meets their needs;a€¢we are unable to convince new
Redditors of the value and usefulness of our products and services;a€¢technical or other problems prevent us from delivering our products or services in a rapid and reliable
manner or otherwise negatively affect Redditorsa€™ experience with our platform;a€¢we fail to effectively adopt new technologies, such as machine learning and artificial
intelligence (&€ceAI4€), that our competitors may have more experience utilizing and leveraging in their products and services; a&€¢Redditors have difficulty installing,
updating, searching, or otherwise accessing our products and content or prefer to utilize third-party applications that have shut down or no longer integrate with our
platform;a€¢there are disruptions to the normal operation of our communities, including as a result of actions or inactions by our volunteer moderators;a€¢Redditors are
unable to locate content that is interesting, useful, relevant, reliable, high-quality, or trustworthy to them, or otherwise find content available on our platform offensive,
inappropriate, hostile, or otherwise objectionable;a€¢there are Redditor concerns related to privacy and communication, safety, security, or other factors or changes to our
platform or policies are not well received by Redditors;a€¢we are unable to combat harmful or inappropriate usage of our platform;a€¢there are adverse changes in our



products or services that are mandated by, or that we elect to make to address, legislation, regulatory authorities, or litigation, including settlements;15Table of Contentsa€
¢we fail to keep pace with evolving online, market, and industry trends; ora€¢we are the subject of adverse media reports or other negative publicity.We also compete to
attract and retain Redditorsa€™ attention on the basis of our content and Redditor experiences with our platform and face significant competition for prospective users, both
domestically and internationally. We compete against many companies that provide content and communications services to online users, including Google, Meta (including
Facebook, Instagram, Threads, and WhatsApp), YouTube, Wikipedia, Snap, X, Pinterest, TikTok, Roblox, Discord, and Twitch, and which offer a variety of internet- and mobile
device-based products, services, and content. Many of these companies have greater financial resources and substantially larger user bases than Reddit. Furthermore, as we
pursue opportunities to empower our user economy, we expect to face competition from existing online marketplaces, including Patreon, Substack, and Squarespace. As a
result, our competitors may draw users towards their products or services and away from ours. This could decrease the growth or engagement of Redditors, which, in turn,
would negatively affect our business. In addition, we face competition from large language models (4€eLLMsa€), such as those built by Google, Meta, OpenAl, and Anthropic;
Redditors may choose to find information using LLMs, which in some cases may have been trained using Reddit content, instead of visiting Reddit directly.We believe that
sustained meaningful active Redditor growth is dependent on improving our products and services to demonstrate our value proposition to a larger audience and penetrating
additional demographics, which we believe may take a considerable amount of time. If we are unable to increase our DAU(q, or its growth rate, or if this metric declines, our
products and services could be less attractive to potential new users, as well as to advertisers, which would harm our business, results of operations, financial condition, and
prospects.If Redditors do not continue to contribute content or their contributions are not valuable or appealing to other Redditors, we may experience a decline in the
number of Redditors accessing our products and services and in user engagement, which could result in the loss of advertisers and may harm our reputation, business, results
of operations, financial condition, and prospects.Our success depends on our ability to provide users of our products and services with valuable content, which in turn depends
on the content contributed by Redditors. We seek to foster a broad and engaged Redditor community. If Redditors do not continue to contribute content and otherwise engage
with our platform, and we are unable to provide Redditors with valuable and timely content, our user base and their engagement may decline. A large portion of the content
on our platform comes from a small number of Redditors contributing to communities (which are also known as subreddits). If prolific Redditors do not continue to contribute
content and otherwise engage with our platform, or decide to leave our platform and encourage other Redditors to follow them to a new platform, our user base and their
engagement may decline. Our platform may also be used by third parties to disseminate abusive or other harmful content in violation of our terms and applicable law. We may
not proactively discover or quickly respond to such content once alerted to it due to our scale and the limitations of existing technology and operational infrastructure. If we
are unable to successfully prevent or detect and timely address abusive or other harmful behavior on our platform, our user base and their engagement may decline.
Additionally, in keeping with our mission to empower communities and make their knowledge accessible to all, our site-wide content policy is designed to be protective, but
not intrusive. If Redditors perceive the content available on Reddit to be offensive, inappropriate, hostile, or otherwise objectionable, we may experience a decline in user
activity generally, or among certain demographics. We generate a majority of our revenue from the sale of advertising services. If we experience a decline in the number of
Redditors, or a decrease in Redditor growth rate or engagement, including as a result of lack of valuable or appealing content, or the loss of influential Redditors or
subreddits, advertisers may not view our products and services as attractive for their marketing expenditures, and may reduce their spending with us, which would harm our
reputation, business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.Our business depends on a strong brand and reputation, and if we are unable to maintain and
enhance our brand and reputation, our ability to expand our user and advertiser bases will be impaired and our business, results of operations, financial condition, and
prospects could be harmed.We believe that our brand identity and reputation, including that our service is an empowering environment, has significantly contributed to the
success of our business. We also believe that maintaining and enhancing the 4€ceReddita€ brand and reputation is critical to retaining and growing our user and advertiser
bases. We anticipate that maintaining and enhancing our brand and reputation will depend largely on our continued ability to provide high-quality, relevant, reliable,
trustworthy, and innovative products, which may require substantial investment and may not be successful. We may need to introduce new products or updates to existing
products that require Redditors to agree to new terms of service that Redditors do not like, which may negatively affect our brand and reputation. Additionally,
advertisements or actions of our advertisers may affect our brand 16Table of Contentsand reputation if Redditors do not think the advertisements help them accomplish their
objectives, view the advertisements as intrusive, annoying, or misleading, or have poor experiences with our advertisers.Our brand and reputation may also be negatively
affected by the content or actions of Redditors that are deemed to be offensive, inappropriate, hostile, or otherwise objectionable to other Redditors, by the actions of
Redditors acting under false or inauthentic pretenses, by the use of our products or services to disseminate information that is deemed to be misleading, or by the use of our
service for illicit, illegal, or objectionable ends. We also may fail to respond expeditiously or at all to the sharing of illegal, illicit, offensive, inappropriate, hostile, or otherwise
objectionable content on our platform or to objectionable practices by advertisers, or to otherwise address Redditorsa€™ concerns, which could erode confidence in our brand
and damage our reputation. We expect that our ability to identify and respond to such content in a timely manner may decrease as the number of Redditors grows, as the
amount of content on our platform increases, or as we expand our product and service offerings, such as an increase in video content. Any governmental or regulatory inquiry,
investigation, or action, including based on the appearance of illegal, illicit, or objectionable content on our platform or the failure to comply with applicable laws, rules, and
regulations, could damage our brand and reputation, regardless of the outcome.We receive a high degree of media coverage globally. We have experienced, and expect to
continue to experience, media, legislative, governmental, and regulatory scrutiny of our decisions. Unfavorable publicity and scrutiny involving us, including regarding our
data privacy, intellectual property, content, or other practices, product changes, product quality, pricing increases, litigation, or regulatory action, or regarding the actions of
our employees, Redditors, moderators, or advertisers, or other issues, may significantly harm our brand and reputation, and could adversely affect the size, demographics,
engagement, and loyalty of our user base. For instance, in May and June 2023, we experienced negative publicity as a result of our API policy changes. In addition,
unfavorable publicity and scrutiny of other companies in our industry, including controversies surrounding their product design choices, content-related decisions, or their
data privacy practices, could also have a negative impact on our brand and reputation. These concerns, whether actual or unfounded, may also deter Redditors or advertisers
from using our service.In addition, we may fail to adequately address the needs of Redditors or our advertisers, which could erode confidence in our brand and damage our
reputation. If we fail to promote and maintain the &€ceReddita€ brand or preserve our reputation, or if we incur excessive expenses in this effort, our business, results of
operations, financial condition, and prospects could be harmed.Changes in internet search engine algorithms and dynamics could have a negative impact on traffic for our
website and, ultimately, our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.Our success depends partly on our ability to attract online visitors to our
website. We rely, in part, on internet search engines, such as Google, to generate traffic to our website, primarily through free or organic searches. Search engines frequently
update and change the logic that determines the placement and display of the results of a usera€™s search, such that the purchased or algorithmic placement of links to our
websites may be ranked lower in the search results or otherwise less visible in a usera€™s search. In addition, a search engine could, for competitive or other purposes, alter
its search algorithms or results, causing our website to place lower in organic search query results. If a major search engine changes its algorithms in a manner that
negatively affects the search engine ranking of our website or those of our partners, our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects could be adversely
affected.We may not sustain our growth rate, and our results of operations may fluctuate from quarter to quarter, which makes them difficult to predict.Although we had net
income for the three months ended September 30, 2024 and December 31, 2024, we have previously incurred net losses since our inception, and we may incur net losses in
the future. We incurred net losses of $(484.3) million, $(90.8) million, and $(158.6) million for the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively. As of
DecemberA 31, 2024, we had an accumulated deficit of $(1.2) billion. We also expect our costs and expenses to increase in future periods, and if our revenue growth does not
increase to more than offset these anticipated increases in our costs and expenses, our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects will be harmed, and
we may not be able to maintain profitability. We expect our costs and expenses to increase in future periods as we intend to continue to make significant investments to
broaden our user base, develop and implement new products, market new and existing products and promote our brand, expand our technical infrastructure, and hire
additional employees (with a related expected increase in payroll and stock-based compensation expense). Some of these investments may generate only limited revenue and
reduce our operating margin. If our investments are not successful, our ability to increase revenue may be adversely affected. In addition, our quarterly results of operations
have fluctuated in the past and will fluctuate in the future, based on the seasonality of our business as well as external factors impacting the global economy. For example, we
have historically seen seasonality in our business and financial results, with an increase in overall advertiser spending in the fourth quarter, due in 17Table of Contentslarge
part to end-of-year advertiser spending, typically followed by a weaker first quarter. Our results of operations and financial condition in any given quarter can be influenced by
numerous factors, many of which we are unable to predict or are outside of our control, including:a€¢our ability to maintain and grow our DAU(q, as well as usersa€™ activity
on Reddit;a€¢the level of demand for our products and services;a€¢the development and introduction or termination of new products, features, or services by us or our
competitors;a€¢seasonal or other fluctuations in spending by our advertisers or in Redditor usage or engagement on our platform, including, but not limited to, around
significant planned events such as the Super Bowl and unplanned ones like natural disasters;a€¢our ability to attract and retain advertisers;a€¢our pricing models and our
ability to maintain or improve revenue and operating margins;a€¢increases in marketing, sales, and other operating expenses that we may incur to grow and expand our
operations and to remain competitive;a€¢our ability to successfully expand internationally and penetrate key demographics, including our focus markets in Brazil, France,
Germany, India, Italy, the Philippines, and the U.K.;a4€¢fluctuations in currency exchange rates and changes in the proportion of our revenue and expenses denominated in
foreign currencies;a€¢fluctuations in the market values of our portfolio investments and interest rates or impairments of any assets on our consolidated balance sheet;a€
¢changes in our effective tax rate;a€¢changes in accounting standards or the application of existing or future accounting standards; a€¢system failures or actual or perceived
data breaches or other security or privacy-related incidents, and the costs associated with such failures, breaches, and remediations;a€¢changes in governmental or other
regulations affecting our business or adverse litigation judgments and related compliance costs, fines, or litigation- and dispute-related costs; anda€¢other risks described in
this report.As a result, our past quarterly results of operations are not necessarily indicative of future performance. We are in the early stages of monetizing our business and
expanding our platform internationally, and there is no assurance that we will be able to scale our business for future growth.We are in the early stages of our monetization
efforts, and as such, we are still scaling our advertising revenue model. Our growth strategy depends on, among other things, attracting more advertisers, scaling our
business with existing advertisers, and expanding our advertising services, as well as successfully identifying and capturing non-advertising sources of revenue. There is no
assurance that this revenue model will be successful or that we will generate increased revenue. To sustain or increase our advertising revenue, we must attract new
advertisers, encourage existing advertisers to maintain or increase their advertising spend on our platform, expand the number of markets where we offer advertising, and
increase the breadth and functionality of our advertising services, including new advertising formats and measurement tools. In order to obtain new advertisers and further
our relationship with current advertisers, we must increase the amount of monetizable content on our platform, including by increasing the absolute number of DAUq who
post and consume content, and our monetization model depends on this engagement. Not all DAUq monetize in the same manner or rate, so we also measure the average
revenue per unique (2€eARPUA€) to help us understand the extent to which we are monetizing DAUq. Much of our DAUq growth to date has come from certain users, such as
logged-out users or users located outside the United States, who may represent lower monetization opportunities. There is no assurance that our user growth or engagement
strategy will continue to be successful or that we will increase the number of DAUq, ARPU, or the amount of monetizable content on our platform. 18Table of ContentsWithout
such growth, we could see our supply of monetizable inventory stay constant or decrease, which may limit or hinder our ability to increase revenue.As we continue to grow
our advertiser base, our revenue depends on our ability to effectively serve enough advertisements that meet the objectives of our advertisers while maintaining a high-
quality, relevant, reliable, trustworthy, and innovative user experience. If we are unable to do this on our platform due to either a decline in DAU(q, or changes in our products
or services or Redditor behavior that reduce our ability to display as many advertisements as our advertisers may request, our business, results of operations, financial
condition, and prospects would be adversely affected. Our advertising business can be inventory constrained at times, and the attendant impact on the supply and pricing of
our advertising inventory could affect the financial performance of our business. We could find ourselves unable to match customer advertising specifications with available
inventory, leaving us unable to deliver the advertising inventory requested and receiving less revenue than otherwise expected. This also could put upward pressure on
advertising prices and potentially impact the return advertisers get on their spend, which in turn could affect future advertiser spending. To scale the growth of our
advertising services, we will have to successfully develop and target ad products tailored to the interests of our advertising customers and our user base, which may require
additional user data. If we are unable to do this with the data, technology, and resources available to us, we may need to rely more heavily on alternative revenue sources to
grow our business.We will continue to identify and develop potential new revenue streams. We have explored and continue to explore different ways for Redditors to make
money on Reddit, including Reddita€™s earnings programs for contributors, developers, and creators, while also providing a source of revenue for Reddit as well. We also
continue to explore reasonable content licensing opportunities as another possible source of revenue where those opportunities do not conflict with our values and the rights



of our Redditors and have only recently generated revenue from this opportunity. There are many aspects of these possible revenue sources which are novel and untested,
which makes it challenging to evaluate the viability of any future revenue opportunities or to identify the risks and challenges we may encounter in seeking to execute on our
strategies. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in generating meaningful revenue from any of these non-advertising sources. If we are unable to succeed in
these monetization efforts or identify new revenue opportunities, our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects could be harmed. In addition, we plan
to continue expanding our business operations outside the United States and offering content and advertising to Redditors and advertisers in other languages and countries.
We plan to continue to enter new international markets where we have limited or no experience in deploying our services or selling advertisements. In order to expand
successfully, we need to offer content and products that are tailored to the interests of local Redditors and the needs of local advertisers, each of which requires significant
investment of time and resources. As we expand into new international markets, we may not yet understand the full scope of prospective usersa€™ interests, demographics,
and culture, or advertiser expectations, target audiences, and return on advertising spend, in those markets. This may cause us to expand into markets before we are able to
offer a service and advertising platform that has been sufficiently localized for those markets or where those markets lack the necessary demand and infrastructure for long-
term adoption of our services. If we are unsuccessful in deploying, scaling, or managing our operations in international markets, our business, results of operations, financial
condition, and prospects could be adversely affected.We generate a majority of our revenue from advertising. We face intense competition for advertising spend both inside
and outside the United States, and we are subject to a rapidly evolving technology landscape. If we fail to attract or retain advertisers, or advertisers do not maintain or
increase their advertising budgets, our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects could be adversely affected. A majority of our revenue is generated
from third parties advertising on our platform. For the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, approximately 91% and 98% of our revenue was generated from third
parties advertising on our platform, respectively. In addition, a substantial portion of our revenue is derived from a small number of advertisers, with our top ten largest
customers accounting for approximately 25% and 26% of our revenue for the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. As is common in our industry, our
advertisers do not have long-term advertising commitments with us, and we are at risk if we lose any major advertisers or experience a deterioration in our relationships with
them or their agencies. Our advertising revenue could be adversely affected by a number of factors, including: 4€¢our advertisersa€™ inability to optimize their campaigns or
measure the results of their campaigns;a€¢our inability to increase ARPU or otherwise monetize DAUq at the same or higher rate as DAUq growth, including if that growth
occurs in markets that do not generate as much revenue as the United States;a€¢restrictions placed on, or the relevance of, ads outside of the United States, such as China,
where Reddit is not directly accessible;19Table of Contentsa€¢product or service changes we may make that change the size, frequency, or relative prominence of ads
displayed on our platform or otherwise impact Redditor engagement with ads;a€¢our inability to effectively monetize our international user base or our logged-out
audience;a€¢the impact of new technologies or access to Reddit content through third-party applications that block or obscure the display of our ads;a€¢timing and resources
required to attract advertisers;a€¢adverse legal developments relating to advertising or advertising effectiveness measurement tools, including legislative and regulatory
developments, and developments in litigation; anda€¢other risks described in this report. We also face intense competition from a wide range of platforms and traditional
media, and ongoing advancements in ad-blocking technology may undermine the effectiveness of our advertising, further challenging our ability to maintain and grow
revenue. The volatility of advertiser spending, particularly in response to economic uncertainty, could exacerbate these risks, making it difficult for us to predict future
performance or ensure consistent growth. The occurrence of any of these or other factors could result in a reduction in demand for our ads, which may reduce the prices we
receive for our ads, either of which would negatively affect our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects. Additionally, our international expansion
introduces additional risks, such as operational challenges and regulatory compliance, which could further harm our revenue growth and results of operations. If we do not
develop successful new products and services or improve existing products and services, our business will suffer.Our ability to retain, increase, and engage Redditors and
increase our revenue depends heavily on our ability to continue to evolve our existing products and services and to create successful new products and services. We have
invested, and expect to continue to invest, in improvements to our platform, significant changes to our existing products and services, new and unproven products and
services, including machine learning and Al, and other initiatives to generate revenue and increase our user base and user engagement. For example, with Reddita€™'s
Contributor Program, we allow users to earn money from their Reddit contributions to the platform and other Redditors.Improvements to our platform, new products and
services, and other initiatives may be costly, difficult to operate, and could divert managementa€™s attention, and there is no guarantee that they will be positively received
by Redditors or provide positive returns on our investment. For example, new ad formats, such as video ads, may be more engaging, and Redditors may consequently spend
less time browsing or searching on our platform, which could adversely affect our revenue. Further, new products or services that we develop may, in certain cases, require
regulatory approval prior to launch, result in increased litigation, or subject us to new or enhanced governmental or regulatory requirements or scrutiny. There is no
guarantee that we will be able to obtain any required regulatory approval, and our efforts to comply with these laws and regulations could be costly and divert
managementa€™s time and effort and may still not guarantee compliance. These new products and updates may also fail to increase the engagement of Redditors and our
advertisers or partners, and may even result in short- or long-term decreases in such engagement by disrupting existing Redditor, advertiser, or partner behavior or by
introducing performance and quality issues. In addition, in some cases, we may have little or no prior experience related to developing the technologies underlying the new
products and services. If our new or enhanced products or services fail to engage, or meet the expectations of, Redditors or our advertisers or developers, or if our business
plans or new approaches to monetization are unsuccessful, we may fail to attract new users, retain existing Redditors, or generate sufficient revenue, operating margin, or
other value to justify our investments, and our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects could be harmed. Our business relies on an approach to
content moderation that, while empowering community-led authenticity, can also result in content on the platform that can be unrelatable, offensive, and that may pose
inherent risks.Our business relies on a layered approach to content moderation. While our communities self-organize and set out rules that are tailored to the unique
circumstances of their communities, we provide a set of overarching rules and policies that are intended to be protective, not intrusive. Our site-wide rules prohibit behavior
such as harassment, bullying, and violence, including hate based on identity or vulnerability, but are not intended to be exhaustive of every potential situation that every
community could encounter. Instead, we rely on our communities to self-organize and supplement our site-wide rules by devising their own rules that are tailored to the
unique circumstances of their particular community. Between our rules and the rules devised by our communities, we may not be able to adequately anticipate and cover
every situation where offensive, inappropriate, hostile, or otherwise objectionable content may arise.20Table of ContentsThere can also be significant good faith differences in
opinion as to whether particular content violates our site-wide rules or the rules of a specific community. We and our moderators may inconsistently apply the rules, or make
decisions regarding content with which other Redditors disagree. From time to time, we and the moderators may need to make difficult moderation decisions that are highly
publicized or controversial, including those that result in the departure or disengagement of large numbers of Redditors.Our approach to content moderation inherently
subjects us to numerous risks, including that we may:a€¢fail to respond in a timely manner, or at all, to the sharing of illegal, illicit, abusive, harmful, or objectionable content
on our platform;a€c¢have difficulty identifying offensive, inappropriate, hostile, or otherwise objectionable content, and separating such content from that which is otherwise
permissible on our platform; for example, where the content is mistagged or misreported or where there are defects in our automated systems;a€¢be more likely to be subject
to claims relating to information or content that is published or made available on our platform, including enforcement actions with respect to such information or content;a€
¢have an increased risk of reputational harm in the event that content or actions of some Redditors are deemed to be hostile or inappropriate, even if that content is permitted
under our policies;a€¢be unable to retain a sufficient number of volunteer moderators, or ensure that our moderators will fairly and consistently enforce our rules, either of
which could significantly degrade the community experience for other Redditors; a€¢have an increased risk of negative publicity based on our decisions, or the decisions of
our moderators, with respect to permitted or prohibited content; anda€¢be unable to monetize a significant portion of the content available through our platform and the
DAU(q accessing such content, if we or our advertising partners deem it unsuitable.Even where we or the moderators enforce our rules against an individual or group of
individuals whom we have identified as violating our rules, we cannot ensure that such individuals do not continue to disrupt our platform. Banned individuals can attempt to
evade enforcement by creating a new account. Banned communities may try to reestablish under a different subreddit name. Bad actors may try to repost removed content.
While we continue to work on improving our detection capabilities regarding these types of enforcement evasion, we may be unable to prevent such individuals or
communities from further disrupting our platform and producing content that violates our rules.If users or potential users perceive the content available on Reddit to be
offensive, inappropriate, hostile, or otherwise objectionable, or if they perceive such content to be representative of our community experience, our reputation would be
harmed and we may experience a decline in user growth, retention, and engagement. In addition, some people may perceive our layered approach to content moderation to
mean that Reddit condones offensive, inappropriate, hostile, or otherwise objectionable content that is not removed from our platform. Growth in these perceptions could
harm our reputation or impair our ability to maintain good relationships with our advertisers or attract new advertisers, which may seriously harm our business. We face
significant competition for advertising spend, and if advertising partners perceive our platform to be associated with content deemed to be offensive, inappropriate, hostile, or
otherwise objectionable or problematic, our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects could be adversely affected.We rely on an approach to content
moderation that depends on Redditors who volunteer to be moderators of their communities. If we fail to retain a sufficient number of moderators who are willing to work in
good faith within our policies or if we fail to properly manage our relationship with moderators, or if a sizable number of moderators choose to take actions that disrupt our
services, our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects could be adversely affected.Redditors who volunteer to be moderators of Reddit communities
are an important part of our businessa€™ ecosystem. Each community relies on one or more moderators who not only review content but also define and enforce community
rules. Our business relies on moderators to engage in good faith and to manage their subreddits in a manner that meets the needs of the subredditd€™s members. Our
approach to content moderation depends on the activities of the moderators to protect the experiences of the members of their communities. Our approach requires that
moderators be sufficiently active in their moderation activities, depending on the size and scale of their communities. For the larger communities, the need for moderators can
be significant, requiring ever-increasing numbers of moderators willing to volunteer their time to effectively scale with the size of the community. In addition, the enforcement
demands placed on moderators can increase dramatically on short notice if traffic 21Table of Contentsto a particular subreddit increases due to current events or trends, for
example, r/A wallstreetbets, or if a community is subject to coordinated spam or abuse campaigns, despite the availability of tools and the efforts of our employees who
oversee and enforce site-wide rules. As communities grow, it can become more and more challenging for communities to find qualified people willing to act as
moderators.Moreover, moderators within a community may disagree on the vision for, or direction of, the community, or may simply decide not to work together, resulting in
a degraded community experience and subreddit disruption, instability, stagnation, or even dissolution. Moderators, even when acting in good faith, may have different values
or viewpoints than what others view as socially acceptable or, worse, may be bad actors against whom we need to enforce our rules.While we provide tools to our communities
to manage their subreddits, our moderators also rely on their own and third-party tools. Any disruption to, or lack of availability of, these third-party tools could harm our
moderatorsa€™ ability to review content and enforce community rules. Further, if we are unable to provide effective support for third-party moderation tools, develop our own
such tools, or otherwise change what tools are available to moderators, our moderators could decide to leave our platform and may encourage their communities to follow
them to a new platform, which would adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.Because moderators are volunteers, any
moderator can decide to stop acting as a moderator and participate only as a community member, or to leave our platform entirely. Certain moderators, especially those who
moderate large communities or a large number of communities, may be able to leverage their influence within those communities to change the dynamics of the discourse
within the communities or to disrupt the normal operation of their communities or other communities on our platform. Moderators can also band together and, for various
reasons, including changes to Reddita€™s product or policies, decide to shut down the normal operation of their communities in a manner that degrades the experiences of all
Redditors in the affected communities and that can negatively impact Redditors who continue to use our service and reduce the amount of monetizable content generated by
Redditors. For example, in response to certain changes to our API policies in June 2023, moderators of certain communities inhibited normal operations of the communities
they operate, in many cases in violation of our site-wide rules. While these activities have not historically had a material impact on our business or results of operations,
similar actions by moderators and/or their communities in the future could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.Our ability to
generate revenue depends on the development and availability of tools to accurately measure the effectiveness of advertisements on our platform.Most advertisers rely on
tools that measure the effectiveness of their ad campaigns or that verify viewability of their ads on our platform in order to allocate their advertising spend among various
formats and platforms. If we are unable to measure the effectiveness of advertising on our platform or we are unable to convince advertisers that our platform should be part
of a larger advertising budget, our ability to increase the demand and pricing of our advertising products and maintain or scale our advertising revenue will be limited. Our
tools may be less developed than those of other platforms with which we compete for advertising spend, in particular relative to those platforms that collect more personal
information than we do. Therefore, our ability to develop and offer tools that accurately measure the effectiveness of a campaign or verify ad viewability on our platform will



be critical to our ability to attract new advertisers and retain, and increase spend from, our existing advertisers.Developing and improving these tools may require significant
time and resources and additional investment, and in some cases we rely on third parties to provide data and technology needed to provide certain measurement or
verification data to our advertisers. If we cannot continue to develop and improve our advertising tools in a timely fashion, those tools are not reliable, difficult to use, or
otherwise unsatisfactory to our advertisers, or the measurement or verification results are inconsistent with advertiser goals, our advertising revenue could be adversely
affected.In addition, web and mobile browser developers, such as Apple, Microsoft, and Google, have implemented, and may continue to implement, changes in their browser
or device operating systems that impair our ability to measure traffic in general and, in particular, the effectiveness of advertising on our platform. Such changes include
limiting the use of first-party and third-party cookies, such as Applea€™s launch of its Intelligent Tracking Prevention (a€ceITPa€) feature in its Safari browser. They also
include Applea€™s App Tracking Transparency framework which imposes additional user permissions for certain types of user tracking. Even in situations where we do not
engage in the type of user tracking that is the target of such changes, these restrictions nevertheless may make it more difficult for us to measure our traffic in general, and,
in particular, impair or limit our advertising attribution and conversion capabilities. Such restrictions, in combination with evolving legal and regulatory requirements, may
impede our ability to attract and retain advertisers who rely on access to such data.We rely heavily on our ability to collect and share data and metrics to help new and
existing advertisers understand the performance of advertising campaigns. If advertisers do not perceive our metrics to be accurate representations of our user base 22Table
of Contentsand user engagement, or if we discover inaccuracies in our metrics, they may be less willing to allocate their budgets or resources to our platform, which could
harm our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects. See a€aea€”We rely on internal company data, assumptions, and estimates to calculate certain of
our key metrics, and real or perceived inaccuracies in such current or historical metrics may harm our reputation and negatively affect our business.a€Reddit growth and
engagement depends upon effective interoperation with external ecosystems, like operating systems, application stores, networks, devices, web browsers, regulations, and
standards that we do not control. If we are unable to adapt to product and policy changes in such ecosystems, or if we do not effectively operate with or receive favorable
placements within such ecosystems, our usage could decline and our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects could be adversely affected.Because we
make our products and services available across a variety of operating systems, networks, and websites, we are dependent on the interoperability of our products and services
with popular devices, desktop and mobile operating systems, and web browsers that we do not control, such as Mac OS, Windows, Android, iOS, Chrome, Safari, and Firefox.
Any changes to these operating systems, devices, web browsers, or online stores distributing our apps that impact the accessibility, speed, or functionality of our products and
services or give preferential treatment to competitive products could harm usage of our products and services. Further, if such operating systems or application stores limit
the availability of our apps, make changes that degrade the functionality of our apps, increase the cost of using our apps, impose terms of use unsatisfactory to us, limit our
ability to target or measure the effectiveness of ads, or modify their search or ratings algorithms in ways that are detrimental to us, or if our competitorsa€™ placement in
such mobile operating systemsa€™ application store is more prominent than the placement of our apps, our user growth could be adversely affected. Any changes in such
operating systems and application stores that degrade the functionality of our apps or give preferential treatment to our competitorsa€™ apps could also adversely affect our
platforma€™s usage across devices. For example, some operating systems have implemented or explored changes to the underlying application architecture, such as
Appleda€™s App Tracking Transparency, or specialized infrastructure for advertisement-driven app installations, such as SKAdNetwork, which reduce our ability to target and
measure advertising and, in turn, may negatively impact the size of the budgets that advertisers are willing to commit to us. Some marketplaces have explored changing their
policies regarding what content is acceptable within an application. If we are unable to adapt to such changes, this could adversely affect our platforma€™s access to and
usage within those ecosystems. Moreover, if the number of platforms for which we develop our products expands, it will result in an increase in our operating expenses.As
new mobile devices and mobile platforms are released, there is no guarantee that certain mobile devices will continue to support our platform or effectively roll out updates to
our apps. Additionally, in order to deliver high-quality apps, we need to ensure that our products and services are designed to work effectively with a range of mobile
technologies, systems, networks, and standards. We may not be successful in developing or maintaining relationships with key participants in the mobile industry that
enhance Redditorsa€™ experience. If Redditors encounter any difficulty accessing or using our apps on their mobile devices or if we are unable to adapt to changes in popular
mobile operating systems, our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects could be adversely affected.Additionally, we are subject to the standard
policies and terms of service of these operating systems, as well as policies and terms of service of the various application stores that make our apps and experiences available
to our developers, creators, and users. These policies and terms of service govern the availability, promotion, distribution, content, and operation generally of applications and
experiences on such operating systems and stores. Each provider of these operating systems and stores has broad discretion to change and interpret its terms of service and
policies with respect to our platform and those changes may be unfavorable to us and our developersa€™, creatorsa€™, and usersa€™ use of our platform. If we were to
violate, or an operating system provider or application store believes that we have violated, its terms of service or policies, that operating system provider or application store
could limit or discontinue our access to its operating system or store. In some cases these requirements may not be clear or our interpretation of the requirements may not
align with the interpretation of the operating system provider or application store, which could lead to inconsistent enforcement of these terms of service or policies against
us, and could also result in the operating system provider or application store limiting or discontinuing access to its operating system or store. Any limitation on or
discontinuation of our access to any third-party platform or application store could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.We
rely on internal company data, assumptions, and estimates to calculate certain of our key metrics, and real or perceived inaccuracies in such current or historical metrics may
harm our reputation and negatively affect our business.We regularly review metrics, including our DAUq metric, to evaluate growth trends, measure our performance, and
make strategic decisions. We calculate our DAUq using internal company data. While this number is based on what we believe to be reasonable calculations for the applicable
period of measurement, there are inherent challenges in measuring DAUq. DAU(q is intended to capture traffic where a Reddit page has been viewed or the Reddit app opened
at least once and, notably, include both traffic from those who have logged in to a registered account as well as from those who have not logged in tod€”or do not 23Table of
Contentshavea€”a registered account. In general, it is more challenging to accurately count logged-out traffic, since counting accuracy is dependent on deduplicating traffic
where we do not have a registered user identifier. While we use various techniques to detect whether the same user has performed multiple views, including cookies and
traffic analysis, these techniques are not guaranteed to accurately deduplicate the traffic, especially for logged-out traffic. In addition, some visitors browse Reddit using an
a€meincognitoa€ or a€ceprivate browsinga€ mode. Given the privacy protections surrounding such traffic, we often do not have adequate information to accurately deduplicate
such traffic.Our DAUq metrics may also be impacted by our efforts to reduce the number of false, spam, and bot accounts in existence on our platform. We regularly
deactivate false, spam, and bot accounts that violate our terms or policies, and exclude these users from the calculation of our DAUq metric; however, we will not succeed in
identifying and removing all false, spam, and bot accounts, which means that our DAUq count could be overstated. We are continually seeking to improve our ability to
estimate the total number of false, spam, and bot accounts and eliminate them from the calculation of our DAUq, although our quarterly average DAUq metric may continue to
reflect such accounts if, in our view, the impact of their inclusion has an immaterial impact on our average DAU( for the given quarter. Moreover, a single person or
organization may hold multiple accounts and may use more than one account to perform multiple views within a relevant period. We lack adequate information to effectively
deduplicate such traffic from different registered accounts that may come from the same person or organization. As such, the calculation of our DAUq may not accurately
reflect the actual number of people or organizations using our platform.A portion of our historical DAUq metric counts views of pages that were hosted using Googled€™s
Accelerated Mobile Page (4€0eAMP4a€) framework. The accuracy of counting the DAUq attributable to this AMP traffic relies on the accuracy and completeness of information
received from Google used to compute the DAUq metric. Unfortunately, the information provided by Google historically was not complete and consistent. To the extent that
our historical metric includes views of pages hosted on third-party infrastructure, like Googlea€™s deprecated AMP framework, the accuracy of our metrics will depend on the
accuracy and consistency of the information received from any such third party. As a result of these and any future changes, our DAUq metric is not directly comparable
quarter over quarter or year over year, and may not be comparable period over period in the future.The risks and challenges relating to our DAUq metric are also applicable
to our WAU(q metric, and while we may consider and possibly disclose other metrics in the future, such as a count of monthly visitors, there may be additional challenges with
accurately counting such metrics. For example, deduplicating screenviews across an entire week, such as with our WAUq metric, or across an entire month exacerbates the
deduplication challenges described above. In certain cases, we may need to rely on estimation techniques to improve the accuracy of such metrics. The accuracy of these
techniques will depend on the methodologies chosen, resulting in a metric that may not accurately reflect the monthly traffic to our platform. We regularly review and
continually seek to improve the accuracy of and our ability to track such data, but given the complexity of the systems involved and the rapidly changing nature of mobile
devices and systems, we expect to continue to encounter challenges, particularly if we continue to expand in parts of the world where mobile data systems and connections
are less stable. In addition, we may improve or change our methodologies for tracking these metrics over time, which could result in unexpected changes to our metrics,
including the metrics we publicly disclose. As a result, while any future periods may benefit from such improvement or change, prior periods may not be as accurate or
comparable, or we may need to adjust such prior periods. The methodologies used to measure these metrics require significant judgment and are also susceptible to
algorithmic or other technical errors. In addition, our methodologies for tracking these metrics may change over time, which could result in unexpected changes to our
metrics, including the metrics we publicly disclose. If the internal systems and tools we use to track these metrics undercount or overcount performance or contain
algorithmic or other technical errors, the data we report may not be accurate. Further, as our business develops, we may revise or cease reporting metrics if we determine
that such metrics are no longer accurate or appropriate measures of our performance.Errors or inaccuracies in our metrics or data could also result in incorrect business
decisions and inefficiencies. For instance, if a significant understatement or overstatement of active users were to occur, we may expend resources to implement unnecessary
business measures or fail to take required actions to attract a sufficient number of users to satisfy our growth strategies. In addition, our advertising partners rely on our
metrics to inform ad spend. Inaccuracies or perceived inaccuracies in our metrics, may result in advertisers spending less with us, which could negatively affect our revenue.
We continually seek to address technical issues in our ability to record such data and improve our accuracy, but given the complexity of the systems involved and the rapidly
changing nature of mobile devices and systems, we expect these issues to continue, particularly if we continue to expand in parts of the world where mobile data systems and
connections are less stable. If our operational metrics are not accurate representations of our business, or if investors do not perceive these metrics to be accurate, or if we
discover material inaccuracies with respect to these figures, our reputation may be significantly harmed, the market price of our Class A 24Table of Contentscommon stock
could decline, we may be subject to stockholder litigation, and our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects could be adversely affected.Disruptions or
other business interruptions that affect the availability of our platform could adversely impact our operations and overall business.Currently, our cloud service infrastructure
is run on our cloud services providers (a€ceCSPsa€), which are currently Amazon Web Services and Google Cloud Platform. We have experienced, and expect in the future
that we may experience from time to time, interruptions, delays, or outages in service availability due to a variety of factors, including outages at our CSPs. Capacity
constraints could arise from a number of causes such as technical failures, natural disasters, fraud, or data breaches or other security incidents or attacks. Our platforma€™s
continuing and uninterrupted performance is critical to our success, and any disruption of, or interference with, our use of CSPs could impair our ability to deliver our
solutions to our users, resulting in legal liability, user dissatisfaction, damage to our reputation, loss of users, and harm to our business. The level of service provided by our
CSPs, or regular or prolonged interruptions in that service, could also impact the use of, and Redditorsa€™ satisfaction with, our platform and could harm our business and
reputation. Since our platforma€™s continuing and uninterrupted performance is important to our success, sustained or repeated system failures would reduce the
attractiveness of our platform. In addition, hosting costs may increase as our user base grows, which could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial
condition, and prospects.Furthermore, our CSPs have discretion to change and interpret their terms of service and other policies with respect to us, including on contract
renewal, and those actions may be unfavorable to our business operations. Our CSPs may also take actions beyond our control that could seriously harm our business,
including discontinuing or limiting our access to one or more cloud services, increasing pricing terms, terminating or seeking to terminate our contractual relationship
altogether (which they may be able to do for their convenience), or altering how we are able to process data in a way that is unfavorable or costly to us. If our arrangements
with either of our CSPs were terminated, we could experience interruptions on our platform and in our ability to make our content available to customers, as well as delays
and additional expenses in arranging for alternative cloud infrastructure services. Such a transition may require technical changes to our platform, including, but not limited
to, our cloud service infrastructure which was designed to run on our CSPs. Making such changes could be costly in terms of time and financial resources and could adversely
affect our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.Further, a significant natural disaster or other catastrophic event, such as an earthquake, fire,
flood, power outage, telecommunications failure, cyberattack, war, terrorist attack, sabotage, other intentional acts of vandalism or misconduct, geopolitical event, pandemic
or other public health crisis, such as the COVID-19 pandemic, or other catastrophic occurrence could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition,
and prospects. We have offices and a significant number of employees in the San Francisco Bay Area, a region known for seismic activity. Furthermore, escalation of



geopolitical tensions, including as a result of escalations in the ongoing conflict between Russia and Ukraine, or the recent escalation of conflict in the Middle East, could have
a broader impact that expands into other markets where we do business, which could adversely affect our business, vendors, partners, Redditors, or the economy as a whole.
Despite any precautions we may take, the occurrence of a natural disaster or other unanticipated problems could result in lengthy interruptions in our services or disruptions
in our activities or the activities of our vendors, partners, Redditors, or the economy as a whole. All of the aforementioned risks may be further increased if our disaster
recovery plans prove to be inadequate. We do not carry business interruption insurance sufficient to compensate us for the potentially significant losses, including the
potential harm to our business that may result from interruptions in our ability to provide our products and services. Any such natural disaster or man-made problem could
adversely impact our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.If we fail to detect attempts to manipulate our platform, including fraudulent activity
within our advertising systems, Redditors and our advertisers could lose confidence in us, thereby damaging our reputation and deterring usage of our products and
services.We are exposed to a variety of forms of problematic activity across our platform, including sophisticated attempts by bad actors to manipulate our systems to
generate traffic that may not represent genuine Redditor interest or intent. For example, an attacker may attempt to automate the activities of an account or multiple
accounts using a &€cebota€ so as to mimic authentic user activity, such as posting, commenting, voting, or clicking and engaging with advertisements. This sort of
manipulation can result in the promotion of inauthentic, low-quality content that is false, misleading, illegal, or undesirable. It can degrade the quality of our services and can
also undermine the operation of our monetization systems, including our advertising systems, resulting in incorrect counting and charging of advertising partners.While we
invest in efforts to detect and prevent inauthentic content or invalid traffic, including investments in proprietary technologies to detect and address content and vote
manipulation, we may be unable to adequately detect and prevent such abuses. If we fail to detect and prevent such abuse, it could hurt our reputation for authentic
engagement and reduce use of our 25Table of Contentsplatforms, harming our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects. Advertisers may seek
refunds for activity that they deem inauthentic. Even where we are able to detect fraudulent activity, this may result in a need to provide retroactive refunds for historical
inauthentic activity, further harming our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.We have explored, and will continue to explore, business
opportunities in content licensing for purposes including machine learning, business analysis, display, and training generative AI models. We are in the early stages of our
content licensing efforts, and the market for content is new and evolving rapidly. There is no assurance that we will be able to sustain revenues from these efforts.We have
explored, and will continue to explore, business opportunities in licensing Reddit content for purposes that do not conflict with our values and the rights of Redditors. We are
only in the early stages of these content licensing efforts and we may not be able to grow these efforts into a sustainable business. The licensing of content for machine
learning and Al training purposes is a novel business model without an established track record, which makes it difficult to evaluate our future prospects and the risks and
challenges we may encounter in seeking to execute on this opportunity. Although we have negotiated content agreements with a number of partners that are medium-term in
length, to date, substantially all of the contract value associated with our licensing revenue is derived from two of our partners, and these arrangements may not be renewed,
or they may be renewed based on less favorable terms, such as using fewer services at lower pricing. Our content license agreements are subject to terms and conditions,
including API performance requirements, that we may be unable to meet. In addition, our existing content licensing agreements may be terminated, not renewed, or renewed
on less favorable terms. The commercial market for LLMs may not develop or may be limited by regulation or other factors, and accordingly, the value of content for AI
training purposes may be reduced over time, and we may also not be able to secure arrangements on similar terms, or at all, with any other licensees. While our content
licensing arrangements include protections against abuse and misuse of Reddit content, we may be unable to adequately control the misbehavior of partners or adequately
protect our reputation externally and with respect to our communities. Moreover, some companies have and may continue to decline to license Reddit content and use such
content without license given its open nature, even if in violation of the legal terms governing our services. For example, some companies have constructed very large
commercial language models using Reddit content without entering into a license agreement with us. While we plan to vigorously enforce against such entities, such
enforcement activities could take years to resolve, result in substantial expense and divert managementa€™ s attention and other resources, and we may not ultimately be
successful.We are subject to certain risks as a mission-based company.Our missiona€”empower communities and make their knowledge accessible to alla€”and company
values are a significant part of our business strategy and who we are as a company. We believe that Redditors value our commitment to our mission of open discourse.
However, because we hold ourselves to such high standards, and because we believe Redditors and our moderators have high expectations of us, we may be more severely
affected by negative reports or publicity if we fail, or are perceived to have failed, to live up to our mission. As a result, our brand and reputation may be negatively affected by
actions we take that are viewed as contrary to that mission. In addition, adhering to our mission may negatively affect our reputation. For example, we remain under
continued public scrutiny with regard to the moderation of content related to global elections, as we experienced during the 2024 U.S. presidential election. In these or other
circumstances, the damage to our reputation may be greater than to other companies that do not share similar values with us, and it may take us longer to recover from such
an incident and gain back the trust of Redditors.We may make decisions regarding our business and products in accordance with our mission and values that may reduce our
short- or medium-term results of operations if we believe those decisions are consistent with our mission and will improve the aggregate Redditor experience. Although we
expect that our commitment to our mission will, accordingly, improve our financial performance over the long term, these decisions may not be consistent with the
expectations of investors and any longer-term benefits may not materialize within the time frame we expect or at all, which could harm our business, results of operations,
financial condition, and prospects.Risks Related to Human Capital and CultureWe cannot assure you that we will effectively manage our growth.Our employee headcount and
the scope and complexity of our business have increased significantly, with the number of full-time employees increasing to 2,233 as of DecemberA 31, 2024 from 2,013 as of
DecemberA 31, 2023. The growth and expansion of our business and products create significant challenges for our management, including managing multiple relationships
with Redditors, advertisers, partners, and other third parties, and constraining operational and financial resources. 26Table of ContentsIf our operations or the number of
third-party relationships continue to grow, our information-technology systems and our internal controls and procedures may not adequately support our operations. In
addition, some members of our management do not have significant experience managing large global business operations, so our management may not be able to manage
such growth effectively. To effectively manage our growth, we must continue to improve our operational, financial, and management processes and systems and effectively
expand, train, and manage our employee base.Further, although we expect to continue to grow our headcount in future periods, we have in the past, and may in the future,
implement organizational changes to pursue greater efficiency and realign our business and strategic priorities. We may not experience the anticipated benefits, in whole or
in part, of such strategic reprioritizations, and the related organizational changes, including reductions in our workforce, could result in unintended consequences, such as
decreased morale among remaining employees and reputational damage, which could make it more difficult for us to retain existing employees or hire new employees in the
future, greater than anticipated costs, the loss of institutional knowledge and expertise, and increased difficulty managing the scale and complexity of our business. If we do
not effectively redistribute the duties and obligations of departed employees among our remaining employees, or if employees who were not affected by the reduction in our
workforce seek alternative employment, we could incur unplanned additional expenses to ensure adequate resourcing and our productivity and business could be harmed. Our
business depends on attracting and retaining high-quality personnel in sales, services, engineering, marketing, finance, and support functions.Our success depends in large
part on our ability to attract and retain high-quality personnel representing diverse backgrounds, experiences, and skill sets in sales, services, engineering, marketing,
finance, and support functions. Maintaining our brand and reputation, as well as a diverse and inclusive work environment that enables all our employees to thrive, is
important to our ability to recruit and retain employees. Changes to U.S. immigration policies that restrain the flow of technical and professional talent may inhibit our ability
to adequately staff our research and development efforts. Competition for qualified employees is intense in our industry, and the loss of even a few qualified employees, or an
inability to attract, retain, and motivate additional highly skilled employees required for the planned expansion of our business could harm our results of operations and impair
our ability to grow. To attract and retain key personnel, we use various measures, including an equity incentive program. These measures may not be enough to attract and
retain the personnel we require to operate our business effectively. In addition, we have a number of current employees who hold equity in our company or whose equity
awards became substantially vested upon the completion of our initial public offering. As a result, it may be difficult for us to continue to retain and motivate these employees,
and the value of their holdings could affect their decisions about whether they continue to work for us. Our ability to attract, retain, and motivate employees may be adversely
affected by declines in the market price of our Class A common stock. If we issue significant equity to attract new employees or to retain our existing employees, we would
incur substantial additional stock-based compensation expense and the ownership of our existing stockholders would be further diluted.As our company grows and evolves, we
may need to implement more complex organizational management structures, adapt our corporate culture and work environments, streamline our organization, or adjust the
size and structure of our workforce to scale for the future and execute our long-term growth plan. These changes could have an adverse impact on our corporate culture and
employee morale, which could, in turn, adversely affect our reputation as an employer and harm our ability to attract and retain high-quality personnel. If we fail to attract
new personnel, or to retain and motivate our current personnel, our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects could be adversely affected.We depend
on our senior management team and other key employees, and the loss of one or more of these employees could adversely affect our business.Our ability to efficiently execute
our business strategy is dependent upon the continued service and performance of our senior management team and other key employees, particularly Steven Huffman, our
co-founder, Chief Executive Officer, and President. Mr. Huffman is an at-will employee, which means that he could resign or could be terminated for any reason at any time.
Mr. Huffman is critical to the management of our company and instrumental in the development of our technology and our strategic direction, and should he stop working for
us for any reason, it is unlikely that we would be able to immediately find a suitable replacement. The loss of key employees, including members of our senior management
team, could disrupt our operations, adversely impact employee retention and morale, and seriously harm our business. Further, if our senior management team and other key
employees fail to work together effectively and to execute our plans and strategies on a timely basis, our business could be harmed. We also do not currently maintain any
key-person life insurance policies. Even if we were to obtain such policies, the loss of Mr. Huffman or other key employees, including members of our senior management
team, could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.27Table of ContentsWe believe that our corporate culture has contributed
to our success, and if we cannot maintain this culture as we grow, we could lose the innovation, creativity, and teamwork fostered by our culture, and our business may be
harmed.We believe that our corporate culture has been a key contributor to our success. If we do not continue to develop our corporate culture as we grow and evolve, it
could negatively impact our ability to foster the innovation, creativity, and teamwork that we believe is important to support our growth. As our organization grows and we are
required to implement more complex organizational structures, we may find it increasingly difficult to maintain the beneficial aspects of our corporate culture, which could
negatively impact our future success and harm our business.Risks Related to Cybersecurity, Information Systems, and Intellectual PropertyOur business, results of operations,
financial condition, and prospects may be harmed by our failure to timely and effectively scale and adapt our existing technology and infrastructure.As Redditors generate
more content, we may be required to expand and adapt our technology and infrastructure to continue to reliably store, serve, and analyze this content. It may become
increasingly difficult to maintain and improve the performance of our products and services, especially during peak usage times, as our products and services become more
complex and our traffic increases. In addition, because our cloud service infrastructure is run on CSPs, we cannot guarantee that we will be able to expand our infrastructure
to meet demand in a timely manner, or on favorable economic terms. This is particularly challenging with regard to increasing international traffic demands. If Redditors are
not able to access our platform or we are not able to make content available rapidly on our platform, Redditors may seek other channels to obtain the content, and may not
return to Reddit or use Reddit as often in the future, or at all. This would negatively impact our ability to attract new users to Reddit and advertisers and the frequency with
which people return to Reddit. We expect to continue to make investments to maintain and improve the capacity, capability, and reliability of our infrastructure. To the extent
that we do not effectively address capacity constraints, upgrade our systems as needed, and continually develop our technology and infrastructure to accommodate actual and
anticipated changes in technology, our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects may be harmed.We continue to scale the capacity of, and enhance the
capability and reliability of, our infrastructure to support DAUq growth and increased activity on our platform. We expect that investments and expenses associated with our
infrastructure will continue to grow, including operating costs, the cost to acquire additional servers and networking equipment to increase the capacity of our infrastructure,
increased utilization of third-party cloud computing and associated costs thereof, and increased bandwidth costs. The improvement of our infrastructure requires a significant
investment of our managementa€™s time and our financial resources. If we fail to efficiently scale and manage our infrastructure, our business, results of operations, financial
condition, and prospects would be adversely impacted.If our security measures are breached, or if our products and services are subject to attacks involving our systems or
data, some of which contain personal information, or that degrade or deny the ability of users to access our products and services, our products and services may be perceived
as not being secure, Redditors and advertisers may curtail or stop using our products and services, and our reputation, business, results of operations, financial condition, and
prospects could be harmed.We receive, collect, store, maintain, transfer, submit, and otherwise process personal user, employee, advertiser, and other personal, confidential,
or sensitive information, and data breaches and other data security incidents expose us to a risk of loss of, or unauthorized access to, this personal information, litigation, and



potential liability. As such, we are an attractive target for data security attacks by third parties. Any actual or perceived failure to prevent or mitigate data security incidents
or improper access to, or use, acquisition, disclosure, alteration, or destruction of, any such data could result in significant liability and a material loss of revenue resulting
from the adverse impact on our reputation and brand, a diminished ability to retain existing, or attract new customers, and disruption to our business. We rely on third-party
service providers to host or otherwise process some of our data and that of our customers, and any failure by such third party, or any other entity in our collective supply
chain, to prevent or mitigate data security breaches or improper access to, or use, acquisition, disclosure, alteration, or destruction of, such information could have similar
adverse consequences for us.We have experienced in the past, and may in the future experience, cybersecurity attacks (including denial of service, phishing, social
engineering, ransomware, malware, and integrity attacks), computer viruses, software bugs, internet interruptions, disruptions, or losses, spam or other attacks, breach by
intentional or negligent conduct, theft or fraud on the part of employees or other third parties, including state-sponsored organizations with significant financial and
technological resources, terrorism, improper operation, data loss, coding or configuration errors, credential stuffing, human error, natural disasters, and other security
breaches, and as a result, unauthorized parties may impede or deny access to our platform or otherwise obtain access to our data or Redditorsa€™ or advertisersa€™ data,
including personal information. For example, in February 28Table of Contents2023, we experienced a data security incident in which an attacker was able to obtain an
employeea€™s login credentials to gain access to certain contact information, internal documents, source code, and other internal business information. We also regularly
encounter attempts to create false or undesirable user accounts, purchase ads, or take other actions on our platform for purposes such as spamming, engaging in coordinated
information manipulation, or other objectionable ends. Our efforts to address undesirable activity on our platform also increase the risk of retaliatory attack. While we take
efforts to protect our systems and data, including taking steps to protect the integrity of our APIs, there can be no assurance that our safety and security measures (and those
of our third-party providers) will prevent damage to, or interruption or breach of, our information systems, data, and operations. Our technology may fail to adequately secure
the personal information and other data we maintain, and we cannot entirely eliminate the risk of improper or unauthorized access to, or disclosure of, personal information
and other data, other data security events that impact the integrity or availability of personal information or our systems and operations, or the related costs we may incur to
mitigate and remediate the consequences from such events. We may also assume liabilities for breaches experienced by the companies we acquire. Additionally, we cannot
guarantee that our cybersecurity insurance coverage would be sufficient to cover all applicable losses. Any systems failure or compromise of our security that results in the
unauthorized access to, or release of, Redditorsda€™ or advertisersa€™ data or disruption of access to our platform could significantly limit the adoption of our products and
services, as well as harm our reputation and brand and, therefore, our business.In addition, our products operate in conjunction with, and we are dependent upon, third-party
products and components across a broad ecosystem. There have been in the past, and may in the future be, significant attacks on certain of our third-party providers, such as
the LastPass cybersecurity incidents in 2022. We cannot guarantee that our or our third-party providersa€™ systems and networks have not been breached or that they do not
contain exploitable defects or bugs that could result in a breach of, or disruption to, our systems and networks or the systems and networks of third parties that support us
and our services. If there is a security vulnerability, error, or other bug in one of these third-party products or components and if there is a security exploit targeting them, we
could face increased costs, liability claims, reduced revenue, or harm to our reputation or competitive position. The natural sunsetting of third-party products and operating
systems that we use requires that our infrastructure teams reallocate time and attention to migrations and updates, during which period potential security vulnerabilities
could be exploited. Third-party risks may also include insufficient security measures, data location uncertainty, and the possibility of data storage in inappropriate
jurisdictions where laws or security measures may be inadequate, and our ability to monitor our third-party service providersa€™ data security practices are limited. Although
we generally have agreements relating to cybersecurity and data privacy in place with our third-party providers, they are limited in nature and we cannot guarantee that such
agreements will prevent the accidental or unauthorized access to, or disclosure, loss, destruction, disablement, or encryption of, use or misuse of, or modification of, data
(including personal information), or enable us to obtain adequate or any reimbursement from our third-party providers in the event we should suffer any such data security-
related incidents. Due to applicable laws, rules, and regulations, or contractual obligations, we may be held responsible for any information security failure or cybersecurity
attack attributed to our vendors as they relate to the information we share with them. A vulnerability in a third-party service providera€™s software or systems, a failure of
our third-party service providersa€™ safeguards, policies, or procedures, or a breach of any third-party service providera€™s software or systems could result in the
compromise of the confidentiality, integrity, or availability of our systems or the data housed in our third-party solutions.Our information technology systems and data have
been, and may in the future be, subject to increased risks as many of our employees continue to work remotely and utilize network connections, computers, and devices
outside our premises or network, including working at home, while in transit, and in public locations. For example, technologies in our employeesa€™ and service
providersa€™ homes may not be as robust as in our offices and could cause the networks, information systems, applications, and other tools available to employees and
service providers to be more limited or less reliable than in our offices. Further, the security systems in place at our employeesa€™ and service providersa€™ homes, or other
remote work locations, may be less secure than those used in our offices, and while we have implemented technical and administrative safeguards to help protect our systems
as our employees and service providers work remotely, we may be subject to increased cybersecurity risk, which could expose us to risks of data or financial loss, and could
disrupt our business operations. There is no guarantee that the privacy, data security, and data protection safeguards we have put in place will be completely effective or that
we will not encounter risks associated with employees and service providers accessing company data and systems remotely.Moreover, according to U.S. government sources
and others, the conflict involving Russia and Ukraine has resulted in a heightened risk of cyberattacks against companies like ours that have operations, vendors, and/or
supply chain providers located in or around the region of conflict or that are otherwise related to the conflict.Our data security measures may also be breached due to
employee error, malfeasance, theft, fraud, misconduct, or otherwise, or third parties may attempt to fraudulently induce employees, Redditors, or our advertisers to disclose
sensitive or personal information in order to gain access to our data or Redditorsa€™ or advertisersa€™ data or accounts. Since people on Reddit and our advertisers may use
Reddit to establish and maintain online identities, unauthorized communications from Reddit 29Table of Contentsaccounts that have been compromised may damage their
personal security, reputations, and brands as well as our reputation and brand. Because the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access, disable or degrade service, or
sabotage or breach systems continue to evolve in sophistication and volume and often are not recognized until launched against a target, we may be unable to anticipate these
techniques, timely detect and appropriately remediate and respond, defend against such attacks, or implement adequate preventative measures. Moreover, the increasing
sophistication and resources of cyber criminals and other non-state threat actors and increased actions by nation-state actors make keeping up with new threats difficult, as
the techniques used to obtain unauthorized access to, or to sabotage, systems or networks are constantly evolving and generally are not recognized until launched against a
target. Additionally, attackers have used machine learning and AI to launch more automated, targeted, and coordinated attacks against targets. Consequently, we are not
always able to, and may in the future be unable to, anticipate these techniques, detect or react in a timely manner, or implement preventative measures, which could result in
delays in our detection or remediation of, or other response to, data security breaches and other data security-related incidents. If an actual or perceived breach of our or our
third-party providersa€™ data security occurs, Redditors and our advertisers may be harmed, lose trust and confidence in us, decrease the use of our products and services,
or stop using our products and services entirely. In the event of a data security breach, we may also incur significant legal and financial exposure, including as a result of
litigation and other claims, regulatory investigations and inquiries, fines and penalties for non-compliance with applicable data privacy-related laws, rules, or regulations,
remediation costs, or indemnification requests. Any of these actions could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.We
anticipate that our ongoing efforts related to data privacy, safety, security, and content review will identify instances of misuse of user data or other undesirable activity by
third parties on and off our platform.In addition to our efforts to mitigate cybersecurity risks, we are making investments in privacy, safety, security, and content review
efforts to combat misuse of our services and user data by third parties. As a result of these efforts, we may discover incidents of misuse of, or unauthorized access to, user
data or other undesirable activity by third parties. We have taken steps to protect the integrity of our APIs, but despite these efforts, our security measures or those of our
third-party providers or licensees could be insufficient or breached as a result of third-party action, malfeasance, employee errors, service provider errors, technological
limitations, defects or vulnerabilities in our platform or any third-party platform, or otherwise. We may not discover all such incidents or activity, whether as a result of our
data or technical limitations, including our lack of visibility over our encrypted services, the scale of activity on our platform, challenges related to our personnel working
remotely, the allocation of resources to other projects, or other factors, and the media, or other third parties. Such incidents and activities may include the use of user data or
our systems in a manner inconsistent with our terms, contracts, or policies, the existence of false or undesirable user accounts, election interference, improper advertising
practices, activities that threaten peoplea€™ s safety online or offline, or instances of spamming, scraping, data harvesting, unsecured datasets, or spreading misinformation.
For example, third parties often attempt to access and collect Reddit site data through a€cescrapinga€ and other unauthorized mechanisms for unauthorized purposes, such
as distributing such data to other parties for commercial purposes or training Al models for commercial purposes. We may also be unsuccessful in our efforts to enforce our
policies or otherwise remediate any such incidents. Any of the foregoing developments may negatively affect Redditor trust and engagement, harm our reputation and brand,
make it more difficult for us to monetize our APIs, require us to change our business practices in a manner adverse to our business, and negatively affect our business, results
of operations, financial condition, and prospects. Any such developments may also subject us to additional litigation and regulatory inquiries, which could subject us to
monetary penalties and damages, divert managementa€™s time and attention, and lead to enhanced regulatory oversight.Our business depends on continued and unimpeded
access to our products and services on the internet by Redditors and our advertisers. If we or Redditors experience disruptions in internet service or if internet service
providers are able to block, degrade, or charge for access to our products and services, we could incur additional expenses and the loss of users and advertisers, which could
undermine our operations.We depend on the ability of Redditors and our advertisers to access the internet. Currently, this access is provided by companies that have
significant market power in the broadband and internet access marketplace, including incumbent telephone companies, cable companies, mobile communications companies,
government-owned service providers, device manufacturers, and operating system providers, any of whom could take actions that degrade, disrupt, or increase the cost of
user access to our products or services, which would, in turn, negatively impact our business. The adoption of any laws, rules, or regulations that adversely affect the growth,
popularity, or use of the internet, including laws, rules, regulations, or practices limiting internet neutrality, could decrease the demand for, or the usage of, our products and
services, increase our cost of doing business, and adversely affect our results of operations. We also rely on other companies to maintain reliable network systems that provide
adequate speed, data capacity, and security to us and our users. As the internet continues to experience growth in the number of users, frequency of use, and amount of data
transmitted, the internet infrastructure on which we and our users rely may be unable to support the demands placed upon it. Frequent or persistent interruptions in our
products and services could cause users to believe that our products and services are unreliable, leading them to switch to our competitors or to otherwise avoid 30Table of
Contentsour products and services. The failure of the internet infrastructure on which we or our users rely, even for a short period of time, could undermine our operations.
To the extent that we do not effectively address capacity constraints, upgrade our systems as needed, or continually develop our technology and network architecture to
accommodate actual and anticipated changes in technology, our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects could be harmed.Our products and services
may contain undetected software errors, bugs, or other vulnerabilities, which could harm our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.Our products
and services incorporate complex software, and we encourage employees to quickly develop and help us launch new and innovative features. Our software, including any open
source software that is incorporated into our code, may now or in the future contain errors, bugs, or other vulnerabilities. Some errors, bugs, or vulnerabilities in our software
code inherently may be difficult to detect and may only be discovered after the product or service has been released for external or internal use. Such errors, bugs,
vulnerabilities, or defects could also be exploited by malicious actors and result in exposure of our usersa€™ or advertisersa€™ data, or otherwise result in a security breach
or other security incident. We may need to expend significant financial and development resources to analyze, correct, eliminate, or work around errors or defects or to
address and eliminate vulnerabilities. In addition, our products and services are increasingly reliant on machine learning systems and Al, which are complex, subject to
increasing litigation and regulatory scrutiny, and may have errors or inadequacies that are not easily detectable. The effectiveness of such Al systems and technologies could
be impaired by incomplete, biased, or inadequate inputs or training data, which could lead us to make determinations or recommendations in our products or services that
have an adverse effect on our business and financial results. Moreover, these systems may inadvertently reduce our efficiency, or may cause unintentional or unexpected
outputs that are incorrect, do not match our business goals, do not comply with our policies or applicable legal requirements, or otherwise are inconsistent with our brand,
guiding principles, and mission. Any errors, bugs, or vulnerabilities discovered in our code after release could result in negative user experiences, damage to our reputation,
compromised ability of our products and services to perform in a manner consistent with Redditor expectations, delayed product introductions, compromised ability to protect
the data of our users or advertisers or an inability to provide some or all of our services, loss of Redditors, loss of advertisers or advertising revenue, or liability for damages,
any of which could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.Many of our products and services contain third-party open source
software components, and failure to comply with the terms of the underlying open source software licenses could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial



condition, and prospects.We use open source software in our products and services and may continue to use open source software in the future. Some open source licenses
contain requirements that we make available source code for modifications or derivative works we create based upon the type of open source software. If we combine our
proprietary software with open source software in a certain manner, we could, under certain open source licenses, be required to release the source code of our proprietary
software to the public on unfavorable terms or at no cost. Any actual or claimed requirement to disclose our proprietary source code or pay damages for breach of contract
may allow our competitors to create similar products with lower development effort and time and, ultimately, could result in a loss of sales for us. Some open source software
may include generative Al software or other software that incorporates or relies on generative Al The use of such software may expose us to risks as the intellectual property
ownership, license rights, and other legal rights, including copyright, of generative Al software and tools have not been fully interpreted by U.S. or foreign courts or been fully
addressed by legislation. It may be challenging to ascertain whether the authors of the original software had sufficient rights to support our usage of the software and data
and models underlying the software. Authors of open source software we use may update the terms of open source licenses governing such software to commercial license
terms that may require us to pay fees in order to continue using such software. In addition to intellectual property risks, the use of this software may exacerbate other risks,
including cybersecurity and privacy risks and other rights issues. This could adversely affect our reputation and expose us to legal liability as well as contractual or regulatory
risk. We regularly contribute software source code to open source projects under open source licenses or release internal software projects under open source licenses, and
may continue doing so in the future. Our ability to protect our intellectual property rights with respect to source code which we have made publicly available may be limited.
The terms of many open source licenses have not been interpreted by U.S. or foreign courts, and there is a risk that these licenses could be construed in ways that could
impose unanticipated conditions or restrictions on our ability to commercialize products or services incorporating such software. Moreover, we cannot assure you that our
processes for controlling our use of open source software in our products will be effective. While we monitor our use of open source software and try to ensure that none is
used in a manner that would require us to disclose our proprietary source code or that would otherwise breach the terms of an open source license, such use could
inadvertently occur, or could be claimed to have occurred, in part because open source license terms are often ambiguous. From time to time, we may face claims from third
parties asserting ownership of, or demanding 31Table of Contentsrelease of, the open source software or derivative works that we develop using such software (which could
include our proprietary source code), or otherwise seeking to enforce the terms of the applicable open source license. These claims could result in litigation. If we are held to
have breached the terms of an open source software license, we could be required to seek licenses from third parties to continue offering our products or services on terms
that are not economically feasible, to re-engineer our products or services, to discontinue the sale of our products or services if re-engineering could not be accomplished on a
timely or cost-effective basis, or to make generally available, in source code form, our proprietary code, any of which could adversely affect our business, results of operations,
financial condition, and prospects.Further, the use and distribution of open source software may entail greater risks than the use of third-party commercial software, as open
source licensors generally do not provide warranties or controls on the origin of software. There is typically no support available for open source software, and we cannot
ensure that the authors of such open source software will implement or push updates to address security risks or will not abandon further development and maintenance.
Many of the risks associated with the use of open source software, such as the lack of warranties or assurances of title or performance, cannot be eliminated, and could, if not
properly addressed, negatively affect our business. Any of these risks could be difficult to eliminate or manage and, if not addressed, could have an adverse effect on our
business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.We may be unable to obtain, maintain, protect, defend, or enforce our intellectual property adequately,
which could harm our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.We believe that intellectual property is an important part of our industry and business.
We rely primarily on a combination of copyright, trademark, patent, and trade secret laws, as well as internal security controls, confidentiality procedures, invention
assignment and license agreements, and contractual provisions, to establish and protect our intellectual property rights in the United States and abroad. Various factors
outside our control pose a threat to our intellectual property rights, as well as to our products, services, and technologies. For example, the efforts we have taken to protect
our intellectual property may not be sufficient or effective, and our copyrights, trademarks, and other intellectual property or proprietary rights may be challenged, contested,
narrowed in scope, or held invalid or unenforceable. Further, in light of our reliance on a significant amount of open source materials, we may not have the ability to protect
certain of our information and technology. The steps we take to protect our intellectual property rights may not be sufficient to effectively prevent third parties from
infringing, misappropriating, or otherwise violating our intellectual property rights or to prevent unauthorized disclosure or unauthorized use of our trade secrets or other
confidential information. We may not be effective in policing unauthorized use of our intellectual property or in appropriately managing our open source catalog. Any
enforcement efforts we undertake, including litigation, could be time-consuming and expensive, could divert managementa€™s attention and may result in a court
determining that our intellectual property rights are unenforceable. If we are not successful in protecting our intellectual property rights in a cost-effective manner, our
business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects could be harmed. Further, we have filed trademark and patent applications to protect certain of our
technology and intellectual property. There can be no assurance that each of our applications will result in the issuance of a registered trademark or a registered patent or
that each resulting registration will be maintained. Even if issued, there can be no assurance that our intellectual property rights will be sufficient to protect against others
offering products or services that are substantially similar to ours and compete with our business or that unauthorized parties may attempt to copy aspects of our technology
and use information that we consider proprietary. For example, it is possible that third parties, including our competitors, may obtain patents relating to technologies that
overlap or compete with our technology. If third parties obtain patent protection with respect to such technologies, they may assert that our technology infringes their patents
and seek a licensing fee from us or otherwise exclude us from using our technology. We have acquired in the past, and may in the future, acquire additional patents or patent
portfolios, license patents from third parties, or agree to license the use of our patents to third parties, which could require significant cash expenditures. Any additional
investment in protecting our intellectual property through additional copyright, trademark, patent, or other intellectual property filings could be expensive or time-consuming.
We may not be able to obtain protection for our technology and, even if we are successful in obtaining effective copyright, trademark, and patent protection, it is expensive to
maintain these rights, both in terms of application and maintenance costs, and the time and cost required to defend our rights could be substantial.In addition to registered
intellectual property rights, we rely on unregistered intellectual property rights, such as trade secrets, confidential information, know-how, and technical information. We seek
to protect our intellectual property, technology, and confidential information by requiring our employees, contractors, consultants, and other third parties who develop
intellectual property on our behalf to enter into invention assignment agreements, and third parties we share information with to enter into nondisclosure and confidentiality
agreements. We cannot guarantee that we have entered into such agreements with each party who has developed intellectual property on our behalf and each party that has
or may have had access to our confidential information, know-how, trade secrets, and technical information. These agreements may be 32Table of Contentsinsufficient or
breached, or may not effectively prevent unauthorized access to or unauthorized use, disclosure, misappropriation, or reverse engineering of, our confidential information,
intellectual property, or technology. Moreover, these agreements may not provide an adequate remedy for breaches or unauthorized use or disclosure of our confidential
information or technology, or infringement of our intellectual property. Enforcing a claim that a party illegally disclosed or misappropriated a trade secret or know-how is
difficult, expensive, and time-consuming, and the outcome is unpredictable. In addition, trade secrets and know-how can be difficult to protect and some courts inside and
outside of the United States are less willing or unwilling to protect trade secrets and know-how. If any of our trade secrets were to be lawfully obtained or independently
developed by a competitor or other third party, we would have no right to prevent them from using that technology or information to compete with us, and our competitive
position could be materially and adversely harmed. The loss of trade secret protection could make it easier for third parties to compete with our products and services by
copying the functionality of our products and services. Additionally, individuals not subject to invention assignment agreements may make adverse ownership claims to our
current and future intellectual property, and, to the extent that our employees, contractors, consultants, or other third parties with whom we do business use intellectual
property owned by others in their work for us, disputes may arise as to the rights in related or resulting know-how and inventions.Effective intellectual property protection
may not be available in every country in which we operate or intend to operate our business or offer our products and services, and our intellectual property rights may not
receive the same degree of protection in foreign countries as they would in the United States because of the differences in foreign patent, trademark, copyright, and other
laws concerning intellectual property and proprietary rights.Third parties may knowingly or unknowingly infringe, misappropriate, or otherwise violate our intellectual
property or other proprietary rights, and particularly as we expand the scope of our business and the countries in which we operate, we may not be able to prevent third
parties from infringing, misappropriating, or otherwise violating or challenging our use of, our intellectual property or proprietary rights, including those used to build and
distinguish the a€ceReddita€ brand. If the protection of our intellectual property and proprietary rights is inadequate to prevent unauthorized use or appropriation by third
parties, the value of our brand and other intangible assets may be diminished and competitors may be able to more effectively mimic our technologies, products, services,
features, or methods of operations. We also may be required to spend significant resources to monitor and protect our intellectual property rights. Litigation brought to
protect and enforce our intellectual property rights could be costly, time-consuming, and distracting to management and could result in the impairment or loss of portions of
our intellectual property. Furthermore, because of the substantial amount of discovery required in connection with intellectual property litigation, there is a risk that some of
our confidential information could be compromised by disclosure during this type of litigation. Our efforts to enforce our intellectual property rights may be met with
defenses, counterclaims, and countersuits attacking the validity and enforceability of our intellectual property rights. An adverse outcome in such litigation or proceeding may
expose us to a loss of our competitive position, expose us to significant liabilities, or require us to seek licenses that may not be available on commercially acceptable terms, or
at all. Any of these events could harm our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.We have in the past, and may in the future, be subject to claims
that we violated certain third-party intellectual property rights, which, even where meritless, can be costly to defend and could adversely affect our business, results of
operations, financial condition, and prospects.Our success depends, in part, on our ability to develop and commercialize our products and services without infringing,
misappropriating, or otherwise violating the intellectual property rights of third parties. However, we have been in the past, and may in the future be, involved in lawsuits and
other disputes alleging that we have infringed, misappropriated, or otherwise violated the intellectual property rights of third parties. We may not be aware that our products
or services are infringing, misappropriating, or otherwise violating third-party intellectual property rights and such third parties may bring claims alleging such infringement,
misappropriation, or violation. For example, the continued use of any Al technologies in our products and services may give rise to risks related to intellectual property
infringement. Additionally, companies in the technology industry own large numbers of patents, copyrights, trademarks, and trade secrets and frequently enter into litigation
based on allegations of infringement or other violations of intellectual property rights. As we face increasing competition and become increasingly high profile, we have
received, and may in the future receive, more intellectual property claims against us. In addition, various &€cenon-practicing entities,a€ and other intellectual property rights
holders have asserted in the past, and may attempt to assert in the future, intellectual property claims against us and have sought, and may attempt to seek in the future, to
monetize the intellectual property rights they own to extract value through licensing arrangements or other settlements or litigation.We cannot predict the outcome of
lawsuits and cannot ensure that the results of any such actions will not adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition, or prospects. We have incurred
in the past, and may in the future incur, expenses associated with litigation and settlement costs arising out of allegations that we have infringed, misappropriated, or
otherwise violated the intellectual property rights of third parties. Any such claims or litigation, even those without merit and 33Table of Contentsregardless of the outcome,
could cause us to incur significant expenses, and, if successfully asserted against us, could require that we pay substantial costs or damages, pay significant ongoing royalty
payments, pay settlement or licensing fees, prevent us from offering our products or services or using certain technologies, force us to implement expensive work-arounds or
re-designs, impose other unfavorable terms, distract management from our business, or satisfy indemnification obligations.If any of our technologies, products, or services are
found to infringe, misappropriate, or otherwise violate a third partya€™s intellectual property rights, we could be required to obtain a license from such third party to
continue commercializing or using such technologies, products, or services. However, we may not be able to obtain any required license on commercially reasonable terms, or
at all. Even if we were able to obtain a license, it could be non-exclusive, thereby giving our competitors and other third parties access to the same technologies licensed to us,
and it could require us to make substantial licensing and royalty payments. We also could be required, including by court order, to cease the commercialization or use of the
violating technology, products, or services. Accordingly, we may need to design around such violated intellectual property, which may be expensive, time-consuming, or
infeasible. In addition, we could be found liable for significant monetary damages, including treble damages and attorneysa€™ fees, if we are found to have willfully infringed
a patent or other intellectual property right. Claims that we have misappropriated the confidential information or trade secrets of third parties could similarly harm our
business. If we are required to make substantial payments or undertake any of the other actions noted above as a result of any intellectual property infringement,
misappropriation, or violation claims against us, such payments, costs, or actions could adversely affect our competitive position, business, results of operations, financial
condition, and prospects. Even if intellectual property claims do not result in litigation or are resolved in our favor, these claims, and the time and resources necessary to
resolve them, could divert the resources of our management and require significant expenditures. Any of the foregoing could prevent us from competing effectively and could



have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.Risks Related to Governmental Regulation and LitigationOur business is
subject to increasingly complex and evolving laws, rules, regulations, industry standards, and other legal obligations regarding content, consumer protection, competition,
privacy, and other matters. Our existing and future products and services may subject us to additional regulatory requirements that could be costly and difficult to comply
with or may subject us to other risks that could result in additional liability, reputational harm, or other consequences that could adversely affect our business, results of
operations, financial condition, and prospects. We are subject to a variety of laws, rules, regulations, industry standards, and other legal obligations in the United States and
abroad that involve matters central to our business, including content, intellectual property, rights of publicity and privacy, advertising, machine learning and Al, marketing,
distribution, competition, consumer protection, protection of minors, telecommunications, product liability, taxation, economic or other trade prohibitions or sanctions,
blockchain, and securities laws. The laws, rules, and regulations applicable to our business are stringent, evolving, and involve matters central to our business, and may be
interpreted, applied, created, or amended in a manner that could harm our current or future business and operations.We expect increasing legal complexity and uncertainty
regarding the use and regulation of content made available on platforms such as ours. We have faced, currently face, and will continue to face claims relating to information
or content that is published or made available on our platform. In particular, the nature of our business exposes us to claims related to defamation, dissemination of
misinformation or news hoaxes, discrimination, harassment, intellectual property rights, rights of publicity and privacy, personal injury torts, laws regulating hate speech or
other types of content, online safety, sex trafficking, consumer protection, and breach of contract, among others. In the United States, there have been and will continue to be
various U.S. Executive Branch, Congressional, and state-level efforts to regulate the content made available on platforms such as ours, and to restrict the scope of the
protections available to online platforms under Section 230 of the Communications Decency Act. Our current protections from liability for content moderation decisions and
third-party content posted on our platform in the United States could decrease or change, potentially resulting in increased liability for content moderation decisions and
third-party content posted on our platform and higher litigation costs. We could also face fines, orders restricting or blocking our services in particular geographies, or other
government-imposed remedies as a result of content hosted on our services. This risk is enhanced in certain jurisdictions outside of the United States where our protection
from liability for third-party actions may be unclear or where we may be less protected under local laws than we are in the United States. Numerous countries in Europe, the
Middle East, Asia-Pacific, and Latin America are considering or have implemented legislation and regulations imposing potentially significant penalties, including fines,
service throttling, access bans, or advertising bans, for failure to remove certain types of content or follow certain processes. For example, legislation in Germany and India
has resulted in the past, and may result in the future, in the imposition of fines or other penalties for failure to comply with certain content removal, law enforcement
cooperation, and disclosure obligations. Content-related legislation and regulations also have required us in the past, and may require us in the future, to 34Table of
Contentschange our products or business practices, increase our costs, or otherwise impact our operations or our ability to provide services in certain geographies. For
example, the EU Directive on Copyright in the Digital Single Market expands online platform liability for copyright infringement and regulates certain uses of news content
online. In addition, the EU revised the European Audiovisual Media Service Directive to apply to online video-sharing platforms, which member states were required to
implement into national law by December 2020. Further, Irish regulators have designated us as a video-sharing platform service under their Online Safety and Media
Regulation Act (the a€ceMedia Regulation Acta€), implementing their version of the directive, and a court ruled against us in our challenge to that designation. The expansion
and complexity of laws and regulations like the Media Regulation Act in Ireland, the Online Safety Act in the UK and Australia, the ePrivacy Directive and Digital Services Act
in the EU, and others across the globe may increase our compliance costs and require changes to our processes and operations. In addition, the existing and any future
regulation of adult content could prevent us from making some of our content available in various states or jurisdictions or otherwise adversely affect our business, results of
operations, financial condition, and prospects. For example, the governments of some countries, such as India and Pakistan, have passed laws and regulations restricting the
distribution of content and products deemed to represent foreign or a€ceimmorala€ influences. Regulations aimed at limiting minorsa€™ access to adult content could also
increase our cost of operations and introduce technological challenges, such as by requiring development and implementation of age verification systems. U.S. government
officials could amend or construe and seek to enforce more broadly or aggressively the adult content recordkeeping and labeling requirements set forth in 18 U.S.C. Section
2257 and its implementing regulations in a manner that is unfavorable to our business.Further, there have been, and will continue to be, legislative and regulatory
developments related to imposing new obligations on online platforms with respect to commerce listings, user content, counterfeit goods, and copyright-infringing material.
For example, we are exploring different ways for Redditors to purchase and gift virtual goods and receive rewards for contributions to our platform, including through
Reddita€™ s earnings programs for contributors, developers, and creators. These programs may be subject to a variety of laws and regulations in the United States, Europe,
and elsewhere, including laws governing money laundering and terrorist financing, money transmission, prepaid access and stored value, electronic funds transfer, marketing
of in-app purchases, virtual currency, consumer protection, taxation, unclaimed property, securities, banking and lending, trade sanctions, and import and export restrictions.
In some jurisdictions, the application or interpretation of these laws and regulations is not, and in the future may not be, clear. For example, in some situations, the SEC has
found the sale of certain virtual goods and non-fungible and fungible tokens to have been securities offerings and has fined issuers and taken other related actions to prohibit
the sale and trading of such items. Moreover, to the extent our virtual goods and rewards products are deemed securities, our activities relating to these products could cause
us to be required to register as a broker-dealer or exchange.We also continue to pursue new business initiatives to empower communities through new technologies, including
machine learning and Al, blockchain technology, and non-fungible token (4€ceNFTa€) standards. These initiatives and technologies are subject to complex and rapidly
evolving laws and regulations, and governments and regulatory authorities may disagree with our risk-based judgments about how these laws and regulations apply to our
business initiatives, or may enact, interpret, or apply laws and regulations that are inconsistent across jurisdictions. In addition, future legal and regulatory developments
related to machine learning and Al, blockchain technology, and NFT standards may negatively impact demand for, and our ability to offer, products and services related to
these new technologies. They may also increase our compliance and litigation costs, cause us to change our business practices, and harm our business, results of operations,
financial condition, and prospects. To support our business initiatives relying on blockchain technology and NFT standards, including Reddit Collectible Avatars, we have
acquired and used, and may continue to acquire and use, certain cryptocurrencies, including Ether and Matic. Collectible Avatars rely on blockchain technology, NFT
standards, and cryptocurrencies for their creation, existence, and transactional validation on the blockchain, which exposes them to risks related to cybersecurity, malicious
attack, and technological obsolescence. While we believe we have taken reasonable measures to secure our use of blockchain technology and cryptocurrencies, these risks, in
addition to human errors and computer malfunctions, may harm or result in the loss of Collectible Avatars, blockchain technology, and cryptocurrencies we control. While we
believe blockchain technology has significant potential, long-term adoption is uncertain. New legislation and regulations, law enforcement and regulatory interventions, and
judicial decisions may adversely affect blockchain technology and cryptocurrencies, and future adoption of both by consumers and businesses. Developments of this nature
may also adversely affect the value of blockchain technology we control, and our ability to buy, sell, accept, and use cryptocurrencies and blockchain technology in the
future.While we have been expanding the use of machine learning across the platform, we have also been exploring the use of generative Al within our platform, as well as the
use and licensing of Reddit content for generative Al purposes. For example, we are experimenting with using generative Al to scale our content translation efforts as we
grow our presence in international markets, to assist Redditors to find more relevant content and to create post and comment suggestions that abide by community rules. We
are also experimenting with using generative Al to assist advertisers to create ads, improve the placement of 35Table of Contentsadvertisements on our platform, and
strengthen the offerings and functionality of our advertising tools. If we do not have sufficient rights to use the data on which our systems rely, we may incur liability through
the violation of such laws, third-party privacy or other rights, or contracts to which we are a party. If our use of generative Al results in summaries or translations of content
that are inaccurate, dangerous, or otherwise problematic, we may face direct liability for claims such as defamation related to such content without the ability to avail
ourselves of intermediary protections. We may not be able to anticipate how to respond to these rapidly evolving frameworks, and we may need to expend resources to adjust
our offerings in certain jurisdictions if the legal frameworks are inconsistent across jurisdictions. For example, the EU AI Act came into effect in August 2024 and applies to
companies that develop, use, and/or provide Al in the EU and includes requirements around transparency, conformity assessments and monitoring, risk assessments, human
oversight, security, and accuracy, and includes substantial penalties for non-compliance. This regulatory framework is expected to have a material impact on the way Al is
regulated in the EU, and together with developing guidance and decisions in this area, may affect our use of Al and our ability to provide and to improve our services, require
additional compliance measures and changes to our operations and processes, result in increased compliance costs and potential increases in civil claims against us, and could
adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.In addition, we are in the early stages of our content licensing efforts and are exploring
content licensing opportunities where we believe the opportunity does not conflict with our values and the rights of Redditors. These programs may subject us to evolving
approaches to the regulation of this data and implicate complex and developing data privacy and data protection, misappropriation, and intellectual property laws, rules, and
regulations. Given the novel nature of these technologies and commercial arrangements, we have received and expect to continue to receive inquiries regarding our content
licensing efforts from regulators. For example, in March 2024, we received a letter from the FTC advising us that the FTCa€™s staff is conducting a non-public inquiry
focused on our sale, licensing, or sharing of user-generated content with third parties to train AI models. Given the novel nature of these technologies and commercial
arrangements, we are not surprised that the FTC has expressed interest in this area. We do not believe that we have engaged in any unfair or deceptive trade practice, we
expect to receive continued regulatory interest in our plans, and any regulatory engagement can be lengthy, unpredictable and may cause us to incur substantial costs. It is
possible for any regulatory engagement to result in reputational harm or fines, cause us to discontinue or modify our products, services, features, or functionalities, require us
to change our policies or practices, divert management and other resources from our business, or otherwise adversely impact our business, results of operations, financial
condition, and prospects. Our efforts to comply with these laws and regulations could be costly and may still not guarantee compliance. We may also be subject to selective or
inconsistent government regulatory action or enforcement or be the subject of claims in private litigation or other actions. In the event that we are found to be in violation of
any such legal or regulatory requirements, we may be subject to monetary fines or other penalties, and may subject us to additional regulation and oversight, all of which
could significantly increase our operating costs. If any of these risks occurs, our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects could be adversely
affected.Although we value privacy at Reddit, we face increasing scrutiny and regulatory complexity with regard to data privacy and data protection. If we fail, or are
perceived as failing, to protect the data privacy of those who use or work at Reddit, our business and reputation will suffer and our business, results of operations, financial
condition, and prospects could be adversely affected.We receive, store, handle, transmit, use, and otherwise process personal and business information and other data from
and about actual and prospective customers, as well as our employees, Redditors, and service providers. As a result, we and our handling of data are subject to complex and
evolving laws, rules, regulations, contractual obligations, and industry standards relating to privacy and data security. In some cases, these laws, rules, and regulations by
various federal, state, and foreign governmental authorities and agencies impose obligations directly on us as both a data controller and a data processor (or the equivalents
thereof). These laws, rules, and regulations are constantly evolving and may be interpreted, applied, created, or amended in a manner that could harm our current or future
business and operations. In the United States, laws, rules, and regulations governing data privacy and security include those enacted on a federal level, such as the Federal
Trade Commission Act, and those enacted by certain states, such as the California Consumer Privacy Act of 2018, as amended by the California Privacy Rights Act (the
4€0eCCPA4&€), and California Age-Appropriate Design Code. Additionally, laws in all 50 U.S. states require businesses to provide notice under certain circumstances to
governmental authorities and affected individuals in connection with personal data breaches. Non-compliance with these laws could result in regulatory action, including
injunctions and statutory civil penalties, and a private right of action. Certain state laws may be more stringent or broader in scope, or offer greater individual rights, with
respect to sensitive and personal information than federal, international, or other state laws, and such laws may differ from each other, which may 36Table of
Contentscomplicate compliance efforts. This may result in further legal uncertainty, require us to incur substantial additional costs and expenses in an effort to comply, and
potentially require us to modify our data practices and policies. The trend towards more stringent privacy legislation creates the potential for a patchwork of overlapping but
different laws, which could increase our potential liability and adversely affect our business, results of operations, and financial condition. Such laws and regulations could
also restrict our customersa€™ ability to run their businesses, which may, in turn, impact our business and operations. These laws, rules, and regulations may also impact our
ability to expand advertising on our platform internationally, as they may impede our ability to deliver targeted advertising and accurately measure our ad performance.We
are also subject to complex and evolving privacy laws in the European Union (the &4€eEUa€) and the United Kingdom (the 4€0eUK&€), such as the European Union General
Data Protection Regulation (the 4€@EU GDPR&€) and the United Kingdom General Data Protection Regulation (the 4 UK GDPR&€). The enactment of the EU GDPR and the
UK GDPR also introduced numerous privacy-related changes for companies operating in the EU and the UK, including greater control for data subjects (including, for
example, the a€ceright to be forgottena€), increased data portability for EU and UK consumers, data breach notification requirements, and increased fines. In particular, fines
for certain breaches are significant, up to the greater of 4% of total global annual turnover or &,—20 million in the EU (A£17.5 million under the UK GDPR). Since we are



subject to the supervision of the relevant data protection authorities under both the EU GDPR and the UK GDPR, we could be fined under each of these regimes independently
in respect of the same breach. In addition to fines, a breach of the relevant regimes could result in litigation, regulatory investigations or inquiries, reputational damage,
orders to cease or change our data processing activities, enforcement notices, or assessment notices (for a compulsory audit). We also expect increasing legal complexity and
uncertainty regarding how and under what circumstances we can transfer, process, or receive certain data that is critical to our operations, including data shared between
countries or regions in which we operate and data shared among our products and services. These various developments in relation to international personal data transfers
require us to implement new or revised documentation and processes, within the relevant time frames, and are subject to ongoing scrutiny and potential future challenge,
leading to additional costs and increasing our overall risk exposure. For example, for data transfers to the United States, the European Commission has adopted an adequacy
decision for entities self-certified under the new EU-U.S. Data Privacy Framework (&€ceDPFa€). The DPF does not apply to the UK, and in October 2023, a UK-U.S. Data
Bridge came into force to facilitate transfers of personal data from the UK to the United States. In addition, the other bases upon which we rely to transfer such data, such as
Standard Contractual Clauses (a€eSCCsa€), have been subjected to regulatory and judicial scrutiny. The Court of Justice of the EU ruled in July 2020 that reliance on the
SCCs alone may not necessarily be sufficient in all circumstances and transfers must be assessed on a case-by-case basis. In June 2021, the European Commission published
revised SCCs for data transfers from the EU, but there is some uncertainty around whether the revised SCCs can be relied on for data transfers to non-EU entities subject to
the GDPR. The European Commission has stated an intention to publish a new set of SCCs applicable to such transfers to non-EU entities subject to the GDPR. The UK ICO
has published its own International Data Transfer Agreement and the International Data Transfer Addendum to the SCCs (the a€0eIDTA4&€), which came into force in March
2022. If the new DPF is invalidated in the future and we are unable to continue to rely on SCCs and the IDTA or validly rely upon other alternative means of data transfers
from the EU and the UK to the United States, we may suffer additional costs, complaints or regulatory investigations, inquiries, or fines, and we may be unable to operate
material portions of our business in the EU or the UK, and/or stop using certain tools and vendors and make other operational changes, which would harm our business,
results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.There are a number of legislative proposals or recently enacted or evolving laws in the United States, at both the
federal and state level, and in the EU and the UK that could impose new obligations or limitations in areas affecting our business. In the EU and the UK, regulators are
increasingly focusing on compliance with requirements directed towards the protection of childrena€™ s data online. For example, the UK ICO has reached out to us with
questions regarding our compliance with the UK ICOa€™s Age Appropriate Design Code and UK GDPR. Further, EU national laws that implement the ePrivacy Directive
(Directive 2002/58/EC concerning the processing of personal data and the protection of privacy in the electronic communications sector) may be replaced by an EU
regulation, known as the ePrivacy Regulation (Proposal for a Regulation concerning the respect for private life and the protection of personal data in electronic
communications), which may alter rules on tracking technologies, impose burdensome requirements surrounding obtaining consent and significantly increase fines for non-
compliance. If regulators start to enforce an increasingly strict approach, this could lead to substantial costs, require significant systems changes, limit the effectiveness of
our marketing activities, divert the attention of our technology personnel, adversely affect our margins, increase costs, and subject us to additional liabilities. From time to
time, governments, regulators, and other third parties have in the past, and may in the future, reach out to ask questions or express concerns about whether our products,
services, or practices compromise the privacy or data protection rights of Redditors and others. While we strive to comply with applicable laws, rules, and regulations relating
to privacy, data protection, and data security, our privacy policies, and other obligations we may have with respect to privacy, data protection, 37Table of Contentsand data
security, the failure or perceived failure to comply with such obligations may result in investigations, inquiries, and other proceedings or actions against us by governments,
regulators, or other third parties. Additionally, we have been in the past, and may in the future become, involved in data privacy-related litigation or other disputes. A number
of proposals have recently been adopted or are currently pending before federal, state, and foreign legislative and regulatory bodies that could significantly affect our
business and operations.We make public statements about our use, collection, disclosure, and other processing of personal information through our privacy policies,
information provided on our websites, marketing materials and public statements, and in the event that a court or regulator finds these statements to be deceptive, unfair,
inaccurate, inadequate, or misrepresentative of our actual practices, we could also be exposed to legal or regulatory liability. Any such proceedings or violations could force us
to spend money in defense or settlement, result in the imposition of monetary liability or demanding injunctive relief, divert managementa€™s time and attention, increase
our costs of doing business, and adversely affect our reputation. Furthermore, the uncertain and shifting regulatory environment and trust climate may cause concerns
regarding privacy and data protection and may cause our customers to resist providing the data necessary to allow them to use our services effectively. In addition, although
we endeavor to comply with our public statements and policies, we could at times fail to do so or be perceived to have failed to do so. Even the perception that the privacy of
personal information is not satisfactorily protected or does not meet regulatory requirements could negatively impact our business and operations.We cannot assure you that
any third-party providers with access to personal information and other sensitive or confidential information in relation to which we are responsible will not breach
contractual obligations imposed by us, or that they will not experience data security breaches or attempts thereof, which could have a corresponding effect on our business,
including putting us in breach of our obligations under various data privacy and data protection laws, rules, and regulations, which could in turn adversely affect our business,
results of operations, and financial condition. If our customers or third-party providers violate applicable laws, regulations, rules, or standards, or our policies or other privacy
or security-related obligations, such violations may also put the information of our customers, third-party providers, or employees at risk. We cannot assure you that our
contractual measures and our own privacy and data protection-related safeguards will protect us from the risks associated with the third-party processing, storage, and
transmission of such information. Any failure or perceived failure by us or our third-party providers to comply with our privacy policies, data privacy-related obligations to
Redditors or other third parties, or our data privacy-related legal obligations, or any compromise of security that results in the unauthorized release or transfer of personal
information or other user data, or other failure or noncompliance by us with applicable laws, rules, regulations, industry standards, or other legal obligations or requirements
relating to data privacy and our processing of personal information could subject us to investigations, litigation, sanctions, enforcement actions, disgorgement of profits,
substantial fines, damages, reputational harm, a significant diversion of managementa€™s attention and resources, civil and criminal penalties, injunctions, or other collateral
consequences, any of which could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.Pending and future litigation could lead us to incur
significant costs and adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.We are, and may become in the future, party to various lawsuits
and claims arising in the normal course of business, which may include putative class action suits or other lawsuits or claims relating to privacy and other regulatory matters,
user consent, intellectual property and/or open source software, customer matters, our marketing and sales practices, content on our site, contracts, employment matters, or
other aspects of our business. Such lawsuits have in the past and may in the future result in us incurring significant expenses in settlement and litigation costs. Any negative
outcome from any such lawsuits or claims could result in payments of substantial monetary damages or fines, or undesirable changes to our products or business practices
and, accordingly, our business, results of operations, financial condition, or prospects could be adversely affected. There can be no assurances that a favorable final outcome
will be obtained in all our cases, and defending any lawsuit, even unmerited claims, is costly and can impose a significant burden on management and employees. Any
litigation to which we are a party may result in an onerous or unfavorable judgment that may not be reversed upon appeal, or in payments of substantial monetary damages or
fines, or we may decide to settle lawsuits on similarly unfavorable terms, which could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition, and
prospects.We are subject to governmental export controls and economic sanctions laws that could impair our ability to compete in global markets or subject us to liability if
we are not in full compliance with applicable laws.Our platform is subject to governmental, including U.S. and EU, export control laws and regulations, and as a U.S.
company, we are covered by the U.S. sanctions laws and regulations. U.S. export control and economic sanctions laws and regulations prohibit the provision of certain
products and services to U.S. embargoed or sanctioned countries, governments, and persons, and complying with export control and sanctions regulations may be time-
consuming and may result in the loss of 38Table of Contentssales opportunities. While we take precautions to prevent our platform from being exported in violation of these
laws or engaging in any other activities that are subject to these regulations, from time to time, we may fail to fully comply with these laws and regulations. We believe our
provision of such services is either in compliance with generally available exemptions from sanctions laws or otherwise in compliance with applicable law, and we have
implemented certain control mechanisms designed to prevent unauthorized dealings with U.S. embargoed or sanctioned countries, such as preventing such users from paying
for or receiving premium content or features. If such users circumvent these precautions or we are otherwise found to have failed to comply with U.S. export laws, U.S.
economic sanctions, and other countriesa€™ import and export laws, we could be subject to substantial civil and criminal penalties, including fines for the company,
incarceration for responsible employees and managers, and the possible loss of export or import privileges, and we may incur reputational harm.Risks Related to Financial
and Accounting MattersChanges in tax laws or tax rulings could adversely affect our effective tax rates, results of operations, and financial condition.The tax regimes we are
subject to or operate under are unsettled and may be subject to significant change. This challenge will continue to increase as we expand our operations globally. Changes in
tax laws, issuance of new tax rulings, or changes in interpretations of existing laws could cause us to be subject to additional income-based taxes and non-income-based taxes,
including payroll, sales, use, value-added, digital, net worth, property, and goods and services taxes, which in turn could adversely affect our results of operations and
financial condition. In particular, the U.S. government may enact significant changes to the taxation of business entities including, among others, an increase in the corporate
income tax rate, the imposition of minimum taxes or surtaxes on certain types of income, significant changes to the taxation of income derived from international operations,
and an addition of further limitations on the deductibility of business interest. For example, on August 16, 2022, the Inflation Reduction Act (the 4€eIRA4€) was signed into
law in the United States. Among other changes, the IRA introduced a corporate minimum tax on certain corporations with average annual adjusted financial statement income
over a three-tax-year period in excess of $1 billion and an excise tax on certain stock repurchases by certain covered corporations for taxable years beginning after December
31, 2022. In addition, many countries in the EU, as well as a number of other countries and organizations, have recently proposed or recommended changes to existing tax
laws or have enacted new laws that could impact our tax obligations. In particular, over the past several years, the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development
(@€0eOECDé&€) has been working on a base erosion and profit shifting (a4€ceBEPSa€) project. As part of the OECDa€™ s BEPS project, over 140 member jurisdictions of the
OECD Inclusive Framework have joined the Two-Pillar Solution to Address the Tax Challenges of the Digitalisation of the Economy, which includes a reallocation of taxing
rights among jurisdictions and a global minimum tax rate of 15%. The Council of the European Union has approved its directive to implement rules regarding such a 15%
global minimum tax rate, and other jurisdictions have already enacted taxes that target technology companies. We are unable to predict what changes to the tax laws of the
United States and other jurisdictions may be proposed or enacted in the future or what effect such changes would have on our business. Any of these or similar developments
or changes to tax laws or rulings could adversely affect our effective tax rate and our results of operations and financial condition.We may have exposure to greater than
anticipated tax liabilities.The tax laws applicable to our business, including the laws of the United States and other jurisdictions, are subject to interpretation and certain
jurisdictions are aggressively interpreting their laws in new ways in an effort to raise additional tax revenue. We are subject to taxation in several non-U.S. jurisdictions with
increasingly complex tax laws, the application of which can be uncertain. The number of jurisdictions where we are subject to tax will increase as we expand our global
operations. The amount of taxes paid in these jurisdictions could substantially change as a result of changes in the applicable tax principles, including increased tax rates, new
tax laws, or revised interpretations of existing tax laws and precedent, which could have an adverse impact on our liquidity and results of operations. The relevant taxing
authorities in a jurisdiction may disagree with our determinations regarding the income and expense attributable to that jurisdiction. If such a disagreement were to occur,
and our position was not sustained, we could be required to pay additional taxes, interest, and penalties, which could result in one-time or ongoing tax charges, higher
effective tax rates, reduced cash flows, and lower overall profitability of our business.Our existing corporate structure has been implemented in a manner that we believe is in
compliance with current prevailing tax laws, and our transfer pricing policies account for the functions, risks, and assets of the various entities involved in our intercompany
transactions. The taxing authorities for the jurisdictions in which we operate may, however, challenge our methodologies for valuing intercompany arrangements, which could
impact our worldwide effective tax rate and adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. Moreover, changes to our corporate structure, including
increased headcount and expanded functions outside of the United States, could impact our worldwide effective tax rate and adversely 39Table of Contentsaffect our financial
condition and results of operations. Significant judgment is required in evaluating our tax positions and our worldwide provisions for taxes. During the ordinary course of
business, there are many activities and transactions for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The relevant taxing authorities may disagree with our
determinations as to the income and expenses attributable to specific jurisdictions. If such a disagreement were to occur, and our position were not sustained, we could be
required to pay additional taxes, interest, and penalties, which could result in one-time tax charges, higher effective tax rates, reduced cash flows, and lower overall
profitability of our business, with some changes possibly affecting our tax obligations in future or past years.Our ability to use net operating loss carryforwards and other tax
attributes may be limited due to certain provisions of the Internal Revenue Code or state tax law.We have incurred substantial losses during our history. Under the Tax Cuts
and Jobs Act, federal net operating loss carryforwards (4€eNOLsa€) we generated in tax years through December 31, 2017, may be carried forward for 20 years and may



fully offset taxable income in the year utilized, and federal NOLs we generated in tax years beginning after December 31, 2017, may be carried forward indefinitely but may
only be used to offset 80% of our taxable income annually.As of December 31, 2024, we had U.S. federal NOL carryforwards of approximately $590.4 million and state NOL
carryforwards of approximately $399.9 million available to offset future taxable income. Our state NOL carryforwards will begin to expire in 2025 if not utilized. Our federal
NOL carryforwards can be carried forward indefinitely, with utilization limited to 80% of our taxable income. Realization of these NOL carryforwards depends on future
taxable income, and there is a risk that our existing carryforwards could expire unused and be unavailable to offset future taxable income, which could adversely affect our
results of operations.Under Sections 382 and 383 of the Internal Revenue Code, if a corporation undergoes an a€ceownership change,a€ the corporationa€™s ability to use its
pre-change federal NOLs and other tax attributes (such as tax credits) to offset its post-change income and taxes may be limited. In general, an 4&€ceownership changea€
occurs if there is a greater than 50 percentage point change (by value) in a corporationa€™ s equity ownership by certain stockholders over a rolling three-year period. We
may have experienced ownership changes in the past and may experience ownership changes in the future as a result of subsequent shifts in our stock ownership (some of
which shifts are outside our control). As a result, our ability to use our pre-change federal NOLs and other tax attributes to offset future taxable income and taxes could be
subject to limitations. Similar provisions of state tax law may also apply. For these reasons, even if we achieve profitability, we may be unable to use a material portion of our
NOLs and other tax attributes, which could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.If we fail to maintain an effective system of
disclosure controls and internal control over financial reporting, our ability to produce timely and accurate financial statements or comply with applicable regulations could be
impaired.As a public reporting company, we are subject to the rules and regulations established by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"), the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act, and the listing rules of the New York Stock Exchange (4€eNYSE&€). These rules and regulations require, among other things, that we establish and periodically evaluate
procedures with respect to our internal control over financial reporting. Reporting obligations as a public company place a considerable strain on our financial and
management systems, processes, and controls, as well as on our personnel, including senior management. In addition, as a public company, we will be required, pursuant to
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (a€ceSection 404&€), to furnish a report by management on, among other things, the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting commencing with our annual report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2025. This assessment will need to include disclosure of any material
weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting identified by our management. We have commenced the costly and challenging process of compiling the system
and processing documentation necessary to perform the evaluation needed to comply with Section 404, but we may not be able to complete our evaluation, testing, and any
required remediation in a timely fashion once initiated. In addition, our independent registered public accounting firm will be required to provide an attestation report on the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. We anticipate that we will continue investing significant resources to enhance and maintain our financial and
managerial controls, reporting systems, and procedures.Our current controls and any new controls that we develop may become inadequate because of changes in conditions
in our business. During the evaluation and testing process of our internal controls, if we identify one or more material weaknesses in our internal control over financial
reporting, we will be unable to certify that our internal control over financial reporting is effective. If our management is unable to certify the effectiveness of our internal
controls, our independent registered public accounting firm is unable to express an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting, we
identify or fail to remediate material weaknesses in our internal controls, or we do not effectively or accurately report our financial performance to the appropriate regulators
on a timely basis, we could be subject to regulatory scrutiny and a loss of 40Table of Contentsinvestor confidence, which could adversely affect our business, results of
operations, financial condition, and prospects, and could cause the market price of our Class A common stock to decline.Our revolving credit facility contains restrictive and
financial covenants that may limit our operational flexibility. If we fail to meet our obligations under the credit facility, our operations may be interrupted and our business,
results of operations, financial condition, and prospects could be adversely affected.In October 2021, we entered into a five-year, $750.0 million revolving credit facility by and
among us and certain lenders to fund working capital and general corporate purpose expenditures. The revolving credit facility, as amended, contains customary conditions to
borrowing, events of default, and covenants. Covenants include restrictions on our and certain of our subsidiariesa€™ ability to incur indebtedness, grant liens, make
distributions to holders of our capital stock or the capital stock of our subsidiaries, make investments, or engage in transactions with our affiliates, and require us to maintain
a minimum amount of liquidity. The obligations under the revolving credit facility are secured by liens on substantially all of our assets, including intellectual property
assets.Various risks, uncertainties, and events beyond our control could affect our ability to comply with these covenants. Failure to comply with any of the covenants could
result in a default under the credit facility. Such a default could permit lenders to accelerate the maturity of outstanding amounts under our credit facility, if any, which in
turn could result in material adverse consequences that negatively impact our business, the market price for our Class A common stock, and our ability to obtain other
financing in the future. In addition, our credit facilitya€™s covenants, consent requirements, and other provisions may limit our flexibility to pursue or fund strategic
initiatives or acquisitions that might be in the long-term interests of us and stockholders.We might require additional capital to support business growth, and this capital
might not be available on terms favorable to us, or at all. We intend to continue to make investments to support our business growth and may require additional funds to
respond to business challenges and opportunities, including the need to develop new products or services, enhance our existing products or services, enhance our operating
infrastructure, expand internationally, and acquire complementary businesses and technologies. In order to achieve these objectives, we may make future commitments of
capital resources. Accordingly, we may need to engage in equity or debt financings to secure additional funds. If we raise additional funds through further issuances of equity
or convertible debt securities, our existing stockholders could suffer significant dilution, and any new equity securities we issue could have rights, preferences, and privileges
superior to those of holders of our common stock. In addition, the incurrence of indebtedness would increase our fixed obligations, and include covenants or other restrictions
that would impede our ability to manage our operations. Further, if additional financing is needed, we may not be able to obtain additional financing on terms favorable to us,
or at all. Our inability to obtain adequate financing or financing on terms satisfactory to us, when we require it, could significantly limit our ability to continue supporting our
business growth and responding to business challenges and opportunities.Future acquisitions and investments could disrupt our business and harm our business, results of
operations, financial condition, and prospects.As part of our business strategy, we have made and intend to make acquisitions to expand our products and services, and grow
our business in response to changing technologies, Redditor and advertiser demands, and competitive pressures.Our previous and future acquisitions may not achieve our
goals, and we may not realize benefits from acquisitions we make in the future. Any acquisitions, including the integration process, will require significant time and resources,
and we may not be able to manage the process successfully. If we fail to successfully integrate acquisitions, or the personnel or technologies associated with those
acquisitions, our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects could be harmed. Our acquisition strategy may change over time and future acquisitions we
complete could be viewed negatively by users, advertisers, investors, or other parties with whom we do business. We may not successfully evaluate or utilize the acquired
technology and accurately forecast the financial impact of an acquisition, including accounting charges. We may also incur unanticipated liabilities that we assume as a result
of acquiring companies. Future acquisitions could also result in dilutive issuances of our equity securities, the incurrence of debt, contingent liabilities, amortization expenses,
incremental operating expenses, or the impairment of goodwill, any of which could harm our business, results of operations, financial condition, and prospects.41Table of
ContentsRisks Related to Ownership of Our Class A Common StockThe market price of our Class A common stock may be volatile, regardless of our underlying business, our
results of operations, macroeconomic conditions, or industry fundamentals, and we may not be able to meet investor or analyst expectations. The market price of our Class A
common stock may fluctuate or decline significantly in response to numerous factors, many of which are beyond our control, including:a€¢actual or anticipated fluctuations in
Redditor growth, retention, and engagement, revenue, or other results of operations;a€¢variations between our actual results of operations and the expectations of securities
analysts, investors, and the financial community;a€¢changes in accounting standards or the application of existing or future accounting standards; a€¢whether we provide
financial guidance or projections;a€¢any forward-looking financial or operating information we may provide to the public or securities analysts, any changes in this
information, or our failure to meet expectations based on this information;a€¢actions of securities analysts who initiate or maintain coverage of us, changes in financial
estimates by any securities analysts who follow our company, or our failure to meet these estimates or the expectations of investors;a€¢any significant changes in our
management or board of directors;a€¢investorsa€™ or analystsa€™ views of our stock structure and the voting agreements entered into with certain of our stockholders;a€
¢additional shares of our Class A common stock being sold into the market by us or our existing stockholders, or the anticipation of such sales, including the sale of shares to
satisfy RSU-related tax obligations or if existing stockholders sell shares into the market;a€¢announcements by us or our competitors of significant products or features,
technical innovations, acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures, or capital commitments;a€¢announcements by us or estimates by third parties of actual or
anticipated changes in the size of our DAUq or related level of engagement;a€¢changes in operating performance and stock market valuations of technology companies in our
industry, including our competitors;a€¢rumors and market speculation involving us or other companies in our industry;a€¢price and volume fluctuations in the overall stock
market, including as a result of trends in the economy as a whole;a€¢litigation threatened or filed against us, companies in our industry or both, or investigations by
regulators into our operations or those of our competitors;a€¢developments in new legislation and pending lawsuits or regulatory actions, including interim or final rulings by
judicial or regulatory bodies; anda€¢other events or factors, including those resulting from war or incidents of terrorism, or responses to these events.In addition, the stock
market in general, and the market for technology companies in particular, has experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that have often been unrelated or
disproportionate to the operating performance of those companies. Moreover, in the past, following periods of volatility in the overall market and the market prices of a
particular companya€™s securities, securities class action litigation has often been instituted against that company. Securities litigation, if instituted against us, could result
in substantial costs and divert our managementa€™ s attention and resources from our business.Interest in our Class A common stock from retail and other individual
investors, for reasons unrelated to our underlying business or macroeconomic or industry fundamentals, could result in increased volatility in the market price of our Class A
42Table of Contentscommon stock. For example, in 2021 and in June 2024, the market prices and trading volumes of certain securities, such as GameStop Corp., AMC
Entertainment Holdings, Inc., and other &€cememea€ stocks, experienced extreme volatility. The rapid and substantial increases or decreases in the market prices of
a€cememea€ stocks may be unrelated to the respective issuera€™s operating performance or macroeconomic or industry fundamentals, and the substantial increases may be
significantly inconsistent with the risks and uncertainties that the issuer faces. This volatility has been attributed, in part, to strong and atypical retail investor interest,
including as may be expressed on financial trading and other social media sites and online forums such as r/A wallstreetbets, one of our subreddits. Given the broad
awareness and brand recognition of Reddit, including as a result of the popularity of r/A wallstreetbets among retail investors, and the direct access by retail investors to
broadly available trading platforms, the market price and trading volume of our Class A common stock could experience extreme volatility for reasons unrelated to our
underlying business or macroeconomic or industry fundamentals, which could cause you to lose all or part of your investment.The multi-class structure of our common stock
has the effect of concentrating voting control with those stockholders who held our capital stock prior to the listing of our Class A common stock on the NYSE. This ownership
will limit or preclude your ability to influence corporate matters, including the election of directors, amendments of our organizational documents, and any major corporate
transaction requiring stockholder approval, including change of control transactions.Our Class B common stock has ten votes per share, our Class A common stock has one
vote per share, and our Class C common stock has no votes per share. Because of the ten-to-one voting ratio between our Class B and Class A common stock, the holders of
our Class B common stock collectively continue to control a significant percentage of the combined voting power of our common stock and therefore are able to control all
matters submitted to our stockholders for approval until a substantial number of such outstanding shares of Class B common stock have converted into shares of our Class A
common stock. Furthermore, in connection with our initial public offering, Steven Huffman, our Chief Executive Officer and President and a member of our board of directors,
entered into a voting agreement with each of (i) Advance Magazine Publishers Inc. ("Advance") and (ii) Tencent Cloud Europe B.V. and Jojoba Investment Limited that
provides, among other things, that Mr. Huffman is entitled to vote all of the securities beneficially owned by such stockholders and certain of their affiliates, in Mr.
Huffmana€™s sole discretion, on all matters submitted to a vote of our stockholders, subject to certain exceptions. We estimate as of December 31, 2024, pursuant to such
voting agreements, Mr. Huffman was entitled to vote shares representing approximately 74% of the voting power of our outstanding Class A and Class B common stock. As a
result, we are eligible to be a 4€cecontrolled companya€ under the rules of NYSE, which exempts companies from certain corporate governance rules relating to the
independence of the board of directors and its committees. Although we are eligible to use these exemptions, we do not currently expect to avail ourselves of any of these
exemptions. However, if we were to use some or all of these exemptions in the future, investors may not have the same protections afforded to stockholders of companies that
are subject to all of the corporate governance requirements of NYSE and our a€cecontrolled companya€ status could make our Class A common stock less attractive to some
investors or otherwise adversely affect its trading price. In addition, pursuant to the terms of the voting agreement with Advance, Mr. Huffman is also entitled to vote all of
the securities beneficially owned by Advance in favor of directors designated by Advance and director candidates nominated or identified by Mr. Huffman.This concentrated
control will limit or preclude your ability to influence corporate matters for the foreseeable future, including the election of directors, amendments of our organizational
documents, and any merger, consolidation, sale of all or substantially all of our assets, or other major corporate transaction requiring stockholder approval. In addition, this



may prevent or discourage unsolicited acquisition proposals or offers for our capital stock that you may feel are in your best interests as one of our stockholders.Future
transfers by holders of our Class B common stock will generally result in those shares converting to Class A common stock, subject to limited exceptions, as set forth in our
amended and restated certificate of incorporation, including transfers to family members, certain trusts for estate planning purposes, entities under common control with or
controlled by such holder of our Class B common stock, and, with respect to Advance, any Advance Entity (as such term is defined in our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation). The conversion of Class B common stock to Class A common stock will have the effect, over time, of increasing the relative voting power of those holders of our
Class B common stock who retain their shares. In addition, the conversion of Class B common stock to Class A common stock would dilute holders of Class A common stock, in
terms of voting power within the Class A common stock. Any future issuances of common stock would also be dilutive to holders of Class A common stock. For example,
because our Class C common stock carries no voting rights (except as otherwise required by law), if we issue Class C common stock in the future, the holders of Class B
common stock may be able to hold significant voting control over most matters submitted to a vote of our stockholders for a longer period of time than would be the case if we
issued Class A common stock rather than Class C common stock in such transactions. In addition, subject to the approval rights granted to Advance pursuant to our amended
and restated certificate of incorporation, following the date on which no shares of our Class B common stock remain outstanding, upon the date and time or occurrence
43Table of Contentsof an event specified by the vote of holders of a majority of the then-outstanding shares of our Class A common stock, each share of Class C common stock
shall automatically convert into one share of our Class A common stock.Certain stock index providers have excluded companies with multiple classes of shares of common
stock from being added to certain stock indices. Accordingly, the multi-class structure of our common stock would make us ineligible for inclusion in indices with such
restrictions and, as a result, mutual funds, exchange-traded funds, and other investment vehicles that attempt to passively track those indices may not invest in our Class A
common stock.In addition, several stockholder advisory firms and large institutional investors have been critical of the use of multi-class structures. Such stockholder advisory
firms may publish negative commentary about our corporate governance practices or our capital structure, which may dissuade large institutional investors from purchasing
shares of our Class A common stock. These actions could make our Class A common stock less attractive to other investors and may result in a less active trading market for
our Class A common stock.Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and the governance agreement that we entered into with our principal stockholder grant our
principal stockholder certain rights with respect to the control and management of our business, which may prevent us from taking actions that may be beneficial to us and
our other stockholders.In connection with our initial public offering, we entered into a governance agreement with Advance, our principal stockholder, and Mr. Huffman, our
Chief Executive Officer and President and a member of our board of directors (the a€ceGovernance Agreementa€). Pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation and the Governance Agreement, Advance has the right to designate two directors and one nonvoting board observer, and any increase in the size of our board of
directors that would cause our board of directors to consist of more than ten members is subject to Advancea€™ s prior written approval. Subject to certain limitations set
forth in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, we also require Advancea€™s prior written approval or consent to, among other things:a€¢establish any new
class of securities or issue securities which, in the aggregate, represent more than 10% of the voting power of the securities beneficially owned by Advance and certain of its
affiliates as of the completion of our initial public offering;4€¢amend our amended and restated certificate of incorporation or amended and restated bylaws, if such
amendment would adversely affect Advancea€™s rights thereunder;a€¢effect or consummate a change of control transaction or any other merger, consolidation, business
combination, sale, or acquisition that changes the rights or preferences of our security holders;a€¢effect the liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of our business
operations;a€¢terminate, reduce, or enlarge the responsibilities of, or elect, appoint, or remove, our Chief Executive Officer; ora€¢submit to our stockholders any proposal to
effect the conversion of all then-outstanding shares of our Class C common stock into an equivalent number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of Class A common stock,
as set forth in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation or otherwise.The Governance Agreement will terminate upon the first to occur of (i) such date that
Advance and certain of its affiliates cease to, in the aggregate, beneficially own at least 5% of the aggregate of the then-outstanding shares of our Class A and Class B common
stock, (ii) the date when (x) Advance and certain of its affiliates cease to, in the aggregate, beneficially own at least 50% of the number of outstanding securities held by
Advance as of the completion of our initial public offering and (y) the then-outstanding shares of Class B common stock, in the aggregate, represent less than 7.5% of the
aggregate of the then-outstanding shares of our Class A and Class B common stock, or (iii) the date that either we or Advance experience a change of control. Following the
termination of the Governance Agreement, the approval, control, and board and committee designation rights granted to Advance pursuant to our amended and restated
certificate of incorporation will no longer be exercisable.Accordingly, for so long as the Governance Agreement remains effective in accordance with its terms, Advance will
have significant influence with respect to our management, business plans, and policies. In particular, Advance may be able to cause or prevent a change in the composition of
our board of directors, the appointment, the scope of duties of, or termination of our Chief Executive Officer, or a change of control of our company. Additionally, the consent
of Advance and Mr. Huffman, for so long as he remains Chief Executive Officer, will be required to elect the chairperson of our board of directors. These restrictions could
deprive you of an opportunity to receive a premium for your shares of Class A common stock as part of a sale of our company and ultimately might affect the market price of
our Class A common stock. 44Table of ContentsFuture sales and issuances of our Class A common stock or rights to purchase our Class A common stock, including pursuant
to our equity incentive plans, or other equity securities or securities convertible into our Class A common stock, could result in additional dilution of the percentage ownership
of our stockholders and could cause the market price of our Class A common stock to decline.Sales or issuances of a substantial number of shares of our Class A common
stock, other series of common stock, convertible securities, or other equity securities in the public market, or the perception that these sales or issuances might occur in large
quantities, could cause the market price of our Class A common stock to decline, could dilute investors, and could impair our ability to raise capital through the sale of
additional equity securities. As of December 31, 2024, we had 125,001,880 shares of Class A common stock outstanding, 55,314,099 shares of Class B common stock
outstanding, no shares of Class C common stock outstanding, and no shares of preferred stock outstanding. Certain stockholders owning shares of our common stock are
entitled, under our amended and restated investorsa€™ rights agreement, to certain rights with respect to the registration of their Class A common stock, including shares of
Class A common stock issuable upon conversion of shares of Class B common stock under the Securities Act. Any registration statement we file to register additional shares,
whether as a result of registration rights or otherwise, could cause the market price of our Class A common stock to decline or be volatile.Further, as of December 31, 2024,
we had 14,687,538 options outstanding that, if fully exercised, would result in the issuance of 11,501,771 shares of Class A common stock and 3,185,767 shares of Class B
common stock, as well as 10,746,145 shares of Class A common stock and 598,102 shares of Class B common stock issuable upon vesting of outstanding RSUs and PRSUs,
which have been registered on Form S-8 under the Securities Act. These shares can be freely sold in the public market upon issuance, subject to applicable vesting
requirements, compliance by affiliates with Rule 144, and other restrictions provided under the terms of the applicable plan and/or the award agreements entered into with
participants. In addition, we have filed and may in the future file registration statements covering shares of our common stock issued pursuant to our equity incentive plans
permitting the resale of such shares by non-affiliates in the public market without restriction under the Securities Act and the sale by affiliates in the public market subject to
compliance with the resale provisions of Rule 144.Sales, short sales, or hedging transactions involving our equity securities, whether or not we believe them to be prohibited,
could adversely affect the price of our Class A common stock. These sales also could cause the market price of our Class A common stock to fall and make it more difficult for
you to sell shares of our Class A common stock.If industry or financial analysts do not publish research or reports about our business, or if they issue inaccurate or
unfavorable research regarding our Class A common stock, the trading volume and market price of our Class A common stock could decline.The trading market for our Class
A common stock is influenced by research and reports that industry or financial analysts publish about us or our business. If one or more of these analysts ceases coverage of
our company or fails to publish reports on us regularly, we could lose visibility in the financial markets, which in turn could cause the market price or trading volume of our
Class A common stock to decline. Moreover, if our financial results fail to meet, or exceed, our announced guidance or the expectations of analysts or public investors, one or
more of the analysts who cover our company may publish unfavorable research about us, and the market price of our Class A common stock could decline.We do not intend to
pay dividends in the foreseeable future. As a result, your ability to achieve a return on your investment will depend on appreciation in the market price of our Class A common
stock.We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on shares of our capital stock and we do not anticipate paying any dividends in the foreseeable future. Any
determination to pay dividends in the future will be at the discretion of our board of directors. Additionally, our ability to pay dividends is limited by restrictions on our ability
to pay dividends or make distributions under the terms of our revolving credit facility. Accordingly, investors must for the foreseeable future rely on sales of their Class A
common stock after price appreciation, which may never occur, as the only way to realize any future gains on their investments.Anti-takeover provisions contained in our
amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws, as well as provisions of Delaware law, could impair a takeover attempt.Our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws contain, and the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the d€eDelaware General
Corporation Lawa€) contains, provisions which could have the effect of rendering more difficult, delaying, or preventing an acquisition deemed undesirable by our board of
directors. These provisions provide for the following:45Table of Contentsa€¢a multi-class structure which provides our holders of Class B common stock with the ability to
significantly influence the outcome of matters requiring stockholder approval, even if they own significantly less than a majority of the shares of our outstanding Class A, Class
B, and Class C common stock;a€¢no cumulative voting in the election of directors, which limits the ability of minority stockholders to elect director candidates;a€¢the
exclusive right of our board of directors to establish the size of the board of directors and to appoint a director to fill a vacancy, however occurring, including by expanding the
board of directors, subject to the rights granted to Advance pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation;a€¢the ability of our board of directors to
authorize the issuance of shares of preferred stock and to determine the price and other terms of those shares, including voting or other rights or preferences, without
stockholder approval, subject to the rights granted to Advance pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, which could be used to significantly dilute
the ownership of a hostile acquiror;a€¢the ability of our board of directors to alter our amended and restated bylaws without obtaining stockholder approval, subject to the
rights granted to Advance pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation;a€¢a majority or class voting requirement to amend certain provisions in our
amended and restated certificate of incorporation and a supermajority or class voting requirement to amend our amended and restated bylaws;a€¢the requirement that a
special meeting of stockholders may be called only by the chairperson of our board of directors (if any), our Chief Executive Officer, our board of directors pursuant to a
resolution adopted by a majority of our board of directors, or, if at such time the holders of shares of our Class B common stock beneficially own, in the aggregate, at least
30% of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding shares of our capital stock, our Secretary, following his or her receipt of one or more written demands to call a special
meeting from stockholders of record as of the applicable record date who hold, in the aggregate, at least 30% of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding shares of our
capital stock;a€¢at any time when the holders of our Class B common stock hold less than 30% of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding shares of our capital stock,
the requirement that any action to be taken by our stockholders be effected at a duly called annual or special meeting and not by written consent;a€¢advance notice
procedures that stockholders must comply with in order to nominate candidates to our board of directors or to propose matters to be acted upon at a stockholdersa€™
meeting, which may discourage or deter a potential acquiror from conducting a solicitation of proxies to elect the acquirora€™s own slate of directors or otherwise attempting
to obtain control of us; anda€¢the limitation of liability of, and provision of indemnification to, our directors and officers.These provisions, alone or together, could delay or
prevent hostile takeovers and changes in control or changes in our management.In addition, we have opted out of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, but
our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that the restrictions contained in Section 203 will apply to us immediately following the time at which all of the
following conditions exist (if ever): (i) Section 203 by its terms would, but for the provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, apply to us; (ii) Advance
and its affiliates and associates beneficially own less than 15% of the voting power of the then-outstanding shares of our common stock, and (iii) the Governance Agreement
has terminated in accordance with its terms. Moreover, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that, unless and until these conditions all exist, we will
be governed by provisions substantially similar to Section 203. These provisions and Section 203 each prevent some stockholders holding more than 15% of our outstanding
common stock from engaging in certain business combinations with us without the approval of the holders of substantially all of our outstanding common stock; provided,
however, that unless and until we are governed by Section 203, Advance and its affiliates and associates will not be prohibited from engaging in such business combinations
with us.Any provision of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, amended and restated bylaws, or the Delaware General Corporation Law that has the effect of
delaying or deterring a change in control could limit the opportunity for our stockholders to receive a premium for their shares of our common stock, and could also affect the
price that some investors are willing to pay for our common stock.Claims for indemnification by our directors and officers may reduce our available funds to satisfy successful
third-party claims against us and may reduce the amount of money available to us.46Table of ContentsOur amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended
and restated bylaws provide that we will indemnify our directors and officers, in each case to the fullest extent permitted by the Delaware General Corporation Law.In
addition, as permitted by Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, our amended and restated bylaws and our indemnification agreements that we have entered
or intend to enter into with our directors and officers, provide that:a€¢we will indemnify our directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted by the Delaware General



Corporation Law. The Delaware General Corporation Law provides that a corporation may indemnify such person if such person acted in good faith and in a manner such
person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the registrant and, with respect to any criminal proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe
such persond€™s conduct was unlawful;4€¢we may, in our discretion, indemnify employees and agents in those circumstances where indemnification is permitted by
applicable law;a€¢we are required to advance expenses, as incurred, to our directors and officers in connection with defending a proceeding, except that such directors or
officers will undertake to repay such advances if it is ultimately determined that such person is not entitled to indemnification;a€¢the rights conferred in our amended and
restated bylaws are not exclusive, and we are authorized to enter into indemnification agreements with our directors, officers, employees, and agents and to obtain insurance
to indemnify such persons; anda€¢we may not retroactively amend our amended and restated bylaw provisions to reduce our indemnification obligations to directors, officers,
employees, and agents.While we have obtained directorsa€™ and officersa€™ liability insurance policies, such insurance policies may not be available to us in the future at a
reasonable rate, may not cover all potential claims for indemnification, and may not be adequate to indemnify us for all liability that may be imposed. Additionally, given the
significant increase in the costs of directorsa€™ and officersa€™ insurance policies recently, we may subsequently decide to select lower overall policy limits or forgo
insurance altogether that we would otherwise rely upon to cover applicable defense costs, settlements and damages awards.Our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation and amended and restated bylaws provide for an exclusive forum in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware for certain disputes between us and our
stockholders, and that the federal district courts of the United States is the exclusive forum for the resolution of any complaint asserting a cause of action under the Securities
Act.Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws provide, that: (i) unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative
forum, the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware (or, if such court does not have subject matter jurisdiction thereof, the federal district court of the State of Delaware) is,
to the fullest extent permitted by law, the sole and exclusive forum for: (A) any derivative action or proceeding brought on our behalf, (B) any action asserting a claim for, or
based on, a breach of a fiduciary duty owed by any of our current or former directors, officers, other employees, agents, or stockholders to us or our stockholders including,
without limitation, a claim alleging the aiding and abetting of such a breach of fiduciary duty, (C) any action asserting a claim against us or any of our current or former
directors, officers, employees, agents, or stockholders arising pursuant to any provision of the Delaware General Corporation Law, our certificate of incorporation or bylaws,
our amended and restated certificate of incorporation or amended and restated bylaws, or as to which the Delaware General Corporation Law confers jurisdiction on the
Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware, or (D) any action asserting a claim related to or involving us that is governed by the internal affairs doctrine; (ii) unless we
consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum, the federal district courts of the United States is, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the sole and exclusive
forum for the resolution of any complaint asserting a cause of action arising under the Securities Act, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, although there is
uncertainty as to whether a court would enforce this provision; (iii) any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring or holding any interest in shares of our capital
stock will be deemed to have notice of and consented to these provisions; and (iv) failure to enforce the foregoing provisions would cause us irreparable harm, and we will be
entitled to equitable relief, including injunctive relief and specific performance, to enforce the foregoing provisions. Nothing in our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation or amended and restated bylaws precludes stockholders that assert claims solely under the Exchange Act, from bringing such claims in federal court to the
extent that the Exchange Act confers exclusive federal jurisdiction over such claims, subject to applicable law.The choice of forum provisions may limit a stockholdera€™s
ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that it finds favorable for disputes with us or any of our current or former directors, officers, other employees, agents, or
stockholders, which may discourage such claims against us or any of our current or former directors, officers, other employees, agents, or stockholders and result in increased
costs for investors to bring such a claim. We believe these provisions may benefit us by providing 47Table of Contentsincreased consistency in the application of the Delaware
General Corporation Law and federal securities laws by chancellors and judges, as applicable, particularly experienced in resolving corporate disputes, efficient
administration of cases on a more expedited schedule relative to other forums, and protection against the burdens of multi-forum litigation. If a court were to find the choice
of forum provision contained in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation or our amended and restated bylaws to be inapplicable or unenforceable in an action,
we may incur additional costs associated with resolving such action in other jurisdictions, which could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial condition,
and prospects.Item 1B. Unresolved Staff CommentsNone.Item 1C. CybersecurityRisk Management and StrategyThe nature of Reddita€™ s business makes the company
susceptible to cybersecurity attacks. To address this, we maintain a cybersecurity risk management program with policies and controls designed to protect our platform and
data from cyber threats. Our cybersecurity risk management program is intended to protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of our critical systems and
information. Our cybersecurity risk management program includes a cybersecurity incident response plan. We design and assess our cybersecurity risk management program
based on applicable laws and regulations and remain informed by industry standards and industry-recognized practices.Our cybersecurity risk management program is
integrated into our overall enterprise risk management program, and shares common methodologies, reporting channels, and governance processes that apply across the
enterprise risk management program.Our cybersecurity risk management program includes:a€¢risk assessments designed to help identify material cybersecurity risks to our
critical systems, information, products, services, and our broader enterprise IT environment;a€¢a dedicated security team principally responsible for managing (1) our
cybersecurity risk assessment processes, (2) our security controls, and (3) our response to cybersecurity incidents;a€¢the use of external service providers, such as third-party
penetration testing firms, bug bounty programs, or auditors, to assess, test, or otherwise assist with aspects of our security controls;a€¢cybersecurity awareness training of
our employees, incident response personnel, and senior management, including onboarding sessions and annual refresher training to address evolving threats; a€c¢a
cybersecurity incident response plan that follows recognized frameworks (e.g., National Institute of Standards and Technology Cybersecurity Framework), outlines
procedures for investigating and resolving incidents, and is supported by automated tools for threat triage and resolution; anda€¢a third-party risk management process for
service providers, suppliers, and vendors incorporating evaluations like SOCA 2 reports, annual reviews, and security questionnaires to ensure risks are understood and
addressed.We have not identified risks from known cybersecurity incidents, including as a result of any prior cybersecurity incidents, that have materially affected us,
including our business, results of operations, and financial condition. We face risks from cybersecurity threats that, if realized, are reasonably likely to materially affect us,
including our business, operations, results of operations, or financial condition. For additional information about these risks, see Part I, Item 1A, a€ceRisk Factorsa€ in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.Cybersecurity GovernanceOur board of directors considers cybersecurity risk as part of its risk oversight function and has delegated to the Audit
Committee (the 4€ceCommitteed€) oversight of cybersecurity and other information technology risks. The Committee oversees managementa€™ s implementation of our
cybersecurity risk management program. The Committee receives regular reports from management on our cybersecurity risks. In addition, management updates the
Committee, as necessary, regarding any material cybersecurity incidents, as well as any incidents with lesser impact potential. 48Table of ContentsThe Committee reports to
the full board of directors regarding its activities, including those related to cybersecurity. The full board of directors also receives briefings from management on our cyber
risk management program. Board members receive presentations on cybersecurity topics from our Chief Information Security Officer (4€ceCISO4a€), internal security staff, or
external experts as part of the board of directorsa€™ continuing education on topics that impact public companies.Our CISO, Fredrick Lee, has over twenty years of
experience in information security, engineering, and other technology-related roles. Mr. Lee currently oversees Reddita€™s Security, Privacy, And Compliance Engineering
(&€0eSPACEA&€) team, which is responsible for assessing and managing our material risks from cybersecurity threats. Our SPACE team has primary responsibility for our
overall cybersecurity risk management program and supervises both our internal cybersecurity personnel and our retained external cybersecurity consultants. Our SPACE
team has a strong foundation of expertise, developed over years of experience in cybersecurity and engineering across diverse industries, including technology. Our SPACE
team supervises efforts to prevent, detect, mitigate, remediate, and appropriately report cybersecurity risks and incidents through various means, which may include briefings
from internal security personnel; threat intelligence and other information obtained from governmental, public, or private sources, including external consultants engaged by
us; and alerts and reports produced by security tools deployed in the IT environment.Item 2. PropertiesOur corporate headquarters is located in San Francisco, California,
where we lease approximately 48,000 square feet of office space pursuant to a lease agreement that expires in 2029, subject to the terms thereof. We lease additional offices
in the United States and around the world, including in New York, Chicago, Los Angeles, London, and more. All of our offices are located in areas of the globe where we can
attract the best talent and our employees benefit from a space to be together when co-creating and working to achieve our mission.We believe that our existing facilities are
sufficient for our near-term needs. We believe that suitable additional alternative spaces will be available in the future on commercially reasonable terms, if
required.Reddita€™ s workplace philosophy is focused on providing versatility for employees while fostering a diverse and high-performing company culture. Our ability to
recruit and retain top talent is bolstered by Reddita€™ s flexible work policy, which provides support and opportunities for employees to work remotely or in one of our offices.
This strategy, in conjunction with our competitive compensation programs reflective of the cost of talent in high labor markets like the San Francisco Bay Area, has created
advantages that have contributed to the growth and strength of our company.Item 3. Legal ProceedingsWe are currently involved in, and may in the future be involved in,
legal proceedings, claims, and government investigations in the ordinary course of business, including claims for infringing, misappropriating, or otherwise violating
intellectual property rights related to our products, including our API, and/or the content contributed by our Redditors. Although the results of these proceedings, claims, and
investigations cannot be predicted with certainty, we do not believe that the final outcome of these matters is reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition, or results of operations. Regardless of final outcomes, however, any such proceedings, claims, and investigations may nonetheless impose a
significant burden on management and employees and may come with costly defense costs or unfavorable preliminary and interim rulings.Item 4. Mine Safety DisclosuresNot
applicable.49Table of ContentsPart IIItem 5. Market for Registranta€™s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity SecuritiesMarket
Information for Our Common StockOur Class A common stock has been listed on the NYSE under the symbol 4€0eRDDT&€ since March 21, 2024. Our Class B common stock
and Class C common stock are not listed or traded on any stock exchange.Holders of Our Common StockAs of DecemberA 31, 2024, there were approximately 34 stockholders
of record of our Class A common stock, 37 stockholders of record of our Class B common stock, and no stockholders of record of our Class C common stock. The actual
number of stockholders is greater than this number of record holders and includes stockholders who are beneficial owners but whose shares are held in street name by
brokers and other nominees. This number of holders also does not include stockholders whose shares may be held in trust by other entities.Dividend PolicyWe have never
declared or paid any cash dividends on our capital stock and do not expect to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Any future determination to declare cash
dividends will be made at the discretion of our board of directors, subject to applicable laws, and will depend on a number of factors, including our financial condition, results
of operations, capital requirements, contractual restrictions, general business conditions, and other factors that our board of directors believes are relevant.Stock
Performance GraphThis performance graph shall not be deemed &€cesoliciting materiala€ or to be a€cefileda€ with the SEC for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or
incorporated by reference into any of our filings under the Securities Act.The performance graph below shows the cumulative total return to our stockholders between March
21, 2024 (the date that our Class A common stock commenced trading on the NYSE) through DecemberA 31, 2024, in comparison to the Standard & Poora€™s 500 Stock
Index (4€0eS&P 500 Indexa€), the NYSE Composite, and the Dow Jones Internet Composite Index (4€ceDJINETA€). The graph assumes that $100 was invested in our ClassA A
common stock and each index at their closing prices on March 21, 2024 and data for the indexes assumes reinvestment of any dividends. The stock price performance shown
in the graph represents past performance and is not necessarily indicative of future stock price performance.Recent Sales of Unregistered SecuritiesNone.50Table of
ContentsUse of ProceedsOn March 20, 2024, our registration statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-277256), as amended (the 4&€ceRegistration Statementa€), was declared
effective by the SEC. There has been no material change in the expected use of the net proceeds from our IPO as described in our prospectus filed March 21, 2024 and other
periodic reports previously filed with the SEC.Issuer Purchases of Equity SecuritiesNone.Item 6. [Reserved]51Table of Contentsltem 7. Managementa€™s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of OperationsThe following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in
conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. In addition to historical consolidated
financial information, the following discussion contains forward-looking statements that reflect our plans, estimates, and beliefs that involve significant risks and
uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those discussed in the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to those differences
include those discussed below and elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, particularly in a€ceRisk Factorsa€ and a€ceNote Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements.a4€The following discusses financial conditions and results of operations for the year ended DecemberA 31, 2024 compared to the year ended DecemberA 31, 2023.
Discussion of financial conditions and results of operations for the year ended DecemberA 31, 2023 compared to the year ended DecemberA 31, 2022 can be found in
a€ceManagementa€™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operationsa€ for the year ended DecemberA 31, 2023 included in our Prospectus filed
with the SEC on March 21, 2024.Highlights of 2024 ResultsUser Metricsa€¢Daily Active Uniques (4€ceDAUQA€) were 101.7A million for the three months ended December
31, 2024, an increase of 39% year over yeara€¢Average revenue per unique (&4€0cARPUA€) was $4.21 for the three months ended December 31, 2024, an increase of 23% year
over yearFinancial Resultsa€¢Revenue was $1.3 billion for the year ended December 31, 2024, an increase of 62% year over year a€¢Gross margin was 90.5% for the year



ended December 31, 2024, as compared to 86.2% in the year ended December 31, 20234€¢Operating expenses were $1.7 billion for the year ended December 31, 2024, as
compared to $833.2 million in the year ended December 31, 2023a€¢Net loss was $484.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2024, as compared to $90.8 million in the
year ended December 31, 20234€¢Adjusted EBITDA was $298.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2024, as compared to $(69.3) million in the year ended December
31, 2023a€¢Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities was $222.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2024, as compared to $(75.1) million in the year ended
December 31, 2023a€¢Free Cash Flow was $215.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2024, as compared to $(84.8) million in the year ended December 31, 20234€
¢Cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities were $1.8 billion as of DecemberA 31, 2024Business and Macroeconomic ConditionsIn recent years, the global economy
and other macroeconomic conditions, including concerns related to inflation and rising interest rates and geopolitical risks, have resulted in uncertainty in the advertising
market and have impacted brandsa€™ and agenciesa€™ ability and willingness to invest in advertising. We expect that these macroeconomic conditions may continue to
impact revenue growth in the near term, although we are unable to predict the duration or degree of such volatility with any certainty.Since the continuing impact of these
macroeconomic conditions on our results of operations and overall financial performance remains highly unpredictable, our past results may not be indicative of our future
performance. Given the uncertainty, we are unable to predict the extent and duration of the impact of these conditions on our employees, users, and advertisers, or our
business, results of operations, and financial condition.52Table of ContentsFor more information about the factors potentially impacting our performance, see a€ceRisk
Factorsa€ elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.Key Financial and Operating MetricsWe review a number of metrics, including the key metrics discussed below, to
evaluate our business, measure our performance, identify trends affecting our business, formulate business plans, and make strategic decisions.User MetricsDaily Active
Unique. We define a daily active unique (4€ceDAUQA€) as a user whom we can identify with a unique identifier who has visited a page on the Reddit website, www.reddit.com,
or opened a Reddit application at least once during a 24-hour period. We calculate average DAU( for a particular period by adding the number of DAUq on each day of that
period and dividing that sum by the number of days in that period. DAU(q is shown globally and also broken out by the United States and the rest of the world because these
markets have different characteristics. Most notably, we are more advanced in engagement and monetization in the United States than in the rest of the world. We measure
DAU(q because we believe that this metric helps management and investors understand usage of and engagement with our platform. DAUq is the primary metric by which we
measure the scale of our active user base.DAU(q includes visits from those who have logged in to a registered account as well as those who have not logged in toa€”or do not
haved€”a registered account. Visitors that come to Reddit from search engines are generally not logged in and originate from both desktop and mobile web. Currently,
monetization of these users is mainly through conversation pages and feed ads. Measuring the number of logged-out visitors is difficult and complex. For example, prior to the
first quarter of 2023, a portion of our historical DAUq metric counted views of pages that were hosted using Googlea€™s Accelerated Mobile Page (a€ceAMPA€) framework.
The accuracy of counting the DAU(q attributable to this AMP traffic relied on the accuracy and completeness of information received from Google, which had not been
historically complete and consistent. As such, our historical DAUq metrics are not directly comparable quarter over quarter or year over year. To the extent that our metric
includes views of pages hosted on third-party infrastructure, like Googlea€™s AMP framework, the accuracy and comparability of our metrics will depend on the accuracy and
consistency of the information received from any such third party.In addition, we monitor logged-in DAUq, which we define as a user whom we can identify with a unique
identifier who has visited a page on the Reddit website, www.reddit.com, or opened a Reddit application at least once during a 24-hour period and was logged in to a
registered account. We measure logged-in DAUq because these users tend to have higher engagement and spend more time on our platform compared to users who are not
logged in to a registered account. Weekly Active Unique. We define a weekly active unique (24€ceWAUQ&€) as a user whom we can identify with a unique identifier who has
visited a page on the Reddit website, www.reddit.com, or opened a Reddit application at least once during a trailing seven-day period. We calculate average quarterly WAUq
for a particular period by adding the number of WAU(q on each day of that period and dividing that sum by the number of days in that period. We measure WAUq because we
believe that this metric helps management and investors understand the reach of our platform.During the three months ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, we deployed
further advances in our process used to identify and address activity by users and visitors, including web crawlers and scrapers. As we identify automated agents, we remove
them from our DAUq and WAU(q count prospectively and do not recalculate DAUq and WAU(q for prior periods if we assess such impact to be immaterial. As we have
continued to improve our capabilities to identify suspicious traffic, we have not seen this methodology materially impact trends in DAUq and WAU(q from quarter to
quarter.53Table of ContentsTrends in User MetricsQuarterly Average DAUq(in millions)Total DAUq YoY Growth:5%7%15%27%37%51%47%39%Logged-in DAUq YoY
Growth:13%14%19%21%27%31%27%27%Total DAUq YoY Growth:6%9%19%34%45%59%51%32%Total DAUqQ YoY Growth:4%5%12%21%30%44%44%46%Logged-in DAUq
YoY Growth:12%12%16%20%27%32%29%24%Logged-in DAUqQ YoY Growth:14%16%22%21%28%30%26%29%We assess both year over year and quarter over quarter
growth of DAU(q in each period.In the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, global DAUq grew 39% compared to the prior year period, driven by 32% growth in DAUq in
the United States and 46% growth in DAUq in the rest of world. Global DAUq grew 5% compared to the prior quarter period, driven by 10% growth in DAU(q in the rest of
world while DAUq in the United States remained flat. The growth in global DAUq in the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024 compared to the prior year period and prior
quarter period was driven by the combination of third-party search engine and algorithm changes, traction in our growth strategies, particularly in machine translation, and
product enhancements.54Table of ContentsQuarterly Average WAU((in millions) WAUq YoY
Growth:2%5%15%29%40%57%53%42%DAUq/WAUQ:28%28%28%27%27%27%27%27%WAUq YoY Growth:4%9%21%39%53%68%58%31%WAUq YoY
Growth:1%1%9%20%30%48%48%52%In the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, global WAUq grew 42% compared to the prior year period, driven by 31% growth in
WAU(q in the United States and 52% growth in WAU(q in the rest of world. In the three months ended DecemberA 31, 2024, global WAU(q increased 4% compared to the prior
quarter period, driven by 11% growth in WAU(q in the rest of world, partially offset by a 3% decline in WAU(q in the United States. For the three months ended DecemberA 31,
2024, the proportion of DAUq to WAUq was 27%.User Growth and EngagementThe absolute number of DAUq is a critical component to our business because it influences our
advertising inventory as well as our infrastructure expenses.We believe we have the opportunity to continue to grow our DAUq in the United States and around the world.
Growth in DAUq depends on our ability to attract new users and retain existing users. We aim to increase DAU(q by scaling internationally, improving discovery and the user
experience, elevating conversations and video, modernizing search, and providing customized content recommendations. We believe we can grow engagement and convert
more WAU(q into DAUq by making it easier for new and existing Redditors to discover relevant communities and content. We believe we can convert logged-out DAU(q into
logged-in DAUq by making the user experience, including search, simpler and more personalized to further increase engagement and retention. Growth in DAUq is also
impacted by external factors such as worldwide events, 55Table of Contentscultural trends, the global economy, and actions by external parties such as changes in internet
search engine algorithms and dynamics.MonetizationWe generate a majority of our revenue through the sale of advertising on our mobile applications and website. We built
our advertising business by focusing on top U.S.-based advertisers, and over time we have expanded our focus towards mid-sized and smaller advertisers, as well as
international advertisers. The pricing of our advertising products is affected by our technological investments as well as other factors, including the global economy and the
highly competitive nature of our industry.We also generate revenue from content licensing, Reddit Premium subscriptions, and products within our user economy. We are in
the early stages of monetization from content licensing and expect our growing data advantage to continue to be valuable across several applications of LLMs (e.g., search,
run-time inference). We also intend to open additional monetization channels for Reddit by providing our users and creators with the requisite tools and incentives to drive
continued creation, improvements, and commerce.Trends in Monetization MetricsIn the year ended DecemberA 31, 2024, we recorded revenue of $1.3A billion, as compared
to revenue of $804.0A million for the year ended DecemberA 31, 2023, representing an increase of 62% compared to the prior year period. ARPU. We define average revenue
per unique (&€ceARPUA€) as quarterly revenue in a given geography divided by the average DAU(q in that geography. For the purposes of calculating ARPU, advertising
revenue in a given geography is based on the geographic location in which advertising impressions are delivered, as this approximates revenue based on user activity, while
other revenue in a given geography is based on the billing address of the customer. This differs from the presentation of our revenue by geography in the notes to our
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, where both advertising revenue and other revenue are based on the billing address
of the customer.We present ARPU globally and also broken out on a United States and rest of world basis because we currently monetize users in the United States and the
rest of the world at different rates. We measure ARPU because we believe that this metric helps our management and investors assess the extent to which we are monetizing
our DAUq. Monetization of new users is generally at a lower rate than existing users and as such, ARPU tends to grow at a lower rate than revenue in periods of strong DAUq
growth. Currently, logged-out users tend to have lower engagement and spend less time on our platform compared to users who are logged in to a registered account, and
therefore, logged-in users generally contribute significantly more to ARPU than logged-out users. Our ARPU reflects the seasonality of our advertising revenue, with the
fourth quarter typically being the strongest quarter of each year, especially in the United States, our most developed geography. United States ARPU is higher primarily due
to the relative size and maturity of the U.S. digital advertising market, a dynamic we expect will continue for the foreseeable future.56Table of ContentsQuarterly ARPU(in
dollars) YoY Growth:7%15%5%(2)%8%2%14%23%QoQ Growth:(22)%11%4%9%(14)%5%16%18%Y0Y Growth:5%15%a€"%(7)%3%(5)%12%28%YOY
Growth:12%9%16%3%10%17%16%25%QoQ Growth:(22)%13%1%5%(13)%4%19%20%QoQ Growth:(23)%6%8%18%(18)%13%6%27%During the three months ended
DecemberA 31, 2024, ARPU was $4.21, an increase of 23% compared to $3.42 for the prior year period, United States ARPU was $7.04, compared to $5.51 for the prior year
period, and rest of world ARPU was $1.67, compared to $1.34 for the prior year period. The increase in global ARPU compared to the prior year period was due primarily to
an increase in advertising revenue driven by an increase in impressions delivered, and to a lesser extent, an increase in content licensing revenue. The increase in global
ARPU compared to the prior quarter period was due primarily to an increase in advertising revenue driven by an increase in impressions delivered, and to a lesser extent, an
increase in pricing.Non-GAAP Financial MeasuresWe use certain non-GAAP financial measures to supplement our consolidated financial statements, which are presented in
accordance with U.S. GAAP, to evaluate our core operating performance. These non-GAAP financial measures include Adjusted EBITDA and Free Cash Flow. We use these
non-GAAP financial measures to facilitate reviews of our operational performance and as a basis for strategic planning. By excluding certain items that are non-recurring or
not reflective of the performance of our normal course of business, we believe that Adjusted EBITDA and Free Cash Flow provide meaningful supplemental information
regarding our performance. Accordingly, we believe these non-GAAP financial measures are useful to investors and others because they allow investors to supplement their
understanding of our financial trends and evaluate our ongoing and future performance in the same manner as management. However, there are a number of limitations
related to the 57Table of Contentsuse of non-GAAP financial measures as they reflect the exercise of judgment by our management about which expenses are included or
excluded in determining these non-GAAP measures. These non-GAAP measures should be considered in addition to, not as a substitute for or in isolation from, our financial
results prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Other companies, including companies in our industry, may calculate these non-GAAP financial measures differently or not at
all, which reduces their usefulness as comparative measures.Adjusted EBITDAAdjusted EBITDA is defined as net income (loss) excluding interest (income) expense, net,
income tax expense (benefit), depreciation and amortization, stock-based compensation expense and related taxes, other (income) expense, net, and certain other non-
recurring or non-cash items impacting net income (loss) that we do not consider indicative of our ongoing business performance. Other (income) expense, net consists
primarily of realized gains and losses on sales of marketable securities, foreign currency transaction gains and losses, and other income and expense that are not indicative of
our core operating performance. We consider the exclusion of certain non-recurring or non-cash items in calculating Adjusted EBITDA to provide a useful measure for
investors and others to evaluate our operating results in the same manner as management.The following table presents a reconciliation of our net income (loss), the most
directly comparable financial measure presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP, to Adjusted EBITDA:Year ended December 31,202420232022(in thousands)Reconciliation of
Adjusted EBITDA:Net income (loss)$(484,276)$(90,824)$(158,550)Add (deduct):Interest (income) expense, net(78,121)(53,281)(15,681)Income tax expense (benefit)
(931)3,801A 622A Depreciation and amortization(1)15,643A 13,702A 8,000A Stock-based compensation expense and related taxes(2)842,932A 49,086A 55,768A Restructuring
costs(3)a€”A 8,098A a€”A Other (income) expense, net2,760A 143A 1,448A Adjusted EBITDA$298,007A $(69,275)$(108,393) (1)Includes depreciation and
amortization as follows:Year ended December 31,202420232022(in thousands)Cost of revenue$a€”A $152A $714A Research and development9,520A 8,001A 4,687A Sales and
marketing4,847A 4,340A 1,768A General and administrative1,276A 1,209A 831A Depreciation and amortization$15,643A $13,702A $8,000A (2)Includes stock-based
compensation expense and related taxes as follows:Year ended December 31,202420232022(in thousands)Cost of revenue$620A $101A $133A Research and
development464,858A 24,334A 35,917A Sales and marketing87,445A 5,678A 7,678A General and administrative290,009A 18,973A 12,040A Stock-based compensation
expense and related taxes$842,932A $49,086A $55,768A (3)During the year ended DecemberA 31, 2023, we incurred restructuring costs of $8.1 million, primarily composed
of severance and benefits expense. These charges are non-recurring and are not reflective of underlying trends in our business.58Table of ContentsFree Cash FlowFree Cash
Flow represents net cash provided by (used in) operating activities less purchases of property and equipment. We believe that Free Cash Flow is useful to investors as a
liquidity measure because it measures our ability to generate or use cash. Once our business needs and obligations are met, cash can be used to maintain a strong balance
sheet and invest in future growth. Additionally, we believe that Free Cash Flow is an important measure since we use third-party infrastructure partners to host our services



and therefore we do not incur significant capital expenditures to support revenue generating activities.The following table presents a reconciliation of net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities, the most directly comparable financial measure calculated in accordance with U.S. GAAP, to Free Cash Flow:Year ended December
31,202420232022(in thousands)Reconciliation of Free Cash Flow:Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities$222,068A $(75,114)$(94,021)Less:Purchases of property
and equipment(6,248)(9,724)(6,233)Free Cash Flow$215,820A $(84,838)$(100,254)Results of OperationsThe following table summarizes our historical consolidated
statements of operations data for the periods indicated:Year ended December 31,2024 vs. 20232023 vs. 2022202420232022$ Change% Change$ Change% Change(in
thousands, except percentages)Revenue$1,300,205A $804,029A $666,701A $496,176A 62A %$137,328A 21A %Net income (loss)(484,276)(90,824)(158,550)
(393,452)NM67,726A (43)%Adjusted EBITDA(1)298,007A (69,275)(108,393)367,282A NM39,118A (36)% NM - Not meaningful(1)See a€ceNon-GAAP Financial
Measuresa€”Adjusted EBITDA4&€ for more information and for a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to net income (loss), the most directly comparable financial measure
calculated and presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP.Components of Results of OperationsRevenueWe generate a majority of our revenue through the sale of advertising
on our mobile applications and website. We recognize revenue only after transferring control of promised goods or services to customers, which occurs when a user clicks on
an ad contracted on a cost per click (2€ceCPC4&€) basis, views an ad contracted on a cost per thousand impressions (4€0eCPM4a€) basis, views a video ad contracted on a cost
per view (a€0eCPVa€) basis, or on a fixed fee basis, based upon ad delivery over the service period, which is typically less than 30 days in duration.We also generate revenue
from content licensing, Reddit Premium subscriptions, and products within our user economy. In our content licensing arrangements, we provide customers with the right to
access content from our platform over the contractual period. We recognize content licensing revenue as our content partners consume and benefit from their use of the
licensed content, which is generally ratably over the license period. We recognize Reddit Premium subscription revenue ratably over the subscription period, which is
generally less than one year. Products within our user economy include Reddit Gold and Collectible Avatars. Revenue from Reddit Gold and Collectible Avatars was not
material for the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.Cost of RevenueCost of revenue consists primarily of payments to third parties for the cost of hosting and
supporting our mobile applications and website. In addition, cost of revenue includes expenses directly associated with the delivery of our advertising and other services,
including advertising measurement services and credit card and other transaction processing fees. Cost of revenue also consists of employee-related costs, including salaries,
benefits, and stock-based compensation.59Table of ContentsResearch and Development ExpensesResearch and development expenses consist primarily of employee-related
costs including salaries, benefits, and stock-based compensation for engineers and other employees engaged in the research, design, and development of new and existing
products. Research and development expenses also include professional services and hosting costs associated with internal research and development activities, as well as
allocated facilities and other supporting overhead costs.Sales and Marketing ExpensesSales and marketing expenses consist primarily of employee-related costs including
salaries, benefits, and stock-based compensation for employees engaged in sales, sales support, business and brand development, marketing, and customer service functions.
Sales commissions are expensed as incurred in sales and marketing expenses as the expected period of benefit is one year or less. Sales and marketing expenses also include
costs incurred for advertising, market research, branding, professional services, marketing, and promotional expenditures, as well as allocated facilities and other supporting
overhead costs.General and Administrative ExpensesGeneral and administrative expenses consist primarily of employee-related costs including salaries, benefits, and stock-
based compensation for certain executives as well as employees engaged in finance, legal, human resources, information technology, communications, and other
administrative teams. General and administrative expenses also include costs incurred for professional services, as well as allocated facilities and other supporting overhead
costs.Other Income (Expense), NetOther income (expense), net, consists primarily of interest income, interest expense, realized gains and losses on sales of marketable
securities, and foreign currency transaction gains and losses.Income Tax Expense (Benefit)We are subject to income taxes in the United States and foreign jurisdictions. Our
income tax provision represents the income tax expense or benefit associated with our operations based on the tax laws of the jurisdictions in which we operate. The foreign
jurisdictions where we operate have different statutory tax rates than the United States. Additionally, certain of our foreign earnings may also be taxable in the United States.
Accordingly, our effective tax rates will vary depending on the relative proportion of foreign to domestic income, use of foreign tax credits, changes in the valuation of our
deferred tax assets and liabilities, and changes in tax laws.60Table of ContentsDiscussion of Results of OperationsThe following table sets forth our consolidated statements of
operations data for the periods indicated:Year ended December 31,202420232022(in thousands)Consolidated Statements of Operations

Data:Revenue$1,300,205A $804,029A $666,701A Costs and expenses:Cost of revenue123,595A 111,011A 104,799A Research and

development935,152A 438,346A 365,164A Sales and marketing350,579A 230,175A 225,078A General and administrative451,447A 164,658A 143,822A Total costs and
expenses1,860,773A 944,190A 838,863A Income (loss) from operations(560,568)(140,161)(172,162)Other income (expense), net75,361A 53,138A 14,234A Income (loss)
before income taxes(485,207)(87,023)(157,928)Income tax expense (benefit)(931)3,801A 622A Net income (loss)$(484,276)$(90,824)$(158,550)Adjusted
EBITDA(1)$298,007A $(69,275)$(108,393)Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities$222,068A $(75,114)$(94,021)Free Cash

Flow(2)$215,820A $(84,838)$(100,254) (1)See a€eNon-GAAP Financial Measuresa€”Adjusted EBITDA4&€ for more information and for a reconciliation of
Adjusted EBITDA to net income (loss), the most directly comparable financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP.(2)See &€ceNon-GAAP
Financial Measuresa€”Free Cash Flowa€ for more information and for a reconciliation of Free Cash Flow to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities, the most
directly comparable financial measure calculated and presented in accordance with U.S. GAAP.The following table sets forth our consolidated statements of operations data
expressed as a percentage of revenue for the periods indicated:Year ended December 31,202420232022Consolidated Statements of Operations

Data:Revenuel00A %100A %100A %Costs and expenses:Cost of revenuel0A 14A 16A Research and development72A 55A 55A Sales and marketing27A 29A 34A General and
administrative35A 20A 22A Total costs and expenses144A 118A 127A Income (loss) from operations(44)(18)(27)Other income (expense), net6A 7A 2A Income (loss) before
income taxes(38)(11)(25)Income tax expense (benefit)0A 0A 0A Net income (loss)(38)%(11)%(25)%61Table of ContentsComparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and
2023RevenueYear ended December 31,20242023$ Change% Change(in thousands, except percentages)Revenue$l,300,205A $804,029A $496,176A 62A %Revenue for the
year ended December 31, 2024 increased by $496.2A million, or 62%, compared to the prior year. The growth in revenue was due primarily to an increase in advertising
revenue driven mainly by an increase in impressions delivered. In addition, other revenues increased as a result of content licensing agreements executed in 2024.Cost of
RevenueYear ended December 31,20242023$ Change% Change(in thousands, except percentages)Cost of revenue$123,595A $111,011A $12,584A 11A %Cost of revenue for
the year ended December 31, 2024 increased by $12.6A million, or 11%, compared to the prior year. The increase in cost of revenue was primarily attributable to increased
hosting usage to support user growth on our platform and an increase in advertising measurement and other services, partially offset by lower hosting prices and hosting cost
efficiencies.Research and Development ExpensesYear ended December 31,20242023$ Change% Change(in thousands, except percentages)Research and
development$935,152A $438,346A $496,806A 113A %Research and development expenses for the year ended December 31, 2024 increased by $496.8A million, or 113%,
compared to the prior year. The increase was driven primarily by higher stock-based compensation expense and related taxes, including the cumulative catch-up upon IPO of
stock-based compensation expense and related taxes for RSUs with a liquidity-based vesting condition and an increase in other employee-related costs.Sales and Marketing
ExpensesYear ended December 31,20242023$ Change% Change(in thousands, except percentages)Sales and marketing$350,579A $230,175A $120,404A 52A %Sales and
marketing expenses for the year ended December 31, 2024 increased by $120.4A million, or 52%, compared to the prior year. The increase was driven primarily by higher
stock-based compensation expense and related taxes, including the cumulative catch-up upon IPO of stock-based compensation expense and related taxes for RSUs with a
liquidity-based vesting condition and an increase in other employee-related costs.General and Administrative ExpensesYear ended December 31,20242023$ Change%
Change(in thousands, except percentages)General and administrative$451,447A $164,658A $286,789A 174A %62Table of ContentsGeneral and administrative expenses for
the year ended December 31, 2024 increased by $286.8A million, or 174%, compared to the prior year. The increase was driven primarily by higher stock-based compensation
expense and related taxes, including the cumulative catch-up upon IPO of stock-based compensation expense and related taxes for RSUs with a liquidity-based vesting
condition.Other Income (Expense), NetYear ended December 31,20242023$ Change% Change(in thousands, except percentages)Other income (expense),

net$75,361A $53,138A $22,223A 42A %Other income (expense), net for the year ended December 31, 2024 increased by $22.2A million, or 42%, compared to the prior year.
The increase was primarily due to higher interest earned on our cash and investments driven by a higher invested balance and higher interest rates.Income Tax Expense
(Benefit)Year ended December 31,20242023$ Change% Change(in thousands, except percentages)Income tax expense (benefit)$(931)$3,801A $(4,732)(124)%Income tax
expense (benefit) for the year ended December 31, 2024 decreased by $4.7A million, or 124%, compared to the prior year. The decrease in income tax expense was primarily
attributable to a decrease in taxable income in the current period.Liquidity and Capital ResourcesWe have historically financed our operations primarily through net proceeds
from the sale of convertible preferred stock and payments received from our customers. Additionally, in March 2024, we completed our IPO, which resulted in net proceeds of
$600.0A million after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of $31.6A million. We began generating net positive operating cash flows in 2024. Our primary uses
of cash are employee-related costs and the cost of hosting our mobile applications and website. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, we had $1.8A billion in cash, cash equivalents, and
marketable securities. Our cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in bank accounts, money market accounts, and other highly liquid investments with original maturities of
90 days or less from the date of purchase. Marketable securities consist of U.S. and non-U.S. government securities, investment-grade corporate and government agency
securities, certificates of deposit, and commercial paper. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, approximately 2% of our cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities was held
outside of the United States.On OctoberA 8, 2021, we entered into a five-year, $750.0 million, revolving loan and standby letter of credit facility agreement (4€ceRevolving
Credit Facilitya€) of which $100.0 million can be issued as letters of credit. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, we have issued two letters of credit, one of which is denominated in a
foreign currency, for an aggregate of $4.9 million, which reduced the letter of credit borrowings available under the Revolving Credit Facility to $95.1 million. The aggregate
available balance under the Revolving Credit Facility was $745.1 million as of DecemberA 31, 2024.0n May 23, 2023, we amended the terms of the Revolving Credit Facility
to replace LIBOR with Term SOFR as the interest rate benchmark. Under the amended terms of the Revolving Credit Facility, borrowings can be either ABR Loans, Term
Benchmark Loans, or SONIA Loans. Outstanding ABR Loans bear interest at a rate equal to the greatest of (A) the Prime Rate, (B) the NYFRB Rate plus 0.5%, (C) the Adjusted
Term SOFR Rate plus 1.0%, or (D) 1.0% (each as defined in the amended Revolving Credit Facility), in each case plus 0.25%. Outstanding Term Benchmark Loans bear
interest at the Adjusted Term SOFR Rate, the Adjusted EURIBOR Rate, or the Adjusted AUD Rate (each as defined in the amended Revolving Credit Facility), as applicable, in
each case, plus 1.25%. Outstanding SONIA Loans bear interest at a rate equal to the Adjusted Daily Simple SONIA (as such term is defined in the amended Revolving Credit
Facility) plus 1.25%. We are required to pay a quarterly commitment fee that accrues at 0.15% per annum on the unused portion of the aggregate commitments under the
credit facility.63Table of ContentsThe Revolving Credit Facility contains customary conditions on our borrowing, including events of default and covenants. Covenants include
restrictions on our and certain of our subsidiariesa€™ ability to incur indebtedness, grant liens, make distributions to holders of our preferred and common stock, make
investments, or engage in transactions with our affiliates, and require us to maintain a minimum liquidity. The obligations under the Revolving Credit Facility are secured by
liens on substantially all of our assets, including intellectual property assets. We were in compliance with all covenants as of DecemberA 31, 2024.We believe our cash flows
from operations, existing cash, cash equivalents, and marketable securities, and amounts available under our Revolving Credit Facility will be sufficient to meet our working
capital and capital expenditure needs for at least the next 12 months and for the foreseeable future. We continuously evaluate our liquidity and capital resources, including
our access to external capital, to ensure we can finance our future capital needs. The following table summarizes our cash flows for the periods presented:Year ended
December 31,202420232022(in thousands)Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities$222,068A $(75,114)$(94,021)Net cash provided by (used in) investing
activities(440,687)41,291A (804,183)Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities379,535A (811)(3,784)Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted
cash$160,916A $(34,634)$(901,988)Free Cash Flow$215,820A $(84,838)$(100,254)Operating ActivitiesNet cash provided by operating activities was $222.1A million in the
year ended December 31, 2024, resulting primarily from adjustments for non-cash items, primarily related to stock-based compensation expense of $801.6 million, and an
increase in accrued expenses and other liabilities of $59.3A million due to timing of payments. These increases were partially offset by net loss of $(484.3)A million, an
increase in accounts receivable of $104.3A million related to an increase in advertising revenue, and amortization of premium (accretion of discount) on marketable securities,
net, of $(43.4)A million. Net cash used in operating activities was $(75.1) million in the year ended December 31, 2023, resulting primarily from net loss of $(90.8)A million,
and an increase in accounts receivable of $53.3 million related to an increase in advertising revenue. These increases were partially offset by adjustments for non-cash items,
primarily related to stock-based compensation expense of $47.6 million, and an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses and other liabilities of $25.2A million due
to timing of payments.Investing ActivitiesNet cash used in investing activities was $(440.7)A million in the year ended December 31, 2024, primarily due to additional
purchases of marketable securities of $2.0 billion and cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired of $17.1 million, partially offset by maturities of marketable securities of
$1.6 billion. Net cash provided by investing activities was $41.3 million in the year ended December 31, 2023, primarily due to maturities and proceeds from the sale of
marketable securities of $1.3 billion, partially offset by additional purchases of marketable securities.Financing ActivitiesNet cash provided by financing activities was



$379.5A million in the year ended December 31, 2024 and consisted primarily of cash proceeds from the issuance of Class A common stock in our IPO, net of underwriting
discounts and commissions, of $600.0A million and proceeds from exercises of employee stock options of $89.0A million, partially offset by taxes paid related to net share
settlement of restricted stock units of $294.6 million. Net cash used in financing activities was $(0.8)A million in the year ended December 31, 2023 and consisted primarily of
cash payments of $4.3 million for taxes paid related to net share settlement of restricted stock units and other financing activities of $4.9 million, partially offset by proceeds
from exercises of employee stock options of $8.4A million.64Table of ContentsFree Cash FlowFree Cash Flow was $215.8A million for the year ended December 31, 2024, and
was composed of net cash provided by operating activities, resulting primarily from adjustments for non-cash items, partially offset by net loss and changes in working capital.
Free Cash Flow was $(84.8)A million for the year ended December 31, 2023, and was composed of net cash used in operating activities, resulting primarily from net loss,
partially offset by adjustments for non-cash items and changes in working capital. Free Cash Flow also included purchases of property and equipment of $6.2 million and $9.7
million for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. For the year ended DecemberA 31, 2024, the increase in Free Cash Flow as compared to the prior year
was driven primarily by the increase in cash provided by operating activities.Off-Balance Sheet ArrangementsWe did not have during the periods presented, and we do not
currently have, any off-balance sheet financing arrangements or any relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, including entities sometimes referred
to as structured finance or special purpose entities, that were established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or
limited purposes.Contractual Obligations and CommitmentsThe following table summarizes our contractual obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2024:TotalLess
than 1 Year14€“3 Years34a€“5 Years(in thousands)Operating leases$30,165A $7,509A $14,916A $7,740A Purchase

commitments336,978A 173,662A 163,313A 3A Total$367,143A $181,171A $178,229A $7,743A Under the terms of certain of our purchase commitments, we are contractually
obligated to purchase specified minimums over the contract term. If we do not meet the specified minimums, we will have an obligation to pay the service provider any
shortfall. Obligations and commitments presented above are before consideration of any credits that may be earned during the term.See Note 74€”Operating Leases and Note
114€”Commitments and Contingencies of the notes to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional discussion
on our operating leases and purchase commitments.Critical Accounting Policies and EstimatesWe prepare our consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S.
GAAP. Preparing these financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, expenses, and
related disclosures. We evaluate our estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis. Our estimates are based on historical experience and various other assumptions that we
believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Our actual results could differ significantly from these estimates. To the extent that there are differences between our
estimates and actual results, our future financial statement presentation, results of operations, financial condition, and cash flows will be affected.The critical accounting
estimates, assumptions, and judgments that we believe to have the most significant impact on our consolidated financial statements are described below. Refer to Note
2a&€”Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies of the notes to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for
further information on our other significant accounting policies.Revenue RecognitionWe generate a majority of our revenue through the sale of advertising on our mobile
applications and website. Other revenue consists of revenue from content licensing, Reddit Premium subscriptions, and products within our user economy.We determine
revenue recognition by identifying the contract or contracts with a customer, identifying the performance obligations in the contract, determining the transaction price,
allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract, and recognizing revenue when, or as, we satisfy a performance obligation.65Table of
ContentsFor customer contracts that include multiple performance obligations, we identify each distinct performance obligation and determine the transaction price, which
may include an estimation of variable consideration, subject to constraint. The transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation using the stand-alone selling
price, which is generally based on the observable price of each good or service.We recognize advertising revenue only after transferring control of promised goods or services
to customers, which occurs when a user clicks on an ad contracted on a cost per click (4€0eCPCa€) basis, views an ad contracted on a cost per thousand impressions
(a€0eCPMa€) basis, views a video ad contracted on a cost per view (a&€ceCPVa€) basis, or on a fixed fee basis, based upon ad delivery over the service period, which is typically
less than 30 days in duration. Generally, we recognize advertising revenue on a gross basis since we control the advertising units before being transferred to our users. In
arrangements where another party is involved in providing specified services to a customer, we evaluate whether we are the principal or agent. In this evaluation, we consider
if we obtain control of the specified goods or services before they are transferred to the customer. For advertising revenue arrangements where we are not the principal, we
recognize revenue on a net basis. For the periods presented, revenue for arrangements where we are the agent was not material. The transaction price in advertising
arrangements is generally calculated as the number of advertising units delivered multiplied by the contractually agreed upon CPC, CPM, or CPV, or on a fixed fee basis and
revenue is recognized based on the number of clicks, impressions, or views, or ratable over the service period, respectively.In our content licensing arrangements, we provide
customers with the right to access content from our platform over the contractual period. The transaction price in content licensing arrangements is generally a fixed fee or
usage-based fee. We recognize content licensing revenue as our content partners consume and benefit from their use of the licensed content, which is generally ratably over
the license period. We recognize Reddit Premium subscription revenue ratably over the subscription period, which is generally less than one year. Products within our user
economy include Reddit Gold and Collectible Avatars. Revenue from Reddit Gold and Collectible Avatars was not material for the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and
2022.Stock-Based CompensationWe measure and recognize compensation expense for stock-based awards, including restricted stock units (2€ceRSUsa€), restricted stock
awards (a€eRSAsa€), and stock options granted to employees and non-employees based on the grant date fair value of the awards granted. Prior to our IPO, we did not
recognize any stock-based compensation expense for RSUs with a liquidity-based vesting condition because no qualifying event had occurred. Upon the effectiveness of the
IPO, the liquidity-based vesting condition for such RSUs was satisfied and we recorded cumulative stock-based compensation expense using the accelerated attribution
method. The remaining unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to these RSUs will be recorded over their remaining requisite service periods. For awards
granted with only service-based vesting conditions, stock-based compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the awards.
Common Stock ValuationsPrior to our IPO, the fair value of the Class A common stock underlying our stock-based awards was determined by our board of directors, with input
from management and reviews of third-party valuations of our common stock determined in accordance with the guidelines outlined in the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants Practice Aid, Valuation of Privately-Held-Company Equity Securities Issued as Compensation.Our board of directors exercised reasonable judgment and
considered numerous subjective factors to determine the best estimate of the fair value of our common stock, including the following:a€¢the prices of recent issuances of
convertible preferred stock by us to investors in arma€ ™ s-length transactions;a€¢the rights, preferences, and privileges of our convertible preferred stock relative to our
common stock;a€¢third-party valuations of our common stock completed as of October 18, 2017, October 16, 2018, February 21, 2019, May 17, 2019, May 31, 2020, February
8, 2021, April 9, 2021, September 16, 2021, December 13, 2021, February 16, 2022, March 24, 2022, April 13, 2022, June 30, 2022, August 4, 2022, November 3, 2022,
FebruaryA 9, 2023, May 4, 2023, August 3, 2023, and December 30, 2023;4€ ¢the prices paid for common stock in tender offers and secondary market transactions;a€¢our
performance and market position relative to our competitors or similar publicly traded companies;a€¢the likelihood and timing of achieving a liquidity event, such as an IPO
or sale of our company, given internal company and prevailing market conditions;66Table of Contentsa€¢our developments and milestones;a€¢the lack of marketability of our
common stock; anda€¢U.S. and global capital market conditions.In valuing our common stock, our board of directors determined the equity value of our business using
various valuation methods including combinations of income and market approaches with input from management.For each valuation, the equity value determined by the
income and market approaches was then allocated to the common stock using either the option pricing method (2€ceOPMa€), or the probability-weighted expected return
method (&€ePWERMAE€). Our valuations prior to September 16, 2021 were allocated utilizing the OPM approach. Beginning on September 16, 2021, our valuations were
allocated utilizing the PWERM approach. Application of these valuation approaches involves the use of estimates, judgment, and assumptions that are highly complex and
subjective, such as those regarding our expected future revenue, expenses, future cash flows, discount rates, market multiples, the selection of comparable companies, and
the probability of possible future events. Changes in any or all of these estimates and assumptions or the relationships between those assumptions impact our valuations and
may have a material impact on the valuation of our common stock.For valuations after the completion of our IPO, our board of directors has determined the fair value of each
share of underlying common stock based on the closing price of our common stock as reported on the date of grant. Future expense amounts for any particular period could
be affected by changes in our assumptions or market conditions.Recent Accounting PronouncementsSee Note 2a€”Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting Policies of
the notes to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for any recently adopted accounting pronouncements and recently
issued accounting pronouncements not yet adopted.Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market RiskWe are exposed to market risks in the ordinary course
of our business. These risks primarily include interest rate risk and foreign currency risk as follows:Interest Rate RiskWe had cash and cash equivalents of $562.1 million and
$401.2 million as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. We had marketable securities of $1.3 billion and $811.9 million as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023,
respectively. Our cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in bank accounts, money market accounts, and other highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days
or less from the date of purchase. Marketable securities consist of U.S. and non-U.S. government securities, investment-grade corporate and government agency securities,
certificates of deposit, and commercial paper. Our investment policy and strategy are focused on the preservation of capital and supporting our liquidity requirements. We do
not enter into investments for trading or speculative purposes. Due to the relatively short-term nature of our investment portfolio, a hypothetical 100 basis point change in
interest rates would not have a material effect on the fair value of our portfolio or our consolidated financial statements for the periods presented.Foreign Currency RiskFor
the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the majority of our revenue and operating expenses were denominated in U.S. dollars. We therefore have not had material
foreign currency risk associated with sales and cost-based activities. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, our operations outside of the United States were not
considered material and our results of operations and cash flows were minimally subject to fluctuations from changes in foreign currency rates. We believe the exposure to
foreign currency fluctuation from operating expenses is immaterial at this time as the related costs do not constitute a significant portion of our total expenses. As we grow
operations, our exposure to foreign currency risk will likely become more significant. A hypothetical 10% increase or decrease in the relative value of the U.S. dollar to other
currencies would not have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements for the periods presented. For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, we did not
enter into any foreign currency exchange contracts for purposes of hedging foreign exchange rate fluctuations on our business operations, although we may elect to do so in
the future.67Table of Contentsltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary DataINDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTSPageReport of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm (KPMG LLP, San Francisco, CA, Auditor Firm ID: 185)69Consolidated Balance Sheets71Consolidated Statements of
Operations72Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)73Consolidated Statements of Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholdersa€™ Equity
(Deficit)74Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows75Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements7668Table of ContentsREPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC
ACCOUNTING FIRMTo the Stockholders and the Board of Directors Reddit, Inc.:Opinion on the Consolidated Financial StatementsWe have audited the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets of Reddit, Inc. and subsidiaries (the Company) as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the related consolidated statements of operations,
comprehensive income (loss), convertible preferred stock and stockholdersa€™ equity (deficit), and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December
31, 2024, and the related notes (collectively, the consolidated financial statements). In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2024, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.Basis for OpinionThese consolidated financial statements are the
responsibility of the Companya€™s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public
accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.We conducted our audits
in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its
internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companya€™s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.Our audits included
performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that
respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. Our
audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.Critical Audit MatterThe critical audit matter communicated below is
a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and



that: (1) relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or complex
judgments. The communication of a critical audit matter does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by
communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.Evaluation of the
delivery quantity of ad impressions As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company generated $1,300 million of revenue for the year ended
December 31, 2024. The Company generates the majority of its revenues by delivering ads on the Companya€™ s website and mobile applications. Revenue is recognized after
transferring control of the promised goods or services to customers, which occurs when a user clicks on an ad contracted on a cost per click basis, views an ad contracted on a
cost per thousand impressions basis, views a video ad contracted on a cost per view basis, or on a fixed fee basis, based on ad delivery over the service period.We identified
the evaluation of the sufficiency of audit evidence over advertising revenue as a critical audit matter. Complex auditor judgment was required in evaluating the sufficiency of
audit evidence over advertising revenue due to the proprietary IT system used to capture and track ad delivery used in revenue recognition. Specialized skills and knowledge
were needed to test the IT system used for the processing and recording of advertising revenue.The following are the primary procedures we performed to address this
critical audit matter. We applied auditor judgment to determine the nature and extent of procedures to be performed over advertising revenue. We involved IT professionals
69Table of Contentswith specialized skills and knowledge, who assisted in evaluating the design and testing the operating effectiveness of a manual internal control over the
Companya€™s advertising revenue process. We tested the capture and tracking of ad delivery within the Companya€™ s revenue systems by comparing known instances of
ads viewed to system information for ads delivered. We performed a software-assisted data analysis to test relationships among certain revenue transactions. For a selection
of advertising revenue transactions, we assessed the recorded revenue by comparing the amounts recognized for consistency with underlying documentation, including
contract terms, ads delivered, accounts receivables, and subsequent cash received, if applicable. We evaluated the sufficiency of audit evidence obtained by assessing the
results of procedures performed, including the appropriateness of the nature and extent of the audit effort./s/ KPMG LLPWe have served as the Companya€™ s auditor since
2019. San Francisco, CaliforniaFebruary 12, 202570Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Consolidated Balance Sheets(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)December
31,20242023ASSETSCurrent assets:Cash and cash equivalents$562,092A $401,176A Marketable securities 1,278,717A 811,946A Accounts receivable,

net349,534A 245,279A Prepaid expenses and other current assets33,058A 21,286A Total current assets2,223,401A 1,479,687A Property and equipment,

net12,652A 14,946A Operating lease right-of-use assets, net23,249A 24,008A Intangible assets, net25,424A 32,147A Goodwill42,174A 26,299A Other noncurrent
assets9,695A 19,380A Total assets$2,336,595A $1,596,467A LIABILITIES, CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK, AND STOCKHOLDERS4€™ EQUITY (DEFICIT)Current
liabilities:Accounts payable $45,423A $46,514A Operating lease liabilities 6,137A 3,707A Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 124,464A 83,349A Total current
liabilities176,024A 133,570A Operating lease liabilities, noncurrent 20,565A 22,040A Other noncurrent liabilities9,257A 287A Total liabilities

205,846A 155,897A Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)Convertible preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per share; no and 86,864,781 shares authorized as of
DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively; no and 73,021,449 shares issued and outstanding as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively; aggregate liquidation
preference of $0 and $1,847,993 as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively 4€”A 1,853,492A Stockholdersa€™ equity (deficit):Preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per
share; 100,000,000 and no shares authorized as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively; no shares issued and outstanding as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and

20234€”A a€”A Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share; 2,000,000,000 and 189,000,000 shares authorized as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively;
125,001,880 and 7,099,700 shares issued and outstanding as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively12A 4€”A Class B common stock, par value $0.0001 per share;
140,000,000 and 142,000,000 shares authorized as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively; 55,314,099 and 53,904,204 shares issued and outstanding as of
DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively 5A 6A Class C common stock, par value $0.0001 per share; 100,000,000 and no shares authorized as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and
2023, respectively; no shares issued and outstanding as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 20234€”A 4€”A Additional paid-in capital 3,331,546A 302,820A Accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) 24A 814A Accumulated deficit (1,200,838)(716,562)Total stockholdersa€™ equity (deficit)2,130,749A (412,922)Total liabilities, convertible
preferred stock, and stockholdersa€™ equity (deficit) $2,336,595A $1,596,467A The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.71Table of
ContentsReddit, Inc.Consolidated Statements of Operations(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)Year ended December 31,202420232022Revenue

$1,300,205A $804,029A $666,701A Costs and expenses:Cost of revenue123,595A 111,011A 104,799A Research and development 935,152A 438,346A 365,164A Sales and
marketing350,579A 230,175A 225,078A General and administrative 451,447A 164,658A 143,822A Total costs and expenses1,860,773A 944,190A 838,863A Income (loss) from
operations (560,568)(140,161)(172,162)Other income (expense), net75,361A 53,138A 14,234A Income (loss) before income taxes (485,207)(87,023)(157,928)Income tax
expense (benefit) (931)3,801A 622A Net income (loss) $(484,276)$(90,824)$(158,550)Net income (loss) per share attributable to Class A and Class B common stock, basic and
diluted (Note 4)$(3.33)$(1.54)$(2.77)Weighted-average shares of Class A and Class B common stock used to compute net income (loss) per share attributable to common
stockholders, basic and diluted 145,472,389A 59,138,086A 57,251,112A The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.72Table of ContentsReddit,
Inc.Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)(in thousands)Year ended December 31,202420232022Net income (loss) $(484,276)$(90,824)$(158,550)Other
comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:Unrealized holding gains (losses) on marketable securities 258A 4,606A (3,554)Change in foreign currency translation
adjustment(1,048)a€”A a€”A Net comprehensive income (loss) $(485,066)$(86,218)$(162,104)The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial
statements.73Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Consolidated Statements of Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholdersa€™ Equity (Deficit)(in thousands, except share
amounts)Total ConvertiblePreferredStockCommon StockAdditionalPaid-

inCapitalAccumulatedOtherComprehensivelncome(Loss)AccumulatedDeficitTotalStockholdersa€ ™ DeficitClass AClass BSharesAmountSharesAmountSharesAmountBalance as
of DecemberA 31, 202173,021,449$1,853,492A 5,166,855$4€”A 51,212,674$6A $181,407A $(238)$(467,188)$(286,013)Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock
options, neta€”a€”A 976,1784€”A 197,4374€”A 7,034A a€”A a€”A 7,034A Issuance of restricted stock awardsa€”a€”A 174,056a€”A a€”a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A Issuance of
common stock upon settlement of restricted stock units, neta€”a€”A 2,786a€”A a€”a€”A (105)a€”A a€”A (105)Issuance of Class A common stock in connection with
acquisitionsa€”a€”A 62,061a€”A a€”a€”A 4,522A a€”A 4€”A 4,522A Stock-based compensation expensea€”a€”A a€”a€”A a€”a€”A 55,310A a€”A a4€”A 55,310A Vesting of early
exercised stock optionsa€”a€”A a€”a€”A a€”4€”A 2,292A a€”A 4€”A 2,292A Net income (loss)a€”a€”A a€”a€”A a€”A a€”A (158,550)(158,550)Change in other comprehensive
income (loss)a€”a€”A a€”a€”A a€”a€”A a€”A (3,554)a€”A (3,554)Balance as of December 31,

202273,021,449$1,853,492A 6,381,936$4€”A 51,410,111$6A $250,460A $(3,792)$(625,738)$(379,064)Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options,

neta€”a€”A 489,959A a€”A 2,494,093A a€”A 8,390A a€”A a€”A 8,390A Issuance of common stock upon settlement of restricted stock units,

neta€”a€”A 227,805A 4€”A a€”A a€”A (4,320)a€”A 4€”A (4,320)Stock-based compensation expensea€”a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A 47,598A a€”A a€”A 47,598A Vesting of early
exercised stock optionsa€”a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A 692A a€”A a€”A 692A Net income (loss)a€”a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A (90,824)(90,824)Change in other
comprehensive income (loss)a€”a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A 4,606A a€”A 4,606A Balance as of December 31,

202373,021,449$1,853,492A 7,099,700$4€”A 53,904,204$6A $302,820A $814A $(716,562)$(412,922)Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock options,

neta€”a€”A 10,979,938A a€”A 4,038,255A 4€”A 88,972A a4€”A a€”A 88,972A Issuance of common stock upon settlement of restricted stock units,

neta€”a€”A 11,501,630A 1A 1,002,455A a€”A (294,572)a€”A a€”A (294,571)Conversion of Class B common stock to Class A common stocka€”a€”71,548,2478(71,548,247)
(8)a€”a€”a€”a€”A Conversion of redeemable convertible preferred stock to common stock in connection with initial public offering(73,021,449)
(1,853,492)5,104,017167,917,432A 7A 1,853,486A a4€”A a€”A 1,853,494A Issuance of common stock in connection with initial public offering, net of underwriting discounts
and commissions and other offering costsa€”a€”18,576,52724€”A 4€”A 576,266A a€”A a4€”A 576,268A Issuance of Class A common stock in connection with
acquisitionsa€”a€”A 191,821A a€”A a€”A a€”A 2,786A a€”A a€”A 2,786A Stock-based compensation

expensed€”a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A 801,646A a€”A a€”A 801,646A Vesting of early exercised stock optionsa€”a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A 4€”A 142A 4€”A 4€”A 142A Net income
(loss)a€”a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A (484,276)(484,276)Change in other comprehensive income (loss)a€”a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A a€”A (790)a€”A (790)Balance as
of December 31, 20244€”$4€”A 125,001,880$12A 55,314,099$5A $3,331,546A $24A $(1,200,838)$2,130,749A The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial
statements.74Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows(in thousands)Year ended December 31,202420232022Cash flows from operating
activitiesNet income (loss) $(484,276)$(90,824)$(158,550)Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: Depreciation and
amortization15,643A 13,702A 8,000A Non-cash operating lease cost 4,110A 11,359A 10,464A Amortization of premium (accretion of discount) on marketable securities, net
(43,400)(27,442)(3,264)Stock-based compensation expense801,646A 47,598A 55,310A Other adjustments(4,187)484A 4,099A Changes in operating assets and
liabilities:Accounts receivable (104,280)(53,318)(30,230)Prepaid expenses and other assets (19,485)3,878A (1,91 1)Operating lease right-of-use assets and liabilities (2,397)
(5,758)(10,325)Accounts payable (570)12,470A 10,905A Accrued expenses and other liabilities 59,264A 12,737A 21,481A Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
$222,068A $(75,114)$(94,021)Cash flows from investing activitiesPurchases of property and equipment (6,248)(9,724)(6,233)Proceeds from sale of

cryptocurrency6,869A a4€”A 4€”A Purchases of marketable securities (1,996,725)(1,259,854)(1,430,589)Maturities of marketable securities

1,573,602A 1,273,159A 674,399A Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 4€”A 37,538A 500A Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired (17,137)a€”A (42,196)Other
investing activities (1,048)172A (64)Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities $(440,687)$41,291A $(804,183)Cash flows from financing activitiesProceeds from
issuance of Class A common stock in initial public offering, net of underwriting discounts and commissions600,022A a€”A 4€”A Proceeds from exercise of employee stock
options 88,972A 8,428A 7,034A Taxes paid related to net share settlement of restricted stock units(294,573)(4,320)4€”A Payments of initial public offering costs (8,775)
(1,441)(9,796)Payments of deferred consideration and holdbacks for acquisitions(6,111)(3,478)a€ ”A Other financing activities &€ "A a€”A (1,022)Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities$379,535A $(811)$(3,784)Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 160,916A (34,634)(901,988)Cash, cash equivalents, and
restricted cash at the beginning of the period401,226A 435,860A 1,337,848A Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at the end of the

period$562,142A $401,226A $435,860A Cash and cash equivalents 562,092A 401,176A 435,810A Restricted cash 50A 50A 50A Total cash, cash equivalents, and restricted
cash$562,142A $401,226A $435,860A Supplemental disclosure of noncash financing and investing activitiesConversion of convertible preferred stock to common stock upon
initial public offering$1,853,492A $a€”A $4€”A Reclassification of deferred offering costs to additional paid-in capital upon initial public offering$23,754A $a€”A $4€”A The
accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.75Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 1. Description of
BusinessReddit, Inc. (d€ceReddit,a€ a€cewe,a€ a€ceour,a€ or 4€oeusa€) was incorporated in the state of Delaware. Our mission is to empower communities and make their
knowledge accessible to all. We built Reddit with the belief that communities unlock the power of human creativity and create a sense of belonging and empowerment for
their members. We believe the world needs community more than ever, and that this represents our greatest opportunity to further enrich the lives of everyone in the world.
We are headquartered in San Francisco, California, and have several offices around the world.2. Basis of Presentation and Significant Accounting PoliciesBasis of
PresentationOur consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (4€ceU.S.
GAAPa&€£). Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Reddit, Inc. and our wholly owned subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions and balances have been
eliminated in consolidation.Initial Public OfferingOn March 20, 2024, our initial public offering (4€ceIPO&€) was declared effective and our Class A common stock began
trading on the New York Stock Exchange on March 21, 2024. On March 25, 2024, we completed our IPO in which we issued and sold 18,576,527 shares of Class A common
stock, including 3,300,000 shares of Class A common stock pursuant to the underwritersa€™ exercise in full of their over-allotment option, and excluding 6,723,473 shares of
Class A common stock sold in the IPO by certain of our existing stockholders, at a public offering price of $34.00 per share. We received net proceeds of $600.0 million after
deducting underwriting discounts and commissions of $31.6 million. In connection with the closing of the IPO, all shares of our then-outstanding convertible preferred stock
other than Series F-1 preferred stock automatically converted into an aggregate of 67,917,432 shares of Class B common stock and all then-outstanding shares of Series F-1
preferred stock automatically converted into 5,104,017 shares of Class A common stock. Following the IPO, we have three classes of authorized common stock 4€” Class A
common stock, Class B common stock, and Class C common stock.Certain of our restricted stock units granted to employees included both service-based and performance-
based vesting conditions (&€ceDouble Trigger RSUsa€). The performance condition related to these awards was satisfied upon the effectiveness of the IPO. Upon the
effectiveness of the IPO, we recognized $534.7 million of stock-based compensation expense. To meet the related tax withholding requirements, we withheld 4,861,113 shares
of the 10,502,390 shares of Class A common stock issued and 723,341 shares of the 1,347,456 shares of Class B common stock issued. Based on the IPO public offering price
of $34.00 per share, the tax withholding obligation was $189.9 million.In connection with our IPO, we amended and restated our certificate of incorporation (a€ceRestated
Certificatea€) which authorized 2,340,000,000 shares of capital stock, consisting of 2,000,000,000 shares of Class A common stock, 140,000,000 shares of Class B common
stock, 100,000,000 shares of Class C common stock, and 100,000,000 shares of undesignated preferred stock.Use of EstimatesThe preparation of the consolidated financial



statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the consolidated financial statements
and accompanying notes. Managementa€™s estimates are based on historical information available as of the date of the consolidated financial statements and various other
assumptions that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ materially from those estimates.Significant estimates relate primarily to
determining the fair value of stock-based awards, the fair value of assets and liabilities assumed in business combinations, and the incremental borrowing rate used to
determine operating lease right-of-use assets and lease liabilities. On an ongoing basis, management evaluates our estimates compared to historical experience and trends,
which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities.Revenue RecognitionWe generate a majority of our revenue through the sale of
advertising on our mobile applications and website. Other revenue consists of revenue from content licensing, Reddit Premium subscriptions, and products within our user
economy.76Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial StatementsWe determine revenue recognition by identifying the contract or contracts with a
customer, identifying the performance obligations in the contract, determining the transaction price, allocating the transaction price to the performance obligations in the
contract, and recognizing revenue when, or as, we satisfy a performance obligation.For customer contracts that include multiple performance obligations, we identify each
distinct performance obligation and determine the transaction price, which may include an estimation of variable consideration, subject to constraint. The transaction price is
allocated to each performance obligation using the stand-alone selling price, which is generally based on the observable price of each good or service.Payments for revenue
arrangements are due based on the contractually stated payment terms, usually within 30 to 60 days. Sales and other similar taxes are excluded from revenue. Advertising
RevenueWe recognize advertising revenue only after transferring control of promised goods or services to customers, which occurs when a user clicks on an ad contracted on
a cost per click (4€ceCPCa€) basis, views an ad contracted on a cost per thousand impressions (&€0eCPM4&€) basis, views a video ad contracted on a cost per view (&€ceCPVa€)
basis, or on a fixed fee basis, based upon ad delivery over the service period, which is typically less than 30 days in duration. Generally, we recognize advertising revenue on a
gross basis since we control the advertising units before being transferred to our users. In arrangements where another party is involved in providing specified services to a
customer, we evaluate whether we are the principal or agent. In this evaluation, we consider if we obtain control of the specified goods or services before they are transferred
to the customer. For advertising revenue arrangements where we are not the principal, we recognize revenue on a net basis. For the periods presented, revenue for
arrangements where we are the agent was not material.The transaction price in advertising arrangements is generally calculated as the number of advertising units delivered
multiplied by the contractually agreed upon CPC, CPM, or CPV, or on a fixed fee basis and revenue is recognized based on the number of clicks, impressions, or views, or
ratable over the service period, respectively.Other Revenueln our content licensing arrangements, we provide customers with the right to access content from our platform
over the contractual period. The transaction price in content licensing arrangements is generally a fixed fee or usage-based fee. We recognize content licensing revenue as
our content partners consume and benefit from their use of the licensed content, which is generally ratably over the license period. We recognize Reddit Premium
subscription revenue ratably over the subscription period, which is generally less than one year. Products within our user economy include Reddit Gold and Collectible
Avatars. Revenue from Reddit Gold and Collectible Avatars was not material for the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.Cost of RevenueCost of revenue
consists primarily of payments to third parties for the cost of hosting and supporting our mobile applications and website. In addition, cost of revenue includes expenses
directly associated with the delivery of our advertising and other services, including advertising measurement services and credit card and other transaction processing fees.
Cost of revenue also consists of employee-related costs, including salaries, benefits, and stock-based compensation.Research and Development ExpensesResearch and
development expenses consist primarily of employee-related costs including salaries, benefits, and stock-based compensation for engineers and other employees engaged in
the research, design, and development of new and existing products. Research and development expenses also include professional services and hosting costs associated with
internal research and development activities, as well as allocated facilities and other supporting overhead costs.Sales and Marketing ExpensesSales and marketing expenses
consist primarily of employee-related costs including salaries, benefits, and stock-based compensation for employees engaged in sales, sales support, business and brand
development, marketing, and customer service functions. Sales commissions are expensed as incurred in sales and marketing expenses as the expected period of benefit is
one year or less. Sales and marketing expenses also include costs incurred for advertising, market research, branding, professional services, marketing, and promotional
expenditures, as well as allocated facilities and other supporting overhead costs.77Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial StatementsGeneral and
Administrative ExpensesGeneral and administrative expenses consist primarily of employee-related costs including salaries, benefits, and stock-based compensation for
certain executives as well as employees engaged in finance, legal, human resources, information technology, communications, and other administrative teams. General and
administrative expenses also include costs incurred for professional services, as well as allocated facilities and other supporting overhead costs.Advertising CostsAdvertising
costs are expensed as incurred and were $9.2 million, $8.2 million, and $34.4 million for the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 respectively.Stock-Based
CompensationWe measure and recognize compensation expense for stock-based awards, including restricted stock units (4€eRSUsa€), restricted stock awards (A€0eRSAsaE),
and stock options granted to employees and non-employees based on the grant date fair value of the awards granted. Prior to the IPO, for secondary sale transactions with
existing investors, we recognized stock-based compensation expense representing the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of our common stock on the date of the
transaction.Income TaxesWe account for income taxes using an asset and liability approach. Under this method, the tax provision includes taxes currently due plus the net
change in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from temporary differences between the tax basis of an asset or liability and its reported
amount in the consolidated financial statements, as well as from net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax amounts are determined by using the tax rates
expected to be in effect when the taxes will be paid or refund received, as provided for under currently enacted tax law. In assessing the need for a valuation allowance, we
consider both positive and negative evidence related to the likelihood of realization of the deferred tax assets. If, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely
than not that the deferred tax assets will not be realized, a valuation allowance is recorded. Should there be a change in the ability to recover deferred tax assets, the income
tax provision would increase or decrease in the period in which the assessment is changed.We recognize the effect of income tax positions only if those positions are more
likely than not to be sustained. Recognized income tax positions are measured at the largest amount that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized. An uncertain
income tax position will not be recognized if it has less than a 50% likelihood of being sustained. Any interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are
recognized as income tax expense in the consolidated statements of operations.Functional CurrencyGenerally, the U.S. dollar is the functional currency for our subsidiaries,
and therefore, foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are remeasured into U.S. dollars at exchange rates at the balance sheet date and foreign currency
denominated non-monetary assets and liabilities are remeasured into U.S. dollars at historical exchange rates. Gains or losses from foreign currency remeasurement and
settlements are included in other income (expense), net in the consolidated statements of operations. Net foreign exchange gains and losses were not material for the years
ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.0n January 1, 2024, we changed the functional currency of our U.K. subsidiary, Reddit UK Limited, from the U.S. dollar to the
British pound. The change in functional currency is due primarily to the increased exposure to the British pound as our future operating cash flows for our U.K. subsidiary are
expected to be in British pounds. We translate the financial statements of the U.K. subsidiary to U.S. dollars at exchange rates at the balance sheet date for assets and
liabilities and at monthly average exchange rates for revenues and expenses. Translation gains and losses are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) as
a component of stockholders' equity (deficit). The change in the functional currency of Reddit UK Limited was accounted for prospectively from January 1, 2024 and did not
have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Restricted CashCash and cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments
with original maturities of 90 days or less from the date of purchase. We define restricted cash as cash that cannot be withdrawn or used for general operating activities.
Restricted cash is classified as current or noncurrent assets based on the contractual or estimated term of the remaining restriction. As of 78Table of ContentsReddit,
Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial StatementsDecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, restricted cash included in other noncurrent assets in the consolidated balance sheets was
not material.Marketable SecuritiesWe hold investments in marketable securities consisting of U.S. and non-U.S. government securities, investment-grade corporate and
government agency securities, certificates of deposit, and commercial paper. We classify our marketable securities as available-for-sale investments in current assets because
they represent investments available for current operations. Our available-for-sale investments are carried at fair value with any unrealized gains and losses included in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in stockholdersa€™ equity (deficit). Expected losses from credit related impairment, if any, are recognized through an
allowance for credit losses and adjusted each period for changes in credit risk. Gains or losses on the sale or maturities of marketable securities are determined using the
specific identification method and recorded in other income (expense), net in our consolidated statements of operations.Fair Value MeasurementsCertain financial
instruments are required to be recorded at fair value. Other financial instruments, including cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, are recorded at cost, which
approximates fair value. Additionally, the carrying amounts of accounts receivable, prepaid expenses and other current assets, accounts payable, and accrued expenses and
other current liabilities approximate fair value due to their short-term nature.Accounts Receivable, NetAccounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount, net of any
allowance for doubtful accounts due to expected credit losses and potentially uncollectible receivables. We apply a 4€oesingle lossa€ rate approach to the overall accounts
receivable portfolio and also evaluate the aging, historical write-offs, and collectability of accounts receivable on a customer-by-customer basis. The allowance for doubtful
accounts was immaterial as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023.Contract AssetsWhen revenue recognition exceeds the amounts billable on a contract, the difference is recorded
as a contract asset. The current portion of contract assets included within accounts receivable, net, and the noncurrent portion of contract assets included within other
noncurrent assets on the consolidated balance sheets were not material as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023.Property and Equipment, NetProperty and equipment are stated
at cost, less accumulated depreciation. We compute depreciation using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which is generally three to five
years for computer equipment, furniture, and fixtures. Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the assets. Maintenance
and repairs are expensed as incurred.Software Development CostsSoftware development costs include costs to develop software to be used to meet internal needs and
applications used to deliver our services. We capitalize development costs related to these software applications once the preliminary project stage is complete, it is probable
that the project will be completed, and the software will be used to perform the function intended. Due to the iterative process of our development projects, development costs
meeting our capitalization criteria were not material for the periods presented.LeasesLeases arise from contractual obligations that convey the right to control the use of
identified property, plant, or equipment for a period of time in exchange for consideration. We determine if a contract is, or contains, a lease at contract inception. All of our
leases are operating leases and are included in operating lease right-of-use assets, net, operating lease liabilities, and operating lease liabilities, non-current on the
consolidated balance sheets.Operating lease right-of-use assets and operating lease liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date based on the present value of
lease payments over the lease term discounted using our incremental borrowing rate. Operating lease right-of-use assets also include any lease payments made and exclude
lease incentives. As our leases do not provide an implicit rate, 79Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statementsthe incremental borrowing rate
used is estimated based on what we would have to pay on a collateralized basis over a similar term as the lease. Lease payments include fixed payments and any variable
payments based on an index or rate, and are recognized as lease expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.Deferred Offering CostsPrior to our IPO, deferred
offering costs, which consisted of direct incremental legal, accounting, consulting, and other fees related to the IPO, were capitalized in other noncurrent assets on the
consolidated balance sheets. After the IPO, the deferred offering costs were reclassified into additional paid-in capital as an offset against IPO proceeds. Deferred offering
costs included in other noncurrent assets were $16.5 million as of DecemberA 31, 2023. Business CombinationsWe include the results of operations of the businesses that we
acquire from the date of acquisition. We determine the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values as of the respective date of
acquisition. The excess purchase price over the fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Determining the fair value of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed requires management to use significant judgment and estimates including the selection of valuation methodologies, estimates of future revenues and cash
flows, discount rates, and selection of comparable companies. Our estimates of fair value are based on assumptions believed to be reasonable, but are inherently uncertain
and unpredictable and, as a result, actual results may differ from estimates.When we issue cash payments or grants of equity to selling stockholders in connection with an
acquisition, we evaluate whether the payments or awards are compensatory. This evaluation includes whether cash payments or stock award vesting is contingent on the
continued employment of the selling stockholder beyond the acquisition date. If continued employment is required for the cash to be paid or stock awards to vest, the award is
treated as compensation for post-acquisition services and is recognized as compensation expense.Transaction costs associated with business combinations are expensed as
incurred and are included in general and administrative expenses in our consolidated statements of operations.GoodwillGoodwill represents the excess of the aggregate
purchase consideration over the fair value of net assets acquired in a business combination. We perform our annual impairment test on October 1. We also test for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the fair value of goodwill has been impaired. Our impairment tests are based on a single operating segment and reporting unit
structure. No impairment charges were recorded during the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.Acquired Intangible AssetsIdentifiable acquired intangible
assets consist primarily of acquisition-related developed technology. We determine the appropriate useful life of our intangible assets by performing an analysis of expected



cash flows of the acquired assets. Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of up to five years.CryptocurrencyWe account for
cryptocurrency investments, and cryptocurrency received in exchange for goods and services, as intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, which are measured at cost, net
of any impairment losses incurred since acquisition, on the consolidated balance sheets. Cryptocurrency accounted for as intangible assets are not amortized, but assessed for
impairment quarterly, or more frequently, when events or changes in circumstances occur indicating that it is more likely than not that the indefinite-lived asset is
impaired.The computation of gains or losses on the sale of cryptocurrency, or use of cryptocurrency to settle any obligations, is based on the difference between the market
price quoted on our principal market for cryptocurrencies at the time of sale or settlement and the cost basis of the cryptocurrency, which is determined on a first-in, first-out
basis. During the year ended December 31, 2024, we sold the majority of our cryptocurrency portfolio, which consisted primarily of Bitcoin and Ether. The net carrying value
of our cryptocurrencies and all related cryptocurrency activity, including the gain recognized on sale, was immaterial for the periods presented.80Table of ContentsReddit,
Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial StatementsImpairment of Long-Lived AssetsWe evaluate recoverability of our property and equipment and definite-lived intangible
assets when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Events and changes in circumstances considered in
determining whether the carrying value of long-lived assets may not be recoverable include significant changes in performance relative to expected operating results,
significant changes in asset use, significant negative industry or economic trends, and changes in our business strategy. Recoverability of these assets is measured by
comparison of their carrying amount to future undiscounted cash flows to be generated. If impairment is indicated based on a comparison of the assetsa€™ carrying values
and the undiscounted cash flows, the impairment loss is measured as the amount by which the carrying amount exceeds the fair value of the assets. We determined that there
were no events or changes in circumstances that indicated our long-lived assets were impaired during the periods presented.Concentration of Business RiskWe primarily use
Amazon Web Services and Google Cloud Platform for our hosting requirements. A disruption or loss of service from Amazon Web Services or Google Cloud Platform could
harm our ability to operate. Although we believe there are other qualified providers that can provide these services, a transition to a new provider could create a disruption to
our business and negatively impact our operating results.Concentration of Credit RiskFinancial instruments that potentially subject us to significant concentrations of credit
risk consist principally of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, marketable securities, and accounts receivable. We maintain cash and cash equivalents with several
financial institutions. We believe that the financial institutions that hold our cash and cash equivalents are financially sound and, accordingly, minimal credit risks exist with
respect to these balances. We maintain investments in U.S. and non-U.S. government securities, investment-grade corporate and government agency securities, certificates of
deposit, commercial paper, and money market accounts that carry high credit ratings and accordingly, minimal credit risk exists with respect to these balances.No customer
accounted for greater than 10% of our revenues for the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022. No customer accounted for greater than 10% of our accounts
receivable as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023.SegmentsWe have determined that we have a single operating segment. Our Chief Executive Officer is our chief operating
decision maker who evaluates performance and makes operating decisions about allocating resources based on consolidated financial data. Emerging Growth Company
StatusAs of December 31, 2024, we lost our status as an emerging growth company as defined in the JOBS Act. As a result, we are no longer entitled to take advantage of
specified reduced reporting requirements and relief from certain other significant requirements that are otherwise generally applicable to public companies.As an emerging
growth company, we previously elected to leverage the provision of the JOBS Act that allows an emerging growth company to delay the adoption of some accounting
standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies. We elected to use this extended transition period for complying with new or revised accounting
standards that have different effective dates for public and private companies through December 31, 2022. As a result, our financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2022 may not be comparable to companies that comply with new or revised accounting pronouncements as of public company effective dates. Beginning January 1, 2023,
we elected to irrevocably opt out of the extended transition period provided in the JOBS Act and began to comply with new or revised accounting standards at the time when
adoption of such standards was required for public companies that are non-emerging growth companies.Recently Adopted Accounting PronouncementsIin November 2023, the
Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update (a€ceASU&€) No. 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to Reportable
Segment Disclosures, which requires disclosure of incremental segment information on an annual and interim basis. All disclosure requirements of this standard are required
for entities with a single reportable segment. We adopted this standard effective January 1, 2024. Adoption of this standard resulted 81Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statementsin additional segment-related disclosures made in Note 184€”Segment and Geographic Information, but did not impact our consolidated
financial statements. Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet AdoptedIn December 2023, the FASB issued ASU No. 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income
Tax Disclosures, which requires an entity to disclose specific categories in the effective tax rate reconciliation as well as provide additional information for reconciling items
that meet a quantitative threshold. This standard also requires certain disaggregated disclosures related to income from continuing operations, income tax expense, and
income taxes paid. The standard is effective for us beginning January 1, 2025, with early adoption permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact the adoption will have on
our disclosures.In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU No. 2024-03, Income Statementa€”Reporting Comprehensive Incomea€”Expense Disaggregation Disclosures
(Subtopic 220-40): Disaggregation of Income Statement Expenses, which requires an entity to disclose disaggregated information about certain income statement expense
line items. The standard is effective for us beginning January 1, 2027, with early adoption permitted. We are currently evaluating the impact the adoption will have on our
disclosures.3. RevenueThe following table represents our revenue disaggregated by source:Year ended December 31,202420232022(in thousands)Advertising revenue
$1,185,456A $788,782A $652,562A Other revenue 114,749A 15,247A 14,139A Total revenue $1,300,205A $804,029A $666,701A The following table represents our revenue
disaggregated by geography based on the billing address of the customer:Year ended December 31,202420232022(in thousands)United States

$1,063,556A $651,378A $548,964A Rest of world(1) 236,649A 152,651A 117,737A Total revenue $1,300,205A $804,029A $666,701A (1)Other than the United
States, no individual country represented 10% or more of total revenue during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.Deferred revenue was $14.9A million and
$7.4A million as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and DecemberA 31, 2023, respectively. For the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, revenue recognized from the
deferred revenue balance at the beginning of each period was $7.2A million, $7.8A million, and $6.5 million, respectively.As of DecemberA 31, 2024, the aggregate amount of
remaining performance obligations in contracts with an original expected duration exceeding one year is $252.9A million. This amount consists primarily of long-term content
licensing contracts and excludes deferred revenue related to short-term advertising contracts and Reddit Premium subscriptions. We expect to recognize $114.6A million in
2025, $113.2A million in 2026, and $25.1A million in 2027.4. Net Income (Loss) per ShareWe compute net income (loss) per share of Class A and Class B common stock using
the two-class method required for multiple classes of common stock and participating securities. Prior to the IPO, our participating securities included Series A, Series A-1,
Series B, Series C, Series D, Series D-1, Series E, Series F, and Series F-1 convertible preferred stock, as the holders of these series of preferred stock were entitled to receive
noncumulative dividends subject to certain requirements at an annual rate of 8% of the respective original issue price then in effect in the event that a dividend was paid on
common stock.82Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial StatementsIn connection with our IPO, our Series A, Series A-1, Series B, Series C, Series
D, Series D-1, Series E, and Series F preferred stock converted on a one-to-one basis into 67,917,432 shares of Class B common stock, and our Series F-1 preferred stock
converted on a one-to-one basis into 5,104,017 shares of Class A common stock. These shares are weighted in the denominator of net income (loss) per share for Class A and
Class B common stock for the portion of the time outstanding subsequent to our IPO.The holders of Series A, Series A-1, Series B, Series C, Series D, Series D-1, Series E,
Series F, and Series F-1 convertible preferred stock did not have a contractual obligation to share in our losses. As such, our net losses for the years ended DecemberA 31,
2023 and 2022 were not allocated to these participating securities.The following table presents the calculation of basic and diluted net income (loss) per share attributable to
common stock:Year ended December 31,202420232022Class AClass BClass AClass BClass AClass B(in thousands, except share and per share data)Numerator:Net income
(loss) attributable to common stockholders$(231,631)$(252,645)$(11,033)$(79,791)$(16,272)$(142,278)Denominator:Basic weighted-average common shares
outstanding69,580,04875,892,3417,183,72351,954,3635,875,65651,375,456Diluted weighted-average common shares
outstanding69,580,04875,892,3417,183,72351,954,3635,875,65651,375,456Basic and diluted income (loss) per share attributable to common
stockholders$(3.33)$(3.33)$(1.54)$(1.54)$(2.77)$(2.77)The following outstanding potentially dilutive shares, including stock options that have been exercised prior to vesting,
were excluded from the computation of diluted net income (loss) per share attributable to common stock for the periods presented because the impact of including them
would have been anti-dilutive.Year ended December 31,202420232022Class AClass BClass AClass BClass AClass BStock

options11,501,771A 3,185,767A 22,600,876A 7,213,522A 16,290,463A 8,228,797A Unvested RSUs and

RSAs10,746,145A 598,102A 24,166,383A 2,720,150A 12,953,243A 4,362,661A Preferred

MeasurementsFair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. To
increase the comparability of fair value measures, the following hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuation methodologies used to measure fair value:a€¢Level 1: Quoted
market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitiesd€¢Level 2: Observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market dataa€
¢Level 3: Unobservable inputs reflecting the reporting entitya€™s own assumptions or external inputs from inactive marketsWe classify our cash equivalents and marketable
securities within Level 1 or Level 2 because we use quoted market prices or alternative pricing sources and models utilizing market observable inputs to determine their fair
value. There were no transfers between levels during the periods presented.83Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial StatementsThe following table
sets forth our financial assets that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis:December 31, 2024Fair valuehierarchylevelCost
oramortizedcostGrossunrealizedgainsGrossunrealizedlossesFairvalue(in thousands)Cash equivalents:Money market funds Level 1$497,461A $a€”A $a€”A $497,461A U.S.
treasury securities Level 15,979A 2A 4€”A 5,981A Corporate bondsLevel 21,066A 2A 4€”A 1,068A Marketable securities:U.S. treasury securities Level

1817,996A 1,120A (396)818,720A U.S. agency bonds Level 2117,965A 15A (62)117,918A Corporate bonds Level 2159,424A 400A (86)159,738A Commercial paper Level
2182,264A 99A (22)182,341A Total $1,782,155A $1,638A $(566)$1,783,227A December 31, 2023Fair valuehierarchylevelCost
oramortizedcostGrossunrealizedgainsGrossunrealizedlossesFairvalue(in thousands)Cash equivalents:Money market funds Level

1$345,555A $a€”A $a€”A $345,555A Commercial paperLevel 29,994A a€”A (9)9,985A Marketable securities:U.S. treasury securities Level

1426,734A 697A (188)427,243A U.S. agency bondsLevel 277,535A 13A (34)77,514A Non-U.S. government securitiesLevel 221,723A 10A (27)21,706A Corporate bondsLevel
294,725A 310A (81)94,954A Certificates of depositLevel 22,810A 4€”A (1)2,809A Commercial paperLevel 2187,596A 148A (24)187,720A Total

$1,166,672A $1,178A $(364)$1,167,486A Gross unrealized gains (losses) within accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) were immaterial as of DecemberA 31, 2024
and 2023. There were no impairment charges due to credit losses during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.As of DecemberA 31, 2024, the amortized cost
of marketable securities with maturities less than one year was $989.2 million. The amortized cost of marketable securities with maturities between one and five years was
$288.4 million.84Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements6. Balance Sheet ComponentsPrepaid Expenses and Other Current
AssetsPrepaid expenses and other current assets consisted of the following:December 31,2024December 31,2023(in thousands)Prepaid expenses$14,583A $11,930A Other
receivables 11,500A 4,695A Interest receivable 4,695A 3,071A Other 2,280A 1,590A Total prepaid expenses and other current assets$33,058A $21,286A Property and
Equipment, NetProperty and equipment, net consisted of the following:December 31,2024December 31,2023(in thousands)Computer equipment, furniture, and
fixtures$15,832A $14,136A Leasehold improvements8,017A 7,597A Total property and equipment 23,849A 21,733A Less: accumulated depreciation(11,197)(6,787)Total
property and equipment, net $12,652A $14,946A Depreciation expense was immaterial for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.Accrued Expenses and Other
Current LiabilitiesAccrued expenses and other current liabilities consisted of the following:December 31,2024December 31,2023(in thousands)Accrued compensation and
benefits$63,441A $37,964A Deferred revenue14,805A 7,250A Accrued expenses31,817A 26,740A Revenue share payable and other6,939A 2,549A Holdback liability from
acquisitionsa€”A 6,111A Other7,462A 2,735A Total accrued expenses and other current liabilities$124,464A $83,349A 7. Operating LeasesWe have entered into various non-
cancellable operating leases agreements, primarily for the use of office space, expiring at various dates through 2029. Our lease terms include options to extend or terminate
the lease when it is reasonably certain they will be exercised. We consider these options in determining the lease term on a lease-by-lease basis. We account for lease
components and non-lease components as a single lease component for all leases. None of our lease agreements contain material non-lease components, material residual
value guarantees, or restrictive covenants. We have elected an accounting policy to not recognize short-term leases, which have a lease term of twelve months or less, on the
consolidated balance sheets.85Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial StatementsLease CostThe components of lease cost were as follows:Year
ended December 31,202420232022(in thousands)Operating lease cost$7,231A $13,062A $11,077A Short-term lease cost3,324A 3,857A 4,291A Variable lease

cost278A 749A 781A Total lease costs$10,833A $17,668A $16,149A Lease Term and Discount RateThe weighted-average remaining lease term and discount rate related to
the operating leases were as follows:December 31,2024December 31,2023Weighted-average remaining lease term (in years)4.004.84Weighted-average discount



rate6.48A %6.65A %Maturity of Lease LiabilitiesThe present value of our operating lease liabilities as of DecemberA 31, 2024 was as follows:(in

thousands)2025$7,509A 20267,502A 20277,414A 20286,256A 20291,484A Total undiscounted lease payments30,165A Less: imputed interest(3,463)Present value of lease
liabilities$26,702A Operating lease liabilities6, 137A Operating lease liabilities, noncurrent20,565A Total$26,702A Other InformationRight-of-use assets obtained in exchange
for lease liabilities were $4.7A million, $12.0A million, and $16. 4A million for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, respectively. Cash payments included in
the measurement of our operating lease liabilities were $5.3A million, $8.9A million, and $9.6A million for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022,

respectively.8. AcquisitionsOn JulyA 15, 2024, we completed an acquisition to enhance our technology and workforce. The aggregate purchase consideration was $19.9
million, which consisted of $17.1 million of cash consideration and $2.8 million related to the fair value of equity consideration. Additional consideration with a fair value of
$10.7 million was determined to relate to post-combination expenses, primarily stock-based compensation for future employment services. Of the aggregate purchase
consideration, $4.3 million was allocated to developed technology with a useful life of three years, $15.9 million was allocated to goodwill, and the remainder was allocated to
other assets acquired and liabilities assumed. 86Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial StatementsThe goodwill amount represents synergies from
utilizing the acquired technology across our business and from the assembled workforce. Goodwill recorded in connection with the acquisition is not deductible for income tax
purposes.The fair values assigned to assets acquired and liabilities assumed are based on managementa€™s estimates and assumptions and may be subject to change as
additional information is received and valuation assessments are finalized. We expect to finalize the purchase accounting within the one-year measurement period.9. Goodwill
and Intangible AssetsGoodwillThe change in the carrying amount of goodwill during the year ended DecemberA 31, 2024 was as follows:(in thousands)Balance as of
December 31, 2023$26,299A Goodwill acquired15,875A Balance as of December 31, 2024$42,174A There was no change in the carrying amount of goodwill during the year
ended December 31, 2023.Acquired Intangible AssetsAcquired intangible assets consisted of the following:December 31, 2024Gross
carryingvalueAccumulatedamortizationNet carrying valueWeighted-average remaining useful life (years)(in thousands, except year data)Developed

technology$47,460A $22,051A $25,409A 2.60ther intangible assets600A 600A a€”A a€”A Total acquired intangible assets$48,060A $22,651A $25,409A December 31,
2023Gross carryingvalueAccumulatedamortizationNet carryingvalueWeighted-average remaining useful life (years)(in thousands, except year data)Developed
technology$43,160A $12,973A $30,187A 3.60ther intangible assets600A 467A 133A 0.3Total acquired intangible assets$43,760A $13,440A $30,320A Amortization expense
was $9.2 million and $9.0 million for the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively. Amortization expense was immaterial for the year ended December 31,
2022.The estimated future amortization expense related to acquired intangible assets as of DecemberA 31, 2024 was as follows:(in

thousands)2025$9,913A 20269,913A 20275,583A Total$25,409A 87Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements10. DebtRevolving Line of
CreditOn OctoberA 8, 2021, we entered into a five-year, $750.0 million, revolving loan and standby letter of credit facility agreement (a€ceRevolving Credit Facilitya€) of
which $100.0 million can be issued as letters of credit. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, we have issued two letters of credit, one of which is denominated in a foreign currency, for
an aggregate of $4.9 million, which reduced the letter of credit borrowings available under the Revolving Credit Facility to $95.1 million. The aggregate available balance
under the Revolving Credit Facility was $745.1 million as of DecemberA 31, 2024.0n May 23, 2023, we amended the terms of the Revolving Credit Facility to replace LIBOR
with Term SOFR as the interest rate benchmark. Under the amended terms of the Revolving Credit Facility, borrowings can be either ABR Loans, Term Benchmark Loans, or
SONIA Loans. Outstanding ABR Loans bear interest at a rate equal to the greatest of (A) the Prime Rate, (B) the NYFRB Rate plus 0.5%, (C) the Adjusted Term SOFR Rate
plus 1.0%, or (D) 1.0% (each as defined in the amended Revolving Credit Facility), in each case plus 0.25%. Outstanding Term Benchmark Loans bear interest at the Adjusted
Term SOFR Rate, the Adjusted EURIBOR Rate, or the Adjusted AUD Rate (each as defined in the amended Revolving Credit Facility), as applicable, in each case, plus 1.25%.
Outstanding SONIA Loans bear interest at a rate equal to the Adjusted Daily Simple SONIA (as such term is defined in the amended Revolving Credit Facility) plus 1.25%. We
are required to pay a quarterly commitment fee that accrues at 0.15% per annum on the unused portion of the aggregate commitments under the credit facility.The Revolving
Credit Facility contains customary conditions on our borrowing, including events of default and covenants. Covenants include restrictions on our and certain of our
subsidiariesa€™ ability to incur indebtedness, grant liens, make distributions to holders of our preferred and common stock, make investments, or engage in transactions with
our affiliates, and require us to maintain a minimum liquidity. The obligations under the Revolving Credit Facility are secured by liens on substantially all of our assets,
including intellectual property assets. We were in compliance with all covenants as of DecemberA 31, 2024.11. Commitments and ContingenciesPurchase ObligationsWe enter
into contracts with non-cancellable purchase obligations, primarily related to third-party cloud infrastructure agreements under which we are granted access to certain cloud
services. During the year ended DecemberA 31, 2024, we signed addenda to our cloud services agreements. We are committed under these arrangements to spend at least
$480.0 million through September 2026, before consideration of any credits that may be earned during the term. We have met all minimum purchase commitments under
these agreements during the periods presented.As of DecemberA 31, 2024, future payments under non-cancellable purchase obligations were as follows:(in
thousands)2025$173,662A 2026147,128A 202716,185A 20283A Total $336,978A Legal MattersFrom time to time, we may become involved in claims and other legal matters
arising in the normal course of business. We record a loss contingency when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably
estimated. We also disclose material contingencies when we believe a loss is not probable but reasonably possible. Accounting for contingencies requires us to use judgment
related to both the likelihood of a loss and the estimate of the amount or range of loss. We are not aware of any pending matters, individually or in the aggregate, that are
expected to have a material adverse impact on our results of operations, financial position, or cash flows as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023. Legal fees and other expenses
associated with such matters are expensed as incurred.88Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial StatementsIndemnificationIn the ordinary course
of business, we may provide indemnifications of varying scope and terms to customers, vendors, lessors, investors, directors, officers, employees, and other parties with
respect to certain matters. Indemnification may include losses from our breach of such agreements, services we provide, or third-party intellectual property infringement
claims. These indemnifications may survive termination of the underlying agreement and the maximum potential amount of future indemnification payments may not be
subject to a cap. We have not incurred material costs to defend lawsuits or settle claims related to these indemnifications during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023,
and 2022. We believe the fair value of these liabilities is immaterial and accordingly have not recorded liabilities for these agreements as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023.12.
Convertible Preferred StockImmediately prior to the completion of our IPO, all of our then-outstanding shares of convertible preferred stock were automatically converted into
5,104,017 and 67,917,432 shares of our Class A and Class B common stock, respectively.Convertible preferred stock outstanding consisted of the following as of

DecemberA 31, 2023:SharesauthorizedShares issued and outstandingOriginal issue price per shareAggregateliquidationpreferenceNet carrying value(in thousands, except
share and per share data)Series A7,500,0007,500,000$2.67A $35,000A $21,670A Series A-1114,746114,7465.93A 680A 680A Series

B17,564,93717,564,9376.26A 110,011A 130,567A Series C 10,073,58910,073,58915.77A 158,900A 158,048A Series D13,833,61710,290,49321.69A 223,163A 223,092A Series
D-113,833,6173,543,12421.69A 76,837A 76,687A Series E 12,195,63812,195,63842.47A 518,002A 517,577A Series F 6,634,9056,634,90561.79A 410,000A 409,862A Series F-
15,113,7325,104,01761.79A 315,400A 315,309A Total 86,864,78173,021,449$1,847,993A $1,853,492A Significant rights and preferences of the above convertible preferred
stock prior to its conversion were as follows:DividendsThe holders of Series A, Series A-1, Series B, Series C, Series D, Series D-1, Series E, Series F, and Series F-1
convertible preferred stock (collectively referred to as a€cePreferred Stocka€) were entitled to noncumulative dividends at an annual rate of 8% of the respective original
issue price then in effect (approximately $0.21, $0.47, $0.50, $1.26, $1.73, $1.73, $3.40, $4.94, and $4.94 per share, respectively). Such dividends would have been payable
only when, and if, declared by our board of directors. There were no dividends declared or paid through DecemberA 31, 2023.Liquidation Preferenceln the event of any (i)
liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Reddit, (ii) the consummation of certain mergers or consolidations, (iii) certain change of control transactions, or (iv) other disposition
of all or substantially all of our assets or intellectual property (each, a a€celiquidation eventa€), the holders of Series A, Series B, Series C, Series D, Series D-1, Series E,
Series F, and Series F-1 were entitled to receive, prior and in preference to the holders of SeriesA A-1, Class A common stock and Class B common stock, an amount per share
equal to their full preferential amounts plus any declared and unpaid dividends. If the assets available for distribution were insufficient to pay such amounts, then the
available assets would be distributed ratably among the holders of Series A, Series B, Series C, Series D, Series D-1, Series E, Series F, and Series F-1 in proportion to the full
amount each holder was otherwise entitled to receive. After payment to the holders of Series A, Series B, Series C, Series D, Series D-1, Series E, Series F, and Series F-1 of
their full preferential amounts, the holders of Series A-1 were entitled to receive, prior and in preference to the holders of Class A common stock and Class B common stock,
an amount per share equal to its full preferential amount plus all declared and unpaid dividends. If the remaining assets available for distribution were insufficient to pay such
amounts, then the remaining assets would be distributed ratably among the holders of SeriesA A-1 in proportion to the full amount each holder was otherwise entitled to
receive. After payment to the holders of Series 89Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial StatementsB, Series C, Series D, Series D-1, Series E,
Series F, and Series F-1, and Series A and Series A-1 of their full preferential amounts, our remaining assets would be distributed ratably among the holders of Class A
common stock and Class B common stock in proportion to the number of shares of common stock held by each holder. The preferential amounts per share of the Series A,
Series A-1, Series B, Series C, Series D, Series D-1, Series E, SeriesA F, and Series F-1 convertible preferred stock were approximately $4.67, $5.93, $6.26, $15.77, $21.69,
$21.69, $42.47, $61.79, and $61.79 as of DecemberA 31, 2023.Voting RightsThe holders of each share of Series A, Series A-1, Series B, Series C, Series D, Series D-1, Series
E, and SeriesA F were entitled to the number of votes equal to the number of shares of Class B common stock in which their respective shares were convertible. The holders
of each share of Series F-1 were entitled to the number of votes equal to the number of shares of Class A common stock in which their respective shares were convertible. The
holders of Series B convertible preferred stock, voting as a separate class on an as-converted basis, had the right to elect one director. The holders of Series A convertible
preferred stock, voting as a separate class on an as-converted basis, had the right to elect three directors. The holders of Class A common stock and Class B common stock,
voting together as a single class, had the right to elect one director. The holders of Series A preferred stock, Series B preferred stock, Series C preferred Stock, Series D
preferred Stock, Class A common stock, and Class B common stock, voting together as a single class on an as-converted basis, had the right to elect two directors and any
additional directors.ConversionThe holders of each share of convertible preferred stock had the option to convert each share of Preferred Stock at any time into a number of
shares of Class B common stock determined by dividing the original issue price per share by the then-current conversion price for such series, except for Series F-1, which
was convertible 1:1 into shares of Class A common stock. The original issue prices per share for Series A, Series A-1, Series B, Series C, Series D, Series D-1, Series E, Series
F, and Series F-1 convertible preferred stock were approximately $2.67, $5.93, $6.26, $15.77, $21.69, $21.69, $42.47, $61.79, and $61.79, respectively, and subject to
adjustments for certain dilutive issuances, splits, combinations, and other recapitalizations or reorganizations. The conversion ratio was 1:1 for each series of convertible
preferred stock into shares of Class B common stock, except for Series F-1, which was convertible into shares of Class A common stock. The holders of Series D convertible
preferred stock had the option to convert each share of preferred stock into a number of shares of Series D-1 convertible preferred stock determined by the original issue
price of Series D divided by the original issue price of Series D-1. The holders of Series D-1 convertible preferred stock had the option to convert each share of Preferred
Stock into a number of shares of Series D convertible preferred stock determined by the original issue price of Series D-1 divided by the original issue price of Series D. The
conversion ratio was 1:1 for Series D and Series D-1 preferred stock. In addition, each share of Series A and Series A-1 convertible preferred stock would automatically be
converted into Class B common stock immediately upon the earlier of (i) the closing of an initial public offering that resulted in aggregate net proceeds to us of at least $100.0
million (4€ceQualified IPO4&€), (ii) the affirmative election of the holders of at least a majority of the then-outstanding shares of Series A, voting as a separate series, or (iii) a
liquidation event in which we were valued at more than $240.0 million. Each share of Series B convertible preferred stock would automatically be converted into Class B
common stock immediately upon the earlier of (i) a Qualified IPO or (ii) the affirmative election of the holders of at least a majority of the then-outstanding shares of Series B,
voting as a separate series. Each share of Series C convertible preferred stock would automatically be converted into Class B common stock immediately upon the earlier of (i)
a Qualified IPO or (ii) the affirmative election of the holders of at least a majority of the then-outstanding shares of Series C, voting as a separate series. Each share of Series
D convertible preferred stock would automatically be converted into Class B common stock immediately upon the earlier of (i) a Qualified IPO or (ii) the affirmative election of
the holders of at least a majority of the then-outstanding shares of Series D, voting as a separate series. Each share of Series D-1 convertible preferred stock would
automatically be converted into Class B common stock immediately upon the earlier of (i) a Qualified IPO or (ii) the affirmative election of the holders of at least a majority of
the then-outstanding shares of Series D-1, voting as a separate series. Each share of Series E convertible preferred stock would automatically be converted into Class B
common stock immediately upon the earlier of (i) a Qualified IPO or (ii) the affirmative election of the holders of at least a majority of the then-outstanding shares of Series E,
voting as a separate series. Each share of Series F convertible preferred stock would automatically be converted into Class B common stock immediately upon the earlier of (i)
a Qualified IPO or (ii) the affirmative election of the holders of at least a majority of the then-outstanding shares of Series F, voting as a separate series. Each share of Series
F-1 convertible preferred stock would automatically be converted into Class A common stock immediately upon the earlier of (i) a Qualified IPO or (ii) the affirmative election
of the holders of at least a majority of the then-outstanding shares of Series F-1, voting as a separate series. Upon such automatic conversion, any declared and unpaid



dividends would be paid.90Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial StatementsRedemptionThe holders of convertible preferred stock had no rights to
redeem shares. The convertible preferred stock was redeemable upon the occurrence of a deemed liquidation event that was not solely within the control of Reddit. Therefore,
convertible preferred stock is classified as mezzanine equity on the consolidated balance sheets. The carrying values of convertible preferred stock had not been adjusted to
their liquidation preferences as these events had not occurred through DecemberA 31, 2023.13. Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)Class A, Class B, and Class C Common StockWe
have three classes of authorized common stock 4€” Class A, Class B, and Class C common stock. The rights of the holders of Class A and Class B common stock are identical,
except with respect to voting and conversion rights. Each share of Class A common stock is entitled to one vote per share. Each share of Class B common stock is entitled to
10 votes per share. Shares of Class B common stock may be converted to Class A common stock at any time at the option of the stockholder. In addition, each share of Class B
common stock will convert automatically into one share of Class A common stock (i) upon any transfer, except for certain permitted transfers set forth in the Restated
Certificate, including transfers to family members, certain trusts for estate planning purposes, entities under common control with or controlled by such holder of our Class B
common stock, and with respect to Advance Magazine Publishers Inc., or any Advance Entity (as defined in the Restated Certificate), or (ii) upon the first date on which the
aggregate number of outstanding shares of Class B common stock ceases to represent at least 7.5% of the aggregate number of then-outstanding shares of our Class A and
Class B common stock. Once converted into Class A common stock, the Class B common stock will not be reissued. In connection with our IPO, the Restated Certificate
became effective, which authorized 100,000,000 shares of Class C common stock. Each holder of Class C common stock is entitled to no votes per share.Preferred StockIn
connection with our IPO, the Restated Certificate became effective, which authorized 100,000,000 shares of undesignated preferred stock. Our board of directors has the
discretion to determine the rights, preferences, privileges, and restrictions, including voting rights, dividend rights, conversion rights, redemption privileges, and liquidation
preferences, of each series of preferred stock.Common Stock Reserved for Issuanceln February 2024, our board of directors adopted the 2024 Incentive Award Plan (the
4€002024 Plana€), which became effective in connection with the IPO. Under the 2024 Plan, 31,747,592 shares of our Class A common stock were reserved for issuance
pursuant to a variety of stock-based compensation awards, including stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock awards, RSU awards, performance bonus
awards, performance stock unit awards, dividend equivalents, or other stock or cash based awards. The 2024 Plan also includes shares of our Class A common stock that
remained available for grant of future awards under our 2017 Equity Incentive and Grant Plan (as amended, the "2017 Plan") at the time the 2024 Plan became effective.
Following the effective date of our IPO, the number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2024 Plan will increase by an annual increase on the first day of each fiscal year
beginning in 2025 and ending in 2034, equal to the lesser of (A) 5% of the shares of common stock outstanding (on an as converted basis) on the last day of the immediately
preceding year and (B) such smaller number of shares of stock as determined by our board of directors; provided, however, that no more than 185,661,778 shares of stock
may be issued upon the exercise of incentive stock options.91Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial StatementsWe have reserved the following
shares of common stock, on an as-converted basis, for future issuance:December 31,2024December 31,20230utstanding stock options14,687,538A 29,795,909A Outstanding
RSUs11,175,380A 27,627,171A Conversion of outstanding convertible preferred stocka€”A 73,021,449A Remaining shares reserved for future issuances under the 2017
Plana€”A 7,919,000A Remaining shares reserved for future issuances under the 2024 Plan36,711,788A 4€”A Shares reserved for community impact initiatives and charitable
activities1,337,205A 1,337,205A Total shares of common stock reserved63,911,911A 139,700,734A The remaining shares reserved for future issuance under the 2024 Plan
relate to Class A and Class B common stock.14. Stock-Based CompensationEquity Incentive PlansOur board of directors adopted, and our stockholders approved, the 2024
Plan, 2017 Plan, and the 2012 Plan. Under the 2024 Plan, 2017 Plan and 2012 Plan, the board of directors may grant equity-based awards to eligible employees and directors.
Subsequent to our IPO, all equity-based awards will be issued through the 2024 Plan and no further awards will be granted under the 2017 Plan and 2012 Plan.2023
CEO/COO Equity AwardsIn 2020, 2022, and 2023, we granted our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer RSUs with a liquidity-based performance condition
combined with other performance-based or market-based vesting conditions. In December 2023, certain of these awards were canceled and we concurrently granted the 2023
CEO/COO equity awards.As part of the 2023 CEO/COO equity awards, we granted our Chief Executive Officer 2,990,511 RSUs covering 1,495,255 shares of our Class A
common stock and 1,495,256 shares of our Class B common stock, and our Chief Operating Officer 1,462,028 RSUs covering shares of our Class A common stock (collectively,
the 4€eCEO/COO RSUsa€). The CEO/COO RSUs have both service-based and performance-based vesting conditions. The service-based vesting condition for 50% of these
awards was satisfied on the grant date. The service-based vesting condition of the remaining awards is satisfied by rendering continuous service for five years, during which
time the grants will vest quarterly. The performance-based vesting condition was satisfied upon the sale of our common stock upon the consummation of a firm commitment
underwritten IPO pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act or a sale event, which constitutes a change in the ownership or effective control of
Reddit or in the ownership of a substantial portion of the assets of Reddit (each, a &€ceLiquidity Eventa€).Additionally, we granted our Chief Executive Officer stock options to
purchase 4,485,766 shares of our Class A common stock, and 1,495,256 shares of our Class B common stock and our Chief Operating Officer a stock option to purchase
2,924,056 shares of our Class A common stock (collectively, the &0 CEO/COO Optionsa€) as part of the 2023 CEO/COO equity awards. The per share exercise price for
4,452,539 of the shares underlying the CEO/COO Options is $25.29, and for the remaining 4,452,539 shares underlying the CEO/COO Options, the per share exercise price is
$45.00, $60.00, and $90.00 for each one-third of the shares underlying such CEO/COO Options. The CEO/COO Options vest quarterly over five years and have a contractual
term of ten years.We accounted for the cancellation and concurrent grant of replacement awards as a modification of the terms of the canceled awards. At the time of the
modification, all of the canceled awards were improbable of vesting. The 2023 CEO/COO RSUs were subject to a Liquidity Event performance-based vesting condition and
were therefore improbable of vesting. The 2023 CEO/COO Options were not subject to a Liquidity Event performance-based vesting condition and were therefore probable of
vesting.92Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial StatementsRSUs and RSAsService-based RSUsWe grant service-based RSUs to our employees, all
of which relate to Class A common stock. RSUs granted under the 2017 plan generally have both service-based and performance-based vesting conditions (&€ceDouble Trigger
RSUsa¢€). Double Trigger RSUs generally expire seven years from the date of grant. The service-based vesting condition for these awards is generally satisfied by rendering
continuous service, generally for three to four years, during which time the grants will vest either quarterly or with a cliff vesting period of one year and continued vesting
quarterly thereafter. The performance-based vesting condition was satisfied upon the effectiveness of our IPO. We record stock-based compensation expense in connection
with these Double Trigger RSUs based on the fair market value of our common stock on the grant date using the accelerated attribution method over the requisite service
period.We also grant RSUs with a service-based vesting condition only, covering shares of our Class A common stock (&€ceSingle Trigger RSUs&€). Single Trigger RSUs
generally expire seven years from the date of grant. The service-based vesting condition for these awards is generally satisfied by rendering continuous service, generally for
one to three years, during which time the grants will vest either with a cliff vesting period of one year and continued vesting quarterly thereafter or quarterly from the vesting
commencement date. As a result, we record stock-based compensation expense related to these awards on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period.Service-based
RSAsWe grant, in certain circumstances, RSAs with a service-based vesting condition, covering shares of our ClassA A common stock. The service-based vesting condition for
these awards is generally satisfied by rendering continuous service, generally for three years, during which time the grants will vest with a cliff vesting period of one year and
continued vesting quarterly thereafter. As a result, we record stock-based compensation expense related to these awards on a straight-line basis over the requisite service
period.The following table summarizes the RSU and RSA activity for the year ended December 31, 2024:Service-basedRSUsRSAsMarket and Performance-based RSUsTotal
RSUs and RSAsWeighted-average grantdate fairvalueUnvested as of December 31,

202325,406,057A 87,030A 1,393,446A 26,886,533A $29.17A Granted5,170,456A 153,648A 86,706A 5,410,810A $56.96A Vested(17,753,004)(71,811)(1,351,867)
(19,176,682)$31.80A Canceled/Forfeited(1,745,625)a€”A (30,789)(1,776,414)$31.15A Unvested as of December 31,

202411,077,884A 168,867A 97,496A 11,344,247A $37.67A As of DecemberA 31, 2024, we had RSUs and RSAs outstanding for 11,344,247 common shares, of which
10,746,145 relate to Class A common stock and 598,102 relate to Class B common stock. The weighted-average grant date fair value of RSUs and RSAs granted during the
years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 was $56.96, $26.71, and $37.88, respectively. The total fair value of RSUs and RSAs vested during the years ended
DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 was $766.8 million, $27.9 million, and $33.4 million, respectively. Total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to
RSUs and RSAs was $292.2 million as of DecemberA 31, 2024 and is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.41 years.Stock OptionsStock option
grants generally expire ten years from the date of the grant. Certain stock option grants allow for the exercise of unvested options to acquire shares. Upon termination of
service, we have the right to repurchase, at the original exercise price, any unvested (but issued) common stock. The grant date fair value of stock options is estimated using a
Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Calculating the fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes model requires certain highly subjective inputs and assumptions
including the fair value of the underlying common stock, the expected term of the stock option, and the expected volatility of the price of the underlying common stock.
Forfeitures are accounted for as they occur. Stock options vest based on terms in the stock option agreement and generally vest over five years quarterly or four years with
25% of the award vesting one year from the vesting commencement date then ratably over the following three years. For 93Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statementsawards that vest based only on continuous service, stock-based compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
requisite service period.The following table summarizes the stock option activity during the year ended December 31, 2024:OutstandingstockoptionsWeighted-
averageexercisepriceWeighted-averageremainingcontractuallife(years)Aggregateintrinsicvalue(in thousands, except share, per share, and year data)Balance as of December
31, 202329,795,909A $17.83A 6.00$500,472A Exercised(15,018,424)5.92A Canceled/Forfeited (89,947)8.89A Balance as of December 31,

202414,687,538A $30.07A 6.87$1,958,924A Vested as of December 31, 20247,495,598A $15.88A 4.88$1,106,061A Vested and expected to vest as of December 31,
202414,687,538A $30.07A 6.87$1,958,924A As of DecemberA 31, 2024 we had outstanding stock options for 14,687,538 common shares, of which 11,501,771 relate to Class
A common stock and 3,185,767 relate to Class B common stock. Total unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to stock options was $111.9 million as of
DecemberA 31, 2024 and is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 3.95 years.Aggregate intrinsic value represents the difference between the exercise
price of the options and the estimated fair value of our common stock. The intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022
was $887.3A million, $72.5A million, and $43.6A million, respectively. The weighted-average grant date fair value per share of options granted during the years ended
DecemberA 31, 2023 and 2022 was $15.67 and $27.52, respectively. The total grant date fair value of options vested during the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and
2022 was $34.8A million, $14.0A million, and $21.9A million, respectively.Determination of Fair ValueWe estimate the fair value of stock options using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model, which is dependent upon several variables, such as the fair value of our common stock, expected term of the option, expected volatility of the stock
price, risk-free interest rate, and expected dividend rate.The assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option pricing model were determined as follows:Fair Value of Common
Stocka€”Prior to the completion of an IPO, the board of directors exercised reasonable judgment and considered numerous and subjective factors to determine the best
estimate of the fair value of our common stock, including but not limited to the prices of recent issuances of our convertible preferred stock, third-party valuations of our
common stock, the price paid by us to repurchase outstanding shares of common stock, the prices paid for our common stock in secondary market transactions, our
performance and market position relative to our competitors or similar publicly traded companies, the likelihood and timing of achieving a liquidity event, the lack of
marketability of our common stock, and U.S. and global capital market conditions.Expected Terma€”The expected term of options represents the period that our stock-based
awards are expected to be outstanding and is calculated using the simplified method. The simplified method deems the term to be the average of the time-to-vesting and the
contractual life of the options.Volatilityd€”We determine the price volatility factor based on the historical and implied volatilities of our peer group as we do not have a
sufficient trading history for our common stock. When considering which companies to include in our comparable industry peer companies, we focused on publicly-traded
companies with businesses similar to ours.Risk Free Interest Ratesa€”These rates are based on the implied yield currently available on U.S. Treasury notes with terms
approximately equal to the expected life of the option.Expected Dividend Yielda€”We have not and do not expect to pay cash dividends on our common stock.94Table of
ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial StatementsThe following weighted-average assumptions were used to determine the fair value of employee stock
options granted during the year ended December 31, 2023:Expected term (in years)6.31Expected volatility60.66A %Risk-free interest rate3.83A %Expected dividend
yieldOSecondary SalesDuring the year ended DecemberA 31, 2023, certain former employees sold an aggregate of 183,677 shares of Class A common stock and 3,960,560
shares of Class B common stock to existing shareholders at purchase prices ranging from $25.00 to $31.50 per share, for an aggregate purchase price of $114.1 million. We
estimated the fair value of the common stock purchased in the secondary sales based on several factors, including taking into account the amounts paid by third parties for
our common stock. As the purchase price for the secondary sales paid by our existing shareholder was in excess of the fair value of such shares at the time of the transactions,
we recognized immaterial stock-based compensation expense in connection with these transactions during the year ended DecemberA 31, 2023.Stock-Based Compensation
ExpenseThe following table summarizes the components of stock-based compensation expense recognized in the consolidated statements of operations for all periods
presented:Year ended December 31,202420232022(in thousands)Cost of revenue$620A $101A $133A Research and development441,629A 23,825A 35,641A Sales and



marketing80,436A 5,555A 7,576A General and administrative278,961A 18,117A 11,960A Stock-based compensation expense$801,646A $47,598A $55,310A 15. Employee
Benefit PlansWe have a defined contribution 401(k) plan (the 4€ce401(k) Plana€) for our United States-based employees. The 401 (k) Plan is for all full-time employees who
meet certain eligibility requirements. Eligible employees may contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation, but are limited to the maximum annual dollar amount
allowable under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the a€ceCoded€). We match 100% of each participanta€™s contribution up to $3,000 and 25% of each
participantd€™ s contribution thereafter, subject to certain limitations and the IRS annual contribution limits. During the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022,
we recognized expense related to matching contributions of $11.5 million, $10.1 million, and $8.7 million, respectively.16. Income TaxesFor the years ended DecemberA 31,
2024, 2023, and 2022, the geographical breakdown of our income (loss) before income taxes is as follows:Year ended December 31,202420232022(in thousands)Domestic
income (loss)$(493,371)$(92,627)$(162,330)Foreign income (loss)8,164A 5,604A 4,402A Income (loss) before income taxes$(485,207)$(87,023)$(157,928)95Table of
ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial StatementsFor the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, income tax expense (benefit) consisted of the
following:Year ended December 31,202420232022(in thousands)Current income tax expense

(benefit):Federal$(141)$1,290A $859A State474A 1,133A 610A Foreign851A 1,468A 1,231A Total current income tax expense (benefit)1,184A 3,891A 2,700A Deferred income
tax expense (benefit):Federal(237)a€”A (1,767)Foreign(1,878)(90)(311)Total deferred income tax expense (benefit)(2,115)(90)(2,078)Total income tax expense
(benefit)$(931)$3,801A $622A Our effective tax rate, as a percentage of pre-tax income (loss), differs from the statutory federal rate as follows:Year ended December
31,202420232022Statutory federal income tax rate21.0A %21.0A %21.0A %State income taxes, net of federal benefit5.3A 1.2A 2.3A Non-deductible

compensation(14.0)a€”A 4€”A Stock-based compensation44.4A 3.9A 0.6A Research and development credits14.6A 13.5A 14.1A Change in valuation allowance(71.0)(41.1)
(37.4)Other(0.2)(2.9)(1.0)Effective tax rate0.1A %(4.4)%(0.4)%Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effect of temporary differences between amounts recorded for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. The major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:December 31,2024December
31,2023(in thousands)Deferred tax assets:Net operating loss carryforwards$149,735A $56,938A Stock-based compensationZ&SSGA 21,364A Lease

liability6,206A 5,819A Capitalized research and development costs268,232A 98,267A Research and development credits124,116A 53,946A Other13,351A 4,216A Gross
deferred tax assets590,226A 240,550A Valuation allowance(572,894)(228,001)Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowancel7,332A 12,549A Deferred tax
liabilities:Right-of-use asset(5,436)(5,426)Acquired intangibles(9,727)(6,895)Total deferred tax liabilities(15,163)(12,321)Net deferred tax assets

(liabilities)$2,169A $228A 96Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial StatementsAs of DecemberA 31, 2024, we had $590.4 million and $399.9
million, respectively, of gross federal and state net operating loss carryforwards available to reduce future taxable income. The federal net operating loss carryforwards are
able to be carried forward indefinitely but are limited to 80% of taxable income. The state carryforwards will begin to expire in 2025.As of DecemberA 31, 2024, we had
federal research and development credit carryforwards of $123.9 million that will begin to expire in 2039 and state research and development credit carryforwards of $49.3
million that do not expire.Utilization of the net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards may be subject to a substantial annual limitation due to the ownership change
limitations provided by Section 382 of the Code and similar state tax regulations. Under Section 382 of the Code, substantial changes in our ownership and in the ownership
of acquired companies may limit the amount of net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards that are available to offset taxable income. The annual limitation may result in
the expiration of net operating losses and tax credits before utilization. Accordingly, our ability to utilize these carryforwards may be limited as a result of such ownership
change.We assessed the available positive and negative evidence to estimate if sufficient future taxable income will be generated to use our existing federal and state deferred
tax assets. Based on the weight of the available evidence, including our history of losses, we provided a full valuation allowance against our federal and state deferred tax
assets as of DecemberA 31, 2024. The amount of the deferred tax asset considered realizable could be adjusted in future periods if objective negative evidence in the form of
cumulative losses is no longer present and additional weight may be given to subjective evidence such as our projections for growth.As of DecemberA 31, 2024, we had an
immaterial amount of unremitted earnings related to foreign subsidiaries. We intend to reinvest these foreign earnings indefinitely and do not expect to incur any significant
taxes related to such amounts.Uncertain Tax PositionsThe following table summarizes the activity related to our gross unrecognized tax benefits during the years ended
DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022:Year ended December 31,202420232022(in thousands)Beginning balance of unrecognized tax

benefits$19,236A $16,428A $8,982A Increases/(decreases) related to prior year tax positions 1,444A (1,750)1,925A Increases/(decreases) related to current year tax positions
23,181A 4,558A 5,521A Ending balance of unrecognized tax benefits$43,861A $19,236A $16,428A Substantially all of the unrecognized tax benefits were recorded as
reductions in our gross deferred tax assets, offset by a corresponding reduction in our valuation allowance. The unrecognized tax benefits, if recognized, would not materially
affect the effective tax rate due to the full valuation allowance recorded against our federal and state deferred tax assets.Our policy is to recognize interest and penalties
associated with unrecognized tax benefits as income tax expense. During the year ended DecemberA 31, 2024, we had no interest expense or penalties related to uncertain
tax positions. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, we had no accrued balances of interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions.Due to our net operating loss carryforwards,
we are subject to examination by taxing authorities in the United States for all tax years. In our foreign jurisdictions, we are subject to examination for tax years ending on or
after DecemberA 31, 2019. As of DecemberA 31, 2024, we had not identified any gross unrecognized tax benefits where it was reasonably possible we would recognize a
significant increase or decrease within the next 12 months.17. Related Parties and Related-Party TransactionsAdvance Magazine Publishers Inc.As of DecemberA 31, 2024,
Advance Magazine Publishers Inc. (&€ceAdvancea€) held approximately 23% of our outstanding shares of Class A and Class B common stock and is a related party to Reddit as
Advance holds more than 10% of the voting power of our outstanding Class A and Class B common stock. Moreover, pursuant to the terms of the Restated Certificate and that
certain Governance Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2024, by and among us, Steve Huffman, our Chief Executive Officer 97Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statementsand a member of our board of directors, and Advance, Advance has the right to designate two directors for inclusion in the slate of
nominees for election as directors at an annual or special meeting of stockholders, to designate one nonvoting observer to the board of directors, and to have one of its
designees sit on each committee of the board of directors (other than the audit committee), subject to certain limitations set forth in the Restated Certificate. Additionally, the
affirmative vote or written consent of Advance will be required for us to take certain corporate actions. These rights will continue until the first to occur of the following
events: (i) a change of control of Advance or Reddit; (ii) Advance and its permitted transferees cease to, in the aggregate, beneficially own at least 5% of the aggregate of the
then-outstanding shares of our Class A and Class B common stock; and (iii) (a) Advance and its permitted transferees cease to, in the aggregate, beneficially own at least 50%
of the number of outstanding shares of our equity securities held by Advance upon the closing of our IPO, and (b) the then-outstanding shares of our Class B common stock, in
the aggregate, represents less than 7.5% of the aggregate of the then-outstanding shares of our Class A and Class B common stock.We currently sublease office space in New
York and Chicago from Advance. Total lease costs and other related expenses for our subleases were immaterial for the years ended DecemberA 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.18.
Segment and Geographic InformationSegment InformationWe have one reportable segment as our chief operating decision maker reviews consolidated profitability measures
in managing the business. Specifically, our chief operating decision maker uses consolidated net income (loss) as the measure of segment profit or loss for evaluating
performance and allocating resources through comparison of actual amounts against budgeted and prior period amounts.The following table presents the calculation of
segment net income (loss):Year ended December 31,202420232022(in thousands)Revenue$1,300,205A $804,029A $666,701A Adjusted cost of

revenue(1)122,975A 110,758A 103,952A Adjusted gross profit1,177,230A 693,271A 562,749A Adjusted operating expenses(2)879,223A 762,546A 671,143A Stock-based
compensation and related taxes842,932A 49,086A 55,768A Depreciation and amortization15,643A 13,702A 8,000A Interest (income) expense, net(78,121)(53,281)
(15,681)Income tax expense (benefit)(931)3,801A 622A Other segment expenses(3)2,760A 8,241A 1,447A Segment net income
(loss)$(484,276)$(90,824)$(158,550)Consolidated net income (loss)$(484,276)$(90,824)$(158,550) (1)Adjusted cost of revenue is cost of revenue adjusted for
stock-based compensation and related taxes and depreciation and amortization as follows:Year ended December 31,202420232022(in thousands)Cost of

revenue$123,595A $111,011A $104,799A Less:Stock-based compensation and related taxes620A 101A 133A Depreciation and amortizationa€”A 152A 714A Adjusted cost of
revenue$122,975A $110,758A $103,952A 98Table of ContentsReddit, Inc.Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements(2)Adjusted operating expenses is operating
expenses (comprised of research and development, sales and marketing, and general and administrative expenses) adjusted for stock-based compensation and related taxes,
depreciation and amortization, and restructuring costs as follows:Year ended December 31,202420232022(in thousands)Operating

expenses$1,737,178A $833,179A $734,064A Less:Stock-based compensation and related taxes842,312A 48,985A 55,635A Depreciation and

amortization15,643A 13,550A 7,286A Restructuring costsa€”A 8,098A a€”A Adjusted operating expenses$879,223A $762,546A $671,143A (3)Other segment expenses
primarily includes restructuring costs, realized gains and losses on sales of marketable securities, and foreign currency transaction gains and losses.Geographic InformationAs
of DecemberA 31, 2024 and 2023, substantially all of our long-lived assets were located within the United States.99Table of ContentsItem 9. Changes in and Disagreements
With Accountants on Accounting and Financial DisclosureNone.Item 9A. Controls and ProceduresEvaluation of Disclosure Controls and ProceduresOur management, with the
participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-
15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the 4&€ceExchange Acta€)), as of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report on

FormA 10-K. Based on such evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that these disclosure controls and procedures were effective at
a reasonable assurance level as of DecemberA 31, 2024.Managementa€™s Report on Internal Control Over Financial ReportingThis Annual Report on Form 10-K does not
include a report of managementa€™s assessment regarding internal control over financial reporting or an attestation report of our independent registered public accounting
firm due to a transition period established by rules of the SEC for newly public companies.Changes in Internal Control Over Financial ReportingThere were no changes in our
internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by Rule 13a-15(d) and 15d-15(d) of the Exchange Act during the period covered
by this Annual Report on Form 10-K that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.Limitations on
Effectiveness of Controls and ProceduresOur management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, believes that our disclosure controls and
procedures and internal control over financial reporting are designed to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives and are effective at the reasonable
assurance level. However, the effectiveness of any internal control over financial reporting is subject to inherent limitations, including the exercise of judgment in designing,
implementing, operating, and evaluating the controls and procedures, and the inability to eliminate misconduct completely. Because of the inherent limitations in all control
systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. The design of any system of
controls is based in part on certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals
under all potential future conditions. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the degree of compliance with policies
or procedures. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.ltem 9B. Other
InformationRule 10b5-1 Trading PlansDuring the three months ended December 31, 2024, three of our directors or a€ceofficersa€ (as defined in Rule 16a-1(f) under the
Exchange Act) adopted, modified, or terminated a 4€ceRule 10b5-1 trading arrangementa€ or &€cenon-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement,a€ as each term is defined in Item
408(a) of Regulation S-K.On November 25, 2024, our Chief Financial Officer, Andrew Vollero, adopted a Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement intended to satisfy the affirmative
defense conditions of Rule 10b5-1(c) for the sale of up to (i) 200,000 shares of our Class A common stock and (ii) the number of shares of our Class A common stock Mr.
Vollero will receive following the vesting of certain restricted stock unit awards and the satisfaction of tax obligations in connection with such vesting. The number of shares
to be sold pursuant to the trading plan is dependent on the tax obligation incurred in connection with the vesting of these restricted stock unit awards and, therefore, is
indeterminable at this time, but in no event will exceed an aggregate of 267,933 shares of our Class A common stock. The trading plan will terminate at the earlier of the
execution of all trading orders pursuant to the plan or May 15, 2025.0n December 3, 2024, our Chief Legal Officer, Benjamin Lee, adopted a Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement
intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5-1(c) for the sale of up to (i) 75,000 shares of our Class A common stock and (ii) the number of shares of our
Class A common stock Mr. Lee will receive following the vesting of certain restricted stock unit awards and the satisfaction of tax obligations in connection with such vesting.
The number of shares to be sold pursuant to the trading plan is dependent on the tax obligation incurred in connection with the vesting of these restricted stock unit awards
100Table of Contentsand, therefore, is indeterminable at this time, but in no event will exceed an aggregate of 126,660 shares of our Class A common stock. The trading plan
will terminate at the earlier of the execution of all trading orders pursuant to the plan or December 15, 2025.0n December 3, 2024, our Chief Accounting Officer, Michelle
Reynolds, adopted a Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5-1(c) for the sale of up to (i) 5,999 shares of our Class
A common stock and (ii) the number of shares of our Class A common stock Ms. Reynolds will receive following the vesting of certain restricted stock unit awards and the
satisfaction of tax obligations in connection with such vesting. The number of shares to be sold pursuant to the trading plan is dependent on the tax obligation incurred in
connection with the vesting of these restricted stock unit awards and, therefore, is indeterminable at this time, but in no event will exceed an aggregate of 20,979 shares of



our Class A common stock. The trading plan will terminate at the earlier of the execution of all trading orders pursuant to the plan or MayA 30, 2025.Item 9C. Disclosure
Regarding Foreign Jurisdictions that Prevent InspectionsNot applicable.101Table of ContentsPart IIIltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporation GovernanceWe
maintain a business ethics policy that incorporates our code of ethics applicable to our directors, officers, and employees, including our principal executive officer, principal
financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or persons performing similar functions. Our business ethics policy is available under the Governance Overview
section of our Investor Relations website at investor.redditinc.com. We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirement under ItemA 5.05 of FormA 8-K regarding amendments to,
or waiver from, a provision of our business ethics policy by posting such information on the website address and location specified above.We have adopted insider trading
policies and procedures governing the purchase, sale, and other dispositions of our securities by directors, officers, and employees that are designed to promote compliance
with insider trading laws, rules, and regulations, and applicable NYSE listing standards, as well as procedures designed to further the foregoing purposes. A copy of our
insider trading policy is filed with this Annual Report on Form 10-K as Exhibit 19.1.The remaining information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy
Statement for our 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024.Item 11. Executive
CompensationThe information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for our 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed with
the SEC within 120 days of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024.Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
MattersThe information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for our 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed with the
SEC within 120 days of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024.Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director IndependenceThe information
required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy Statement for our 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days of
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024.Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and ServicesThe information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Proxy
Statement for our 2025 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2024.102Table of
ContentsPart IVItem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement SchedulesWe have filed the following documents as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:1.Consolidated
Financial Statements.See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements in Part II, Item 8, &€ceFinancial Statements and Supplementary Data&€ in this Annual Report on Form
10-K.2.Financial Statement SchedulesNo financial statement schedules are provided because the information called for is not required or is shown in the financial statements
or the notes thereto.3.ExhibitsThe documents set forth below are filed herewith or incorporated herein by reference to the location indicated.ExhibitNumberExhibit
DescriptionIncorporated by ReferenceFiled HerewithFormFiling DateNumber3.1Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation8-K3/25/20243.13.2Amended and Restated
Bylaws8-K3/25/20243.24.1Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1 and 3.24.2Form of Class A Common Stock CertificateS-1/A3/11/20244.24.3Form of Class B Common Stock
CertificateS-83/21/20244.64.4Description of SecuritiesX4.5Amended and Restated Investorsa€™ Rights Agreement, dated September 1, 2021, by and among the Registrant
and the investors listed thereinS-12/22/202410.110.1Letter Agreement, dated August 11, 2021, by and between the Registrant and the Series F Fidelity Investors (as defined
therein)S-12/22/202410.210.2Governance Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2024, by and among the Registrant, Advance Magazine Publishers, Inc., and Steven Huffman10-
Q5/7/202410.110.30ffice Lease, dated December 31, 2022, by and between the Registrant and Kilroy Realty 303, LLCS-12/22/202410.410.4(a)a€ Credit and Guarantee
Agreement, dated October 8, 2021, by and among the Registrant, the lenders listed therein, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agentS-
12/22/202410.510.4(b)a€ Amendment No. 1 to Credit and Guarantee Agreement, dated May 23, 2023, by and among the Registrant, the lenders listed therein, and JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent and collateral agentS-12/22/202410.610.5(a)#2012 Stock Option and Grant Plan, as amendedS-12/22/202410.7(a)10.5(b)#Form of
Incentive Stock Option Grant Notice and Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the 2012 Stock Option and Grant PlanS-12/22/202410.7(b)10.5(c)#Form of Non-Qualified
Stock Option Grant Notice and Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the 2012 Stock Option and Grant PlanS-12/22/202410.7(c)10.5(d)#Form of Early Exercise
Incentive Stock Option Grant Notice and Early Exercise Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the 2012 Stock Option and Grant PlanS-12/22/202410.7(d)10.5(e)#Form of
Early Exercise Non-Qualified Stock Option Grant Notice and Early Exercise Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the 2012 Stock Option and Grant PlanS-
12/22/202410.7(e)103Table of ContentsExhibitNumberExhibit DescriptionIncorporated by ReferenceFiled Herewith10.5(f)#Form of Restricted Stock Award Grant Notice and
Restricted Stock Award Agreement under the 2012 Stock Option and Grant PlanS-12/22/202410.7(£)10.6(a)#2017 Equity Incentive and Grant Plan, as amendedS-
12/22/202410.8(a)10.6(b)#Form of Early Exercise Incentive Stock Option Grant Notice and Early Exercise Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the 2017 Equity Incentive
and Grant PlanS-12/22/202410.8(b)10.6(c)#Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Grant Notice and Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the 2017 Equity Incentive
and Grant PlanS-12/22/202410.8(c)10.7(a)#2024 Incentive Award PlanS-83/21/202499.310.7(b)#Form of Stock Option Grant Notice and Stock Option Agreement under the
2024 Incentive Award PlanS-12/22/202410.9(b)10.7(c)#Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Grant Notice and Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under the 2024
Incentive Award PlanS-12/22/202410.9(c)10.8#Employee Stock Purchase PlanS-83/21/202499.410.9#Amended and Restated Non-Employee Director Compensation
ProgramS-1/A3/11/202410.1110.10#Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Registrant and each of its Directors and Executive OfficersS-
12/22/202410.1210.11#Amended and Restated Employment Offer Letter by and between the Registrant and Steven HuffmanS-1/A3/11/202410.1310.12#Amended and
Restated Employment Offer Letter by and between the Registrant and Jennifer WongS-1/A3/11/202410.1410.13#Amended and Restated Employment Offer Letter by and
between the Registrant and Andrew VolleroS-1/A3/11/202410.1510.14#Amended and Restated Change in Control and Severance Agreement by and between the Registrant
and Steven HuffmanS-1/A3/11/202410.1610.15#Change in Control and Severance Agreement by and between the Registrant and Jennifer WongS-
1/A3/11/202410.1710.16#Change in Control and Severance Agreement by and between the Registrant and Andrew VolleroS-1/A3/11/202410.1810.17#Executive Change in
Control and Severance PlanS-1/A3/11/202410.1919.1Insider Trading Policy and GuidelinesX21.1List of SubsidiariesX23.1Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered
Public Accounting FirmX24.1Power of Attorney (included on signature page to this Annual Report on Form 10-K)X31.1Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to
Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002X31.2Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant
to Exchange Act Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002X32.1*Certifications of Principal Executive Officer and
Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002X97Policy Relating to Recovery of
Erroneously Awarded CompensationX99.1Voting Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2024, by and between Advance Magazine Publishers Inc. and Steven Huffman10-
Q5/7/202499.1104Table of ContentsExhibitNumberExhibit DescriptionIncorporated by ReferenceFiled Herewith99.2Voting Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2024, by and
between the Registrant, Tencent Cloud Europe B.V., Jojoba Investment Limited, and the Proxyholder (as defined therein)10-Q5/7/202499.2101.INSInline XBRL Instance
Document a€“ the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL documentX101.SCHInline XBRL
Taxonomy Extension Schema DocumentX101.CALInline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase DocumentX101.DEFInline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
Linkbase DocumentX101.LABInline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase DocumentX101.PREInline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase
DocumentX104Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document)X#A A A A Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or
arrangement.a€ A A A A Portions of this exhibit have been omitted in accordance with Item 601(a)(5) of Regulation S-K. The registrant undertakes to furnish a copy of all
omitted schedules and exhibits to the SEC upon its request.*A A A A The information in this exhibit is furnished and deemed not filed with the SEC for purposes of SectionA 18
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the a€ceExchange Acta€), and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of Reddit, Inc. under the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, whether made before or after the date hereof, regardless of any general incorporation language in such filing.Item 16. Form
10-K SummaryNone.105Table of ContentsSIGNATURESPursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. REDDIT, INC.Dated: February 12, 2025By:/s/ Andrew VolleroName:Andrew VolleroTitle:Chief
Financial Officer(Principal Financial Officer) POWER OF ATTORNEYKNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints Steven Huffman and Andrew Vollero, and each of them, his or her true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and
resubstitution, for him or her and in his or her name, place, and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and
to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, and all other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto each said attorney-in-
fact and agents full power and authority to do and perform each and every act in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents or either of
them or their or his or her substitute or substitutes may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, this report
has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.SignatureTitleDate/s/ Steven HuffmanChief
Executive Officer, President and Director (Principal Executive Officer)February 12, 2025Steven Huffman/s/ Andrew VolleroChief Financial Officer (Principal Financial
Officer)February 12, 2025Andrew Vollero/s/ Michelle ReynoldsChief Accounting Officer (Principal Accounting Officer)February 12, 2025Michelle Reynolds/s/ Sarah
FarrellDirectorFebruary 12, 2025Sarah Farrell/s/ Patricia Fili-KrushelDirectorFebruary 12, 2025Patricia Fili-Krushel/s/ Porter GaleDirectorFebruary 12, 2025Porter Gale/s/
David HabigerDirectorFebruary 12, 2025David Habiger/s/ Steven O. NewhouseDirectorFebruary 12, 2025Steven O. Newhouse/s/ Robert A. SauerbergDirectorFebruary 12,
2025Robert A. Sauerberg/s/ Michael SeibelDirectorFebruary 12, 2025Michael Seibel106DocumentExhibit 4.4DESCRIPTION OF THE REGISTRANT&€™ S
SECURITIESREGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12 OF THESECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934Reddit, Inc. (a€c,ewe,a€ a€ceour,a€ or a€ceusa€) has one class of
securities registered under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the &€ceExchange Acta€): our Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share.
The following summary describes our capital stock and certain provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, our amended and restated bylaws, the
amended and restated investorsa€™ rights agreement to which we and certain of our stockholders are parties (the 4€ceInvestorsa€™ Rights Agreementa€), the governance
agreement to which we, Advance Magazine Publishers Inc. (&€ceAdvanced€), our principal stockholder, and Steve Huffman, our Chief Executive Officer and President and a
member of our board of directors (the &€ceGovernance Agreementa€), are parties, and the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the d€eDelaware General
Corporation Lawa€). Because the following is only a summary, it does not contain all of the information that may be important to you. For a complete description, you should
refer to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, our amended and restated bylaws, the Investorsa€™ Rights Agreement, and the Governance Agreement, copies
of which have been filed publicly filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the &€0eSECa€), and the applicable provisions of the Delaware General Corporation
Law.GeneralOur authorized capital stock consists of:a€¢2,000,000,000 shares of Class A common stock;a€¢140,000,000 shares of Class B common stock, par value $0.0001
per share;a€¢100,000,000 shares of Class C common stock, par value $0.0001 per share; anda€¢100,000,000 shares of undesignated preferred stock, par value $0.0001 per
share.Our board of directors is authorized, without stockholder approval except as required by the rules of the New York Stock Exchange (the 4€®NYSE&€) and subject to the
rights granted to Advance pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and the Governance Agreement, to issue additional shares of our capital
stock.Common StockWe have three classes of authorized common stock: Class A common stock, Class B common stock, and ClassA C common stock. The rights of holders of
Class A common stock, Class B common stock, and ClassA C common stock are identical, except with respect to voting and conversion rights.Voting RightsEach holder of our
Class A common stock is entitled to one vote per share, each holder of our ClassA B common stock is entitled to 10 votes per share, and each holder of our Class C common
stock is entitled to no votes per share. The holders of our Class A and Class B common stock generally vote together as a single class on all matters submitted to a vote of our
stockholders, unless otherwise required by Delaware law or our amended and restated certificate of incorporation. Delaware law could require holders of our Class A common
stock, Class B common stock, or Class C common stock to vote separately as a single class in the following circumstances:a€¢if we were to seek to amend our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation to increase or decrease the par value of a class of our capital stock, then that class would be required to vote separately to approve the
proposed amendment; anda€¢if we were to seek to amend our amended and restated certificate of incorporation in a manner that alters or changes the powers, preferences,
or special rights of a class of our capital stock in a manner that affected its holders adversely, then that class would be required to vote separately to approve the proposed
amendment.Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation does not provide for cumulative voting for the election of directors. In addition, the affirmative vote of
holders of at least a majority of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding voting stock shall be required to take certain actions, including amending certain provisions of
our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, including the provisions relating to amending our amended and restated bylaws and director liability. For so long as
any shares of our ClassA B common stock remain outstanding, the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the voting power of all then-outstanding shares of our
Class B common stock, voting separately as a class, shall be required to take certain actions, including amending the provisions of our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation relating to the terms of our common stock, the availability of written consent in lieu of a meeting of our stockholders, and director liability.Conversion
RightsClass B Common Stock. Each outstanding share of Class B common stock is convertible at any time at the option of the holder into one share of Class A common stock.
In addition, each share of Class B common stock will convert automatically into one share of Class A common stock upon any transfer, whether or not for value, except for
certain permitted transfers set forth in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, including transfers to family members, certain trusts for estate planning



purposes, entities under common control with or controlled by such holder of our Class B common stock, and with respect to Advance, any Advance Entity (as defined in our
amended and restated certificate of incorporation). Once converted into Class A common stock, the Class B common stock will not be reissued.All of the outstanding shares of
Class B common stock will convert automatically into shares of ClassA A common stock upon the first date on which the aggregate number of outstanding shares of ClassA B
common stock ceases to represent at least 7.5% of the aggregate number of then-outstanding shares of our Class A and Class B common stock. Once converted into Class A
common stock, the Class B common stock will not be reissued.Class C Common Stock. Subject to the rights granted to Advance pursuant to our amended and restated
certificate of incorporation and the Governance Agreement, following the date on which no shares of our Class B common stock remain outstanding and upon the date and
time, or occurrence of an event, specified by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the then-outstanding shares of our Class A common stock, voting as a separate
class, all of the outstanding shares of our Class C common stock will convert automatically into shares of our Class A common stock. We have no current plans to issue any
Class C common stock.Economic RightsDividends. Any dividend or distribution paid or payable to the holders of shares of Class A, ClassA B, and ClassA C common stock shall
be paid pro rata, on an equal priority, pari passu basis, unless different treatment of the shares of each such class is approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of a
majority of the outstanding shares of ClassA A, Class B, and Class C common stock, each voting separately as a class; provided, however, that if a dividend or distribution is
paid in the form of Class A, Class B, or ClassA C common stock (or rights to acquire shares of Class A, Class B, or Class C common stock), then the holders of the Class A
common stock shall receive Class A common stock (or rights to acquire shares of ClassA A common stock), holders of Class B common stock shall receive Class B common
stock (or rights to acquire shares of Class B common stock), and holders of Class C common stock shall receive Class C common stock (or rights to acquire shares of Class C
common stock), unless a disparate dividend treatment of the shares of each such class is approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the then-outstanding
shares of Class A, Class B, and Class C common stock, each voting separately as a class.Liquidation. In the event of our liquidation, dissolution, or winding-up and upon the
completion of the distributions required with respect to any series of redeemable convertible preferred stock that may then be outstanding, our remaining assets legally
available for distribution to stockholders shall be distributed on an equal priority, pro rata basis to the holders of Class A, Class B, and Class C common stock, unless different
treatment of the shares of each such class is approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Class A, Class B, and Class C common
stock, each voting separately as a class.Change of Control Transactions. In the event of certain mergers, consolidations, business combinations, or other similar transactions,
shares of our Class A, Class B, or Class C common stock will be treated equally, identically, and will share ratably, on a per share basis, in any consideration related to such
transaction, unless (i) the only difference in the per share consideration is that any securities distributed to holders of our Class B common stock have ten times the voting
power of any securities distributed to the holders of our Class A common stock, and that any securities distributed to the holders of our ClassA C common stock have no voting
rights, or (ii) different treatment of the shares of each class is approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Class A common stock
and by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Class B common stock, each voting separately as a class. In the event that the holders of
shares of Class A common stock, ClassA B common stock, or Class C common stock are granted rights to elect to receive one of two or more alternative forms of consideration
in connection with such transaction, the foregoing will be satisfied if holders of shares of Class A, Class B, and Class C common stock are granted identical election rights,
provided that any securities that a holder of our Class B common stock may elect to receive may have ten times the voting power of securities that a holder of our Class A
common stock may elect to receive, and any securities that a holder of our Class C common stock may elect to receive may have no voting rights.Subdivisions, Combinations,
and Reclassifications. If we subdivide or combine in any manner outstanding shares of Class A, Class B, or Class C common stock, then the outstanding shares of the other
classes will be subdivided or combined in the same proportion and manner, unless different treatment of the shares of each class is approved by the affirmative vote of the
holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Class A common stock, by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Class B common
stock, and by the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Class C common stock, each voting separately as a class.Approval and Designation
RightsFor so long as the Governance Agreement remains in effect, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation requires, subject to certain limitations, that we
obtain Advancea€™s prior written approval in order to:a€¢increase the size of our board of directors if the increase would cause our board of directors to consist of more than
ten members;a€¢select a chairperson of our board of directors;a€¢issue securities other than shares of Class A common stock, Class C common stock, or securities convertible
solely into, exchangeable solely for, or containing a right to purchase solely, shares of ClassA A common stock or any other class or series of common stock with one or fewer
votes per share;a€¢establish any new class of securities or to issue securities which, in the aggregate, represent more than 10% of the voting power of the securities
beneficially owned by Advance and certain of its affiliates as of March 25, 2024;a€¢amend our amended and restated certificate of incorporation or amended and restated
bylaws if such amendment would adversely affect Advanceda€™s rights thereunder;a€¢effect or consummate a change of control transaction or any other merger,
consolidation, business combination, sale, or acquisition that changes the rights or preferences of our security holders;a€ ¢effect the liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of
our business operations;a€¢terminate, reduce, or enlarge the responsibilities of, or elect, appoint, or remove, our Chief Executive Officer; ora€¢submit to our stockholders any
proposal to effect the conversion of all then-outstanding shares of our ClassA C common stock into an equivalent number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of Class A
common stock, as set forth in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation or otherwise.Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation also requires us to
include two directors designated by Advance in the slate of nominees for election as directors at each applicable annual or special meeting of stockholders. Subject to certain
limitations, Advance has the exclusive right to replace its designees and to fill any vacancies created by reason of death, removal, or resignation of its designees.No
Preemptive or Similar RightsHolders of shares of our common stock do not have preemptive, subscription, or redemption rights. There are no redemption or sinking fund
provisions applicable to our common stock.Fully Paid and Non-assessableAll of our outstanding shares of Class A and Class B common stock are fully paid and non-
assessable.Class C Common StockOur authorized but unissued shares of Class C common stock are available for issuance with the approval of our board of directors without
stockholder approval, except as may be required by the rules of the NYSE. We have no current plans to issue any shares of Class C common stock. However, we may in the
future issue shares of Class C common stock for a variety of corporate purposes, including financings, acquisitions, investments, and equity incentives to our employees,
consultants, and directors, and the Class C common stock provides us with the flexibility to do so without diluting the existing voting power of our outstanding Class A and
Class B common stock. Because the Class C common stock carries no voting rights (except as otherwise required by law) and is not listed for trading on an exchange or
registered for sale with the SEC, shares of Class C common stock may be less liquid and less attractive to any future recipients of these shares than shares of Class A common
stock, although we may seek to list the Class C common stock for trading and register shares of Class C common stock for sale in the future. In addition, because our Class C
common stock carries no voting rights (except as otherwise required by law), if we issue shares of Class C common stock, the holders of our Class B common stock may be
able to hold significant voting control and determine the outcome of most matters submitted to a vote of our stockholders for a longer period of time than would be the case if
we issued Class A common stock rather than Class C common stock in such transactions. In addition, if we issue shares of Class C common stock in the future, such issuances
would have a dilutive effect on the economic interests of our Class A and ClassA B common stock.Preferred StockOur board of directors is authorized to direct us to issue
shares of preferred stock in one or more series without stockholder approval, unless required by law or by any stock exchange, and subject to the rights granted to Advance
pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and the Governance Agreement. Our board of directors has the discretion to determine the rights,
preferences, privileges, and restrictions, including voting rights, dividend rights, conversion rights, redemption privileges, and liquidation preferences, of each series of
preferred stock.Subject to the rights granted to Advance pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and the Governance Agreement, our board of
directors may authorize the issuance of preferred stock with voting or conversion rights that could adversely affect the voting power or other rights of the holders of Class A
common stock and Class B common stock. The issuance of preferred stock, while providing flexibility in connection with possible acquisitions and other corporate purposes,
could, among other things, have the effect of delaying, deferring, or preventing a change in control of our company that may otherwise benefit holders of our Class A, Class B,
and Class C common stock and may adversely affect the market price of the Class A common stock and the voting and other rights of the holders of our ClassA A, Class B, and
Class C common stock. We have no current plans to issue any shares of preferred stock.Voting AgreementsMr. Huffman has entered into a voting agreement with each of (i)
Advance (the d€ceAdvance Voting Agreementa€) and (ii) Tencent Cloud Europe B.V. and Jojoba Investment Limited (the &€ceTencent Voting Agreementa€ and, together with
the Advance Voting Agreement, the a€ceVoting Agreementsa€). Advance Voting AgreementPursuant to the Advance Voting Agreement, Mr. Huffman has the authority (and
irrevocable proxy) to vote shares then owned by Advance, subject to certain limitations, as follows:a€¢in favor of the director nominees designated by Advance in connection
with any election of directors, for so long as Advance has the right to designate directors pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and the
Governance Agreement;a€¢in favor of the directors nominated or identified by Mr. Huffman, in connection with any election of directors; anda€¢in Mr. Huffmana€™s sole
discretion, on all matters submitted to a vote of our stockholders, except for (i) the election of directors, as set forth above, (ii) any action terminating, reducing, or enlarging
the responsibilities of, or electing, appointing, or removing Mr. Huffman as Chief Executive Officer, and (iii)A certain matters requiring the consent of Advance, as described
below.Prior to Advance exercising any approval rights it may have under our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, amended and restated bylaws, or otherwise,
Advance and Mr. Huffman shall use reasonable efforts to mutually agree upon how Advance shall exercise such right. If, after reasonable efforts, Mr. Huffman and Advance
cannot agree, Advance shall be permitted to exercise its approval rights in its sole discretion. However, if an agreement is reached and such matter is submitted to a vote of
our stockholders, Mr. Huffman has the right to vote all of the shares subject to the Advance Voting Agreement in a manner consistent with how Advance and Mr.A Huffman
have mutually agreed the vote for such matter shall be cast. The matters subject to the mutual agreement of Advance and Mr. Huffman are as follows:a€¢the establishment of
any new class of securities or the issuance of securities which, in the aggregate, represent more than 10% of the voting power of the securities beneficially owned by Advance
and certain of its affiliates as of March 25, 2024; provided, however, that Advancea€™ s separate approval will not be necessary to issue securities (i) to our employees
pursuant to a customary employee equity plan, employee stock purchase plan, or similar stock purchase program, or (ii) to compensate Mr. Huffman, so long as any such
issuance to our employees or to Mr. Huffman is approved by, our compensation and talent committee;a€¢any amendment to our amended and restated certificate of
incorporation or amended and restated bylaws that would adversely impact Advancea€™s rights thereunder;a€¢a change of control transaction or any other merger,
consolidation, business combination, sale, or acquisition that changes the rights or preferences of our security holders;a€¢the liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of our
business operations;a€¢submission to our stockholders of any proposal to effect the conversion of all then-outstanding shares of our Class C common stock into an equivalent
number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of Class A common stock, as set forth in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation or otherwise; anda€¢any other
matters that require Advancea€™s approval as set forth in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, amended and restated bylaws, and/or any agreement among
our stockholders.In the event that Advance transfers, assigns, sells, pledges, or otherwise disposes of any shares, each transferee, assignee, or other recipient shall receive
such shares subject in all respects to the terms of the Advance Voting Agreement, unless such transfer results in the conversion of shares of Class B common stock into Class
A common stock in accordance with the terms of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation.Additionally, in the event that prior to the termination of the Advance
Voting Agreement, Mr.A Huffman provides explicit written notice that he will not vote the shares subject to the Advance Voting Agreement, or that Advance is permitted to
vote the shares subject to the Advance Voting Agreement, Advance will be entitled to vote any of the shares subject to the Advance Voting Agreement in its sole discretion.The
Advance Voting Agreement will terminate upon the earliest to occur of: (i) the date on which Mr.A Huffman is no longer our Chief Executive Officer; (ii) the completion of the
liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of our business operations, or upon a change of control; (iii) the execution of a general assignment for the benefit of our creditors or the
appointment of a receiver or trustee to take possession of our property or assets; (iv) the date when (a) Advance and certain of its affiliates cease to beneficially own at least
21,103,637 shares of our common stock, and (b) the then-outstanding shares of our Class B common stock, in the aggregate, represents less than 7.5% of the aggregate of the
then-outstanding shares of our Class A and Class B common stock; or (v)A March 19, 2034 (the 4€ceExpiration Datea€); provided, however, that the Expiration Date shall be
automatically extended for one-year terms unless either Advance or Mr. Huffman provide notice of their intent to have the Advance Voting Agreement expire, at least sixty
days prior to the next applicable Expiration Date. We are not a party to the Advance Voting Agreement. Tencent Voting AgreementPursuant to the Tencent Voting Agreement,
for so long Mr. Huffman is our Chief Executive Officer, Mr.A Huffman has the authority (and irrevocable proxy) to vote shares then owned by affiliates of Tencent Holdings
Limited (d€eTencenta€), in Mr. Huffmana€™s sole discretion, on all matters submitted to a vote of our stockholders, except for:a€¢any amendment to our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation or amended and restated bylaws that would (i) impose any restrictions or amend any existing restrictions on transfer applicable to our
equity securities owned by Tencent and its permitted transferees, (ii) amend or waive any dividend rights applicable to our equity securities owned by Tencent and its
permitted transferees, (iii) amend or waive any liquidation rights applicable to our equity securities owned by Tencent and its permitted transferees, or (iv)A amend or waive
any voting rights applicable to our equity securities owned by Tencent and its permitted transferees;a€¢a change of control transaction or any other merger, consolidation,
business combination, sale, or acquisition that changes Tencenta€™ s rights or preferences;a€¢the liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of our business operations;a€¢any



proposal to effect the conversion of all then-outstanding shares of our Class B common stock into an equivalent number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of our Class A
common stock, as set forth in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation or otherwise; anda€¢any transaction with any of our directors or officers, or any associate
of any director or officer, or in which any of our directors or officers has a material financial interest, which shall be deemed to exclude (i) any benefits plans or equity
compensation plans or stock plans which are not exclusively or primarily for the benefit of directors or officers or (ii) interest resulting solely from such directora€™s or
officera€™s pro rata interest as a holder of our equity securities.In the event that Tencent transfers, assigns, sells, pledges, or otherwise disposes of any shares, such shares
shall, if transferred to a permitted transferee, remain subject in all respects to the terms of the Tencent Voting Agreement and, if not to a permitted transferee, shall no longer
be subject to the terms and conditions of the Tencent Voting Agreement.Additionally, in the event that prior to the termination of the Tencent Voting Agreement,

Mr.A Huffman provides explicit written notice that he will not vote the shares subject to the Tencent Voting Agreement, or that Tencent is permitted to vote the shares subject
to the Tencent Voting Agreement, Tencent will be entitled to vote any of the shares subject to the Tencent Voting Agreement in its sole and absolute discretion.The Tencent
Voting Agreement will terminate upon the earliest to occur of: (i) the completion of the liquidation, dissolution, or winding up of our business operations, or upon a change of
control; (ii)A the execution of a general assignment for the benefit of our creditors or the appointment of a receiver or trustee to take possession of our property or assets; or
(iii) the date when Tencent and certain of its affiliates cease to beneficially own at least 4.99% of the total votes of our outstanding securities entitled to vote.In the event Mr.
Huffman is no longer our Chief Executive Officer prior to the termination of the Tencent Voting Agreement, a member of our board of directors, as appointed by our board of
directors, will continue to have the voting rights granted to Mr. Huffman under the Tencent Voting Agreement. Such director will be required to vote shares subject to the
Tencent Voting Agreement as directed by our board of directors. We are a party to the Tencent Voting Agreement. Registration RightsCertain holders of our common stock
are entitled to rights with respect to the registration of their shares under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the a&€ceSecurities Acta€). These registration rights are
contained in the Investorsa€™ Rights Agreement, which was entered into in connection with our convertible preferred stock financings. The registration rights set forth in the
Amended and Restated Investorsa€™ Rights Agreement terminate upon the earlier to occur of (i) March 25, 2029, (ii) five years after a Reporting Event (as defined in the
Investorsa€™ Rights Agreement), (iii) with respect to any particular stockholder, the earliest of when such stockholder is able to sell all of its shares pursuant to Rule 144(b)
(1)(i) of the Securities Act or holds 1% or less of our outstanding common stock and is able to sell all of its Registrable Securities (as defined in the Investorsa€™ Rights
Agreement) pursuant to Rule 144 of the Securities Act during any three month period, or (iv) after the consummation of a Liquidation Event (as defined in our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation in effect as of immediately prior to the completion of our initial public offering). We will pay the registration expenses (other than any
underwriting discounts and selling commissions) of the holders of the shares registered for sale pursuant to the registrations described below, including the reasonable fees of
one counsel for the selling holders not to exceed $25,000. However, we will not be required to bear the expenses in connection with the exercise of the demand registration
rights of a registration if the request is subsequently withdrawn at the request of the selling stockholders holding a majority of the voting power of the securities to be
registered. In an underwritten public offering, the underwriters have the right, subject to specified conditions, to limit the number of shares such holders may include.Demand
Registration RightsCertain holders of our common stock are entitled to demand registration rights. At any time beginning on September 25, 2024, the holders of at least 50%
of the voting power of the Registrable Securities then outstanding can request that we register the offer and sale of their shares on a registration statement on Form S-1 if we
are eligible to file a registration statement on Form S-1 so long as the request covers at least that number of shares with an anticipated aggregate offering price of at least
$30.0 million. We are obligated to effect only two such registrations. If we determine that it would be seriously detrimental to us and our stockholders to effect such a demand
registration, we have the right to defer such registration, not more than twice in any 12-month period, for a period of up to 90 days. In addition, we will not be required to
effect a demand registration during the period beginning 60 days prior to our good faith estimate of the date of the filing of and ending on a date 180 days following the
effectiveness of a registration statement relating to a registration initiated by us.Form S-3 Registration RightsCertain holders of our common stock are entitled to certain
Form S-3 registration rights. The holders of at least 30% of the voting power of the Registrable Securities then outstanding may make a written request that we register the
offer and sale of their shares on a registration statement on Form S-3 if we are eligible to file a registration statement on Form S-3 so long as the request covers at least that
number of shares with an anticipated offering price of at least $15.0 million, net of any underwriting discounts and commissions. These stockholders may make an unlimited
number of requests for registration on Form S-3; however, we will not be required to effect a registration on Form S-3 if we have effected two such registrations pursuant to
such requests within the 12-month period preceding the date of the request. In addition, if we determine that it would be seriously detrimental to us and our stockholders to
effect such a registration, we have the right to defer such registration, not more than twice in any 12-month period, for a period of up to 90 days. Lastly, we will not be
required to effect a demand registration during the period beginning 30 days prior to our good faith estimate of the date of the filing of and ending on a date 90 days following
the effectiveness of a registration statement relating to a registration initiated by us.Piggyback Registration RightsIf we propose to register any of our securities under the
Securities Act, either for our own account or for the account of other security holders, certain holders of our common stock are entitled to certain a€cepiggybacka€
registration rights allowing the holders to include their shares in such registration, subject to certain marketing and other limitations, which, in the case of an underwritten
offering, will be in the sole discretion of the underwriters. As a result, whenever we propose to file a registration statement under the Securities Act, other than with respect
to (i) a demand registration, (ii) a registration related solely to a company stock plan, (iii) a registration relating to a corporate reorganization or transaction under Rule 145 of
the Securities Act, (iv) a registration on any form that does not include substantially the same information as would be required to be included in a registration statement
covering the public offering of our common stock, or (v) a registration in which the only common stock being registered is common stock issuable upon the conversion of debt
securities that are also being registered, the holders of these shares are entitled to notice of the registration and have the right, subject to certain limitations, to include their
shares in the registration.Anti-Takeover ProvisionsCertain provisions of the Delaware General Corporation Law, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, and
our amended and restated bylaws, which are summarized below, may have the effect of delaying, deferring, or discouraging another person from acquiring control of us. They
are also designed, in part, to encourage persons seeking to acquire control of us to negotiate first with our board of directors. We believe that the benefits of increased
protection of our potential ability to negotiate with an unfriendly or unsolicited acquirer outweigh the disadvantages of discouraging a proposal to acquire us because
negotiation of these proposals could result in an improvement of their terms.Delaware LawWe have opted out of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, but
our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that the restrictions contained in Section 203 will apply to us immediately following the time at which all of the
following conditions exist (if ever): (i) Section 203 by its terms would, but for the provision of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, apply to us; (ii)A Advance
and its affiliates and associates beneficially own less than 15% of the voting power of the then-outstanding shares of our common stock, and (iii) the Governance Agreement
has terminated in accordance with its terms. If these conditions all exist, we will thereafter be governed by Section 203, which prohibits a Delaware corporation from
engaging in any business combination with any interested stockholder for a period of three years after the date that such stockholder became an interested stockholder, with
the following exceptions:a€¢the business combination or transaction which resulted in the stockholder becoming an interested stockholder was approved by the board of
directors prior to the time that the stockholder became an interested stockholder;a€¢upon consummation of the transaction that resulted in the stockholder becoming an
interested stockholder, the interested stockholder owned at least 85% of the voting stock of the corporation outstanding at the time the transaction commenced, excluding
shares owned by directors who are also officers of the corporation and shares owned by employee stock plans in which employee participants do not have the right to
determine confidentially whether shares held subject to the plan will be tendered in a tender or exchange offer; ora€¢at or subsequent to the time the stockholder became an
interested stockholder, the business combination was approved by the board of directors and authorized at an annual or special meeting of the stockholders, and not by
written consent, by the affirmative vote of at least 66 2/3% of the outstanding voting stock which is not owned by the interested stockholder.In general, Section 203 defines a
a€mebusiness combinationa€ to include mergers, asset sales, and other transactions resulting in financial benefit to a stockholder and an a€ceinterested stockholdera€ as a
person who, together with affiliates and associates, owns, or within three years did own, 15% or more of the corporationa€™s outstanding voting stock.Moreover, our
amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that, unless and until all of the conditions discussed above exist (at which point we will thereafter be governed by
Section 203), we will be governed by provisions substantially similar to Section 203. These provisions will likewise prohibit us from engaging in any business combination with
any interested stockholder for a period of three years after the date that such stockholder became an interested stockholder, subject to the exceptions outlined above, except
that neither Advance nor its affiliates and associates will be deemed to be an &€ceinterested stockholdera€ for these purposes. The application of these provisions, or the
potential application of Section 203 to us in the future, may have the effect of delaying, deferring, or preventing changes in control of our company.Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation and Amended and Restated BylawsOur amended and restated certificate of incorporation and our amended and restated bylaws include a number
of provisions that could deter hostile takeovers or delay or prevent changes in control of our board of directors or management team, including the following:Multi-Class
StockAs described above in the subsection titled &€ceCommon Stocka€”Voting Rights,a€ our amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides for a multi-class
common stock structure, which provides holders of our ClassA B common stock with significant influence over matters requiring stockholder approval, including the election
of directors and significant corporate transactions, such as a merger or other sale of our company or its assets.Board of Directors VacanciesOur amended and restated
certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws authorize only our board of directors to fill vacant directorships, including newly created seats, subject to the
rights granted to Advance pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and the Governance Agreement. In addition, the number of directors constituting
our board of directors is permitted to be set only by a resolution adopted by a majority vote of our entire board of directors, except that we are required to obtain
Advancea€™s prior written approval to increase the size of our board of directors if such increase would cause our board of directors to consist of more than ten members.
These provisions prevent a stockholder from increasing the size of our board of directors and then gaining control of our board of directors by filling the resulting vacancies
with its own nominees. This will make it more difficult to change the composition of our board of directors and will promote continuity of management.Stockholder Action;
Special Meeting of StockholdersOur amended and restated certificate of incorporation provides that, at any time when the holders of our Class B common stock hold less than
30% of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding shares of our capital stock, our stockholders may not take action by written consent, but may only take action at annual
or special meetings of our stockholders. As a result, once the holders of our Class B common stock hold less than 30% of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding shares
of our capital stock, a holder controlling a majority of our capital stock will not be able to amend our amended and restated bylaws or remove directors without holding a
meeting of our stockholders called in accordance with our amended and restated bylaws. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation further provides that special
meetings of our stockholders may be called only by the chairperson of our board of directors (if any), our Chief Executive Officer, our board of directors pursuant to a
resolution adopted by a majority of our board of directors, or, at such time the holders of shares of our Class B common stock beneficially own, in the aggregate, at least 30%
of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding shares of our capital stock, our Secretary, following his or her receipt of one or more written demands to call a special
meeting from stockholders of record as of the applicable record date who hold, in the aggregate, at least 30% of the voting power of all of the then-outstanding shares of our
capital stock. These provisions might delay the ability of our stockholders to force consideration of a proposal or for stockholders controlling a majority of our capital stock to
take any action, including the removal of directors.Advance Notice Requirements for Stockholder Proposals and Director NominationsOur amended and restated bylaws
provide advance notice procedures for stockholders seeking to bring business before annual or special meetings of stockholders or to nominate candidates for election as
directors at annual or special meetings of stockholders. Our amended and restated bylaws also specify certain requirements regarding the form and content of a
stockholdera€™s notice. These provisions might preclude our stockholders from bringing matters before annual or special meetings of stockholders or from making
nominations for directors at annual or special meetings of stockholders if the proper procedures are not followed. We expect that these provisions may also discourage or
deter a potential acquirer from conducting a solicitation of proxies to elect the acquirera€™s own slate of directors or otherwise attempting to obtain control of our
company.No Cumulative VotingThe Delaware General Corporation Law provides that stockholders are not entitled to cumulate votes in the election of directors unless a
corporationd€™s certificate of incorporation provides otherwise. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation does not provide for cumulative voting.Amendment of
Charter and Bylaws ProvisionsAmendments to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation require the approval of a majority of the outstanding voting power of our
common stock, except where a class vote would be required by applicable law. Our amended and restated bylaws also provide that approval of stockholders holding at least
66 2/3% of our outstanding voting power voting as a single class is required for stockholders to amend or adopt any provision of our bylaws. Pursuant to our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation and the Governance Agreement, we also require Advancea€™s prior written approval or consent to implement any amendment to our
amended and restated certificate of incorporation or amended and restated bylaws that would adversely affect Advancea€™s rights thereunder.Issuance of Undesignated
Preferred StockSubject to the rights granted to Advance pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and the Governance Agreement, our board of is
authorized to direct us to issue, without stockholder approval, unless required by law or by any stock exchange, up to 100,000,000 shares of undesignated preferred stock



with rights and preferences, including voting rights, designated from time to time by our board of directors. The existence of authorized but unissued shares of preferred
stock enable our board of directors to render more difficult or to discourage an attempt to obtain control of us by means of a merger, tender offer, proxy contest, or other
means.Choice of ForumOur amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws provide that, unless we consent in writing to the selection of
an alternative forum, the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware will be the exclusive forum for the following types of actions or proceedings under Delaware statutory or
common law: (i) any derivative action, suit, or proceeding brought on our behalf; (ii) any action, suit, or proceeding asserting a claim of breach of fiduciary duty owed by any
of our directors, officers, or stockholders to us or to our stockholders; (iii) any action, suit, or proceeding asserting a claim against us arising pursuant to the Delaware
General Corporation Law, our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, or our amended and restated bylaws (as either may be amended from time to time); or

(iv)A any action, suit, or proceeding asserting a claim against us that is governed by the internal affairs doctrine. As a result, any action brought by any of our stockholders
with regard to any of these matters will need to be filed in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware and cannot be filed in any other jurisdiction; provided that, the
exclusive forum provision will not apply to suits brought to enforce any liability or duty created by the Exchange Act or any other claim for which the federal courts have
exclusive jurisdiction; and provided further that, if and only if the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware dismisses any such action for lack of subject matter jurisdiction,
such action may be brought in another state or federal court sitting in the State of Delaware. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated
bylaws also provide that the federal district courts of the United States of America will be the exclusive forum for the resolution of any complaint asserting a cause or causes
of action against us or any defendant arising under the Securities Act. Nothing in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws
preclude stockholders that assert claims under the Exchange Act from bringing such claims in state or federal court, subject to applicable law.If any action, the subject matter
of which is within the scope described above, is filed in a court other than a court located within the State of Delaware (a a&€ceForeign Actiona€), in the name of any
stockholder, such stockholder shall be deemed to have consented to the personal jurisdiction of the state and federal courts located within the State of Delaware in connection
with any action brought in any such court to enforce the applicable provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws and
having service of process made upon such stockholder in any such action by service upon such stockholdera€™s counsel in the Foreign Action as agent for such stockholder.
Although our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws contain the choice of forum provision described above, it is possible that a
court could find that such a provision is inapplicable for a particular claim or action or that such provision is unenforceable.This choice of forum provision may limit a
stockholdera€™s ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that the stockholder finds favorable for disputes with us or any of our directors, officers, other employees, or
stockholders, which may discourage lawsuits with respect to such claims or make such lawsuits more costly for stockholders, although our stockholders will not be deemed to
have waived our compliance with federal securities laws and the rules and regulations thereunder.ListingOur Class A common stock is listed on the NYSE under the symbol
a€eRDDT.a€Transfer Agent and RegistrarThe transfer agent and registrar for our Class A and Class B common stock is Computershare Trust Company, N.A. The address of
the transfer agent and registrar is 250 Royall Street, Canton, Massachusetts 02021.DocumentExhibit 19.1Reddit, Inc.Insider Trading Compliance Policy and Procedures(Last
Updated: February 11, 2025)Federal and state laws prohibit trading in the securities of a company while in possession of material nonpublic information and in breach of a
duty of trust or confidence. These laws also prohibit anyone who is aware of material nonpublic information from providing this information to others who may trade. Violating
such laws can undermine investor trust, harm the reputation and integrity of Reddit, Inc. (together with its subsidiaries, &€ceReddita€) and result in dismissal or even serious
criminal and civil charges against the individual and Reddit. Reddit reserves the right to take disciplinary or other measure(s) it determines to be appropriate in any particular
situation, including disclosure of wrongdoing to governmental authorities.Persons Covered and Administration of PolicyThis Insider Trading Compliance Policy and
Procedures (this a€cePolicya€) applies to all officers, directors, and employees of Reddit. For purposes of this Policy, a€ceofficersa€ refer to those individuals who meet the
definition of &€ceofficera€ under Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (as amended, the &€ceExchange Acta€). Individuals subject to this Policy are also
responsible for ensuring that members of their household comply with this Policy (e.g. spouses, domestic partners, children).This Policy also applies to any entities controlled
by individuals subject to the Policy, including any corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, or trusts, and transactions by these entities should be treated for the
purposes of this Policy as if they were for the individuala€™s own account. However, the sections d€ceBlackout Periods,a€ a€oePost-Termination Transactions,a€ and
a€ceTransactions Prohibited at all Timesa€ of this Policy will not apply to any entity that engages in the investment in securities in the ordinary course of its business
(including, but not limited to, any investment fund, partnership, or family office) if such entity has established its own written insider trading controls and procedures in
compliance with applicable securities law. Reddit may determine that this Policy applies to additional persons with access to material nonpublic information, such as
contractors or consultants. Officers, directors, and employees, together with any other person designated as being subject to this Policy by the Compliance Officer are
referred to collectively as 4&€oeCovered Persons.a€ For purposes of this policy, &€ceCompliance Officera€ means the Chief Legal Officer (or if no such employee at Reddit has
that title, or in the absence of the Chief Legal Officer, the most senior in-house attorney of Reddit) or his or her designee.Questions regarding the Policy should be directed to
the Compliance Officer, who is responsible for the administration of this Policy, at ###. Actions taken by Reddit do not constitute legal advice, nor do they insulate you from
the consequences of noncompliance with this Policy.Policy StatementNo Purchase or Sale of any Reddit Security while in Possession of MNPINo Covered Person shall
purchase or sell any type of security of Reddit while in possession of material nonpublic information (4€ceMNPI&€). In addition, if a Covered Person is in possession of MNPI
about other publicly-traded companies obtained in the course of the Covered Persona€™s employment or service with Reddit, such as suppliers, partners, customers,
competitors, or potential acquisition targets, the Covered Person may not trade in such other companiesa€™ securities until the information becomes public or is no longer
material. Further, no Covered Person shall purchase or sell any security of any other company, including another company in Redditd€™s industry, while in possession of
MNPI about that other company or MNPI about Reddit that is material to such other company if such information is obtained in the course of the Covered Persond€™s
employment or service with Reddit, provided, however, this Policy will also not apply to purchases and sales of securities of any other company in which a third party has
discretionary authority to execute such purchases and sales, outside the control of the Covered Person, so long as such third party does not possess any MNPI relating to
Reddit.No Communication of MNPI Other than on a Need-to-Know BasisIn addition, Covered Persons shall not directly or indirectly communicate MNPI to anyone outside
Reddit (except in accordance with Reddita€™ s policies regarding confidential information) or to anyone within Reddit other than on a 4€ceneed-to-knowa€

basis.TippingA A A A Covered Persons shall not give trading advice about Reddit unless the advice is to tell someone not to trade our securities because the trade would
violate this Policy or the law.Definitions of Securities, Purchase & Sale a€ceSecuritiesa€ includes stocks, bonds, notes, debentures, options, warrants, equity and other
convertible securities, as well as derivative instrumentsa€cePurchasea€ and a€cesalea€ are defined broadly under the federal securities law. a€cePurchasea€ includes not only
the actual purchase of a security, but also any contract to purchase or otherwise acquire a security. &€ceSalea€ includes not only the actual sale of a security, but also any
contract to sell or otherwise dispose of a security. These definitions extend to a broad range of transactions, including conventional cash-for-stock transactions, conversions,
the exercise of stock options, transfers, gifts, and acquisitions and exercises of warrants or puts, calls, pledging, and margin loans, or other derivative securities.The laws and
regulations concerning insider trading are complex, and Covered Persons are encouraged to seek guidance from the Compliance Officer at ### prior to considering a
transaction in Reddit securities.Blackout PeriodsNo Purchase or Sale of Reddit Securities During the Pre-Earnings Blackout PeriodNo director, officer, or employee listed on
Schedule I, as amended from time to time, (as well as any individual or entity covered by this Policy by virtue of their relationship to such director, officer, or employee) shall
purchase or sell any Reddit security during the period beginning on the 15th calendar day of the last month of any fiscal quarter of Reddit and ending after completion of the
second full trading day after the public release of earnings data for such fiscal quarter or during any other trading suspension period declared by Reddit, such period, a
a€meblackout period.a€ A a€cetrading daya€ is a day on which U.S. national stock exchanges are open for trading. If, for example, Reddit were to make an announcement on
Monday prior to 9:30 a.m. Eastern Time, then the blackout period would terminate after the close of trading on Tuesday. If an announcement were made on Monday after 9:30
a.m. Eastern Time, then the blackout period would terminate after the close of trading on Wednesday. If you have any question as to whether information is publicly available,
please direct an inquiry to the Compliance Officer at ###.Exceptions to the Blackout PeriodThe above prohibitions do not apply to:a€¢purchases of Reddit securities from
Reddit, or sales of Reddit securities to Reddit;4€¢exercises of stock options or other equity awards or the surrender of shares to Reddit in payment of the exercise price or in
satisfaction of any tax withholding obligations in a manner permitted by the applicable equity award agreement, or vesting of equity-based awards, in each case, that do not
involve a market sale of Reddit securities. The a€cecashless exercisea€ of a Reddit stock option or other equity award through a broker does involve a market sale of Reddit
securities, and therefore would not qualify under this exception;a€¢Gifts of Reddit securities, unless the individual making the gift knows, or is reckless in not knowing, the
recipient intends to sell the securities while the donor is in possession of MNPI about Reddit; ora€¢purchases of Reddit stock through periodic, automatic payroll
contributions, or making election changes, under our Employee Stock Purchase Plan. However, any sales of stock acquired under the ESPP are subject to trading restrictions
under this Policy;a€¢settling RSUs pursuant to a net settlement or a &€cesale to covera€ for non-discretionary, automatic tax withholdings initiated and approved by Reddit for
the payment of taxes upon the vesting of RSUs; ora€¢purchases or sales of Reddit securities made pursuant to a plan adopted to comply with the Exchange Act Rule 10b5-1
(&€ceRule 10b5-14€).Exceptions to the blackout period policy may be approved only by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors or the Chief Legal Officer, in the case of
exceptions for directors, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors (or if the director is a member of the Audit Committee, the Board of the Directors).Special Blackout
PeriodsThe Compliance Officer may recommend that directors, officers, employees, or others suspend trading in Reddit securities outside of the regular pre-earnings blackout
period (such period, a &€ceSpecial Blackout Perioda€), because of developments that have not yet been disclosed to the public. Individuals who are subject to a Special
Blackout Period will be notified when this Special Blackout Period closes and opens. Subject to the exceptions noted above, all of those individuals affected should not trade in
Reddit securities while the Special Blackout Period is in effect, and should not disclose to others that the Special Blackout Period exists.Preclearance of Trades by Directors,
Officers, and EmployeesAll transactions in Reddit securities by directors, officers, and employees listed on Schedule II (each, a &€ePreclearance Persona€) must be
precleared by the Compliance Oi—fcer (or the Chief Financial Officer for transactions by the Compliance Officer). Preclearance should not be understood to represent legal
advice by Reddit that a proposed transaction complies with the law.A request for preclearance must be in writing to ###, should be made at least two business days in
advance of the proposed transaction, and should include the identity of the Preclearance Person, a description of the proposed transaction, the proposed date of the
transaction, and the number of shares or other securities involved. In addition, the Preclearance Person must execute a certification that he or she is not aware of MNPI about
Reddit. The Compliance Oi—fcer, or the Chief Financial Officer for transactions by the Compliance Oi—fcer, shall have sole discretion to decide whether to clear any
contemplated transaction. All trades that are precleared must be ei—€ected within i—ve business days of receipt of the preclearance. A precleared trade (or any portion of a
precleared trade) that has not been ei—€ected during the five business day period must be submitted for preclearance determination again prior to execution.
Notwithstanding receipt of preclearance, if the Preclearance Person becomes aware of MNPI, or becomes subject to a blackout period before the transaction is effected, the
transaction may not be completed. Transactions under a previously established Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plan that has been preapproved in accordance with this Policy are not
subject to further preclearance.None of Reddit, the Compliance Officer, Chief Financial Officer, or Reddita€™s other employees will have any liability for any delay in
reviewing, or refusal of, a request for preclearance.What is Material Nonpublic Information?Information is considered a€cemateriala€ if there is a substantial likelihood that a
reasonable investor would consider it important in making a decision to buy, sell, or hold a security, or if the information is likely to have a significant effect on the market
price of the security. Material information can be positive or negative, and can relate to virtually any aspect of a companya€™s business or to any type of security, debt, or
equity. Also, information that something is likely to happen in the futurea€”or even just that it may happena€”could be deemed material. Examples of material information may
include (but are not limited to) information about:a€¢corporate earnings or earnings forecasts;a€¢significant business trends or metrics;a€¢changes in business strategy;a€
¢possible mergers, acquisitions, tender offers, or dispositions;a€¢gain or loss of significant customers;a€¢major new products or product developments;a€¢important business
developments, such as major contract negotiations, awards or cancellations, or regarding strategic partners such as ad agencies or cloud vendors;a€¢management or control
changes;a€¢significant borrowing or financing developments including pending public sales or offerings of debt or equity securities;a€¢defaults on borrowings;a€¢stock splits
or dividends;a€¢bankruptcies;a€¢cybersecurity or data security incidents; anda€¢significant litigation or regulatory actions.Information is &€cenonpublica€ if it is not
available to the general public. In order for information to be considered a€cepublic,a€ it must be widely disseminated in a manner that makes it generally available to
investors in a Regulation FD-compliant method, such as through a press release, a filing with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the &€0eSECa€) or a Regulation
FD-compliant conference call. The Compliance Officer shall have sole discretion to decide whether information is public for purposes of this Policy.The circulation of rumors,
even if accurate and reported in the media, does not constitute public dissemination. In addition, even after a public announcement, a reasonable period of time may need to
lapse in order for the market to react to the information. Generally, the passage of two full trading days following release of the information to the public, is a reasonable
waiting period before such information is deemed to be public.Post-Termination TransactionsIf an individual is in possession of MNPI when the individuala€™ s employment or



service with Reddit terminates, the individual may not trade in Reddit securities until that information has become public or is no longer material.Transactions Prohibited at
all TimesReddit has determined that there is a heightened legal risk and the appearance of improper or inappropriate conduct if persons subject to this Policy engage in
certain types of transactions. Therefore, Covered Persons shall comply with the following policies with respect to certain transactions in Reddit securities.Short SalesShort
sales of Reddit securities are prohibited by this Policy. Short sales of Reddit securities, or sales of shares that the insider does not own at the time of sale, or sales of shares
against which the insider does not deliver the shares within 20 days after the sale, evidence an expectation on the part of the seller that the securities will decline in value,
and, therefore, signal to the market that the seller has no confidence in Reddit or its short-term prospects. In addition, Section 16(c) of the Exchange Act prohibits Section 16
reporting persons (i.e., directors, officers, and Reddita€™s 10% stockholders) from making short sales of Reddit equity securities.OptionsTransactions in puts, calls, or other
derivative securities involving Reddit equity securities, on an exchange, on an over-the-counter market, or in any other organized market, are prohibited by this Policy. A
transaction in options is, in effect, a bet on the short-term movement of Redditd€™s stock and, therefore, creates the appearance that a Covered Person is trading based on
MNPI. Transactions in options, whether traded on an exchange, on an over-the-counter market, or any other organized market, also may focus a Covered Personda€™s
attention on short-term performance at the expense of Reddita€™ s long-term objectives.Hedging TransactionsHedging transactions involving Reddit securities, such as
prepaid variable forward contracts, equity swaps, collars, and exchange funds, or other transactions that hedge or offset, or are designed to hedge or offset, any decrease in
the market value of Reddit equity securities, are prohibited by this Policy. Such transactions allow the Covered Person to continue to own the covered securities, but without
the full risks and rewards of ownership. When that occurs, the Covered Person may no longer have the same objectives as Reddita€™s other stockholders.Margin Accounts
and PledgingIndividuals are prohibited from pledging Reddit securities as collateral for a loan, purchasing Reddit securities on margin (i.e., borrowing money to purchase the
securities), or placing Reddit securities in a margin account. This prohibition does not apply to cashless exercises of stock options under Reddita€™ s equity plans, nor to
pledges that were in place prior to the initial effective date of this Policy.Partnership DistributionsNothing in this Policy is intended to limit the ability of an investment fund,
venture capital partnership, or other similar entity with which a director is affiliated to distribute Reddit securities to its partners, members, or other similar persons. It is the
responsibility of each affected director and the affiliated entity, in consultation with their own counsel (as appropriate), to determine the timing of any distributions, based on
all relevant facts and circumstances, and applicable securities laws.Rule 10b5-1 Trading PlansThe trading restrictions set forth in this Policy, other than those transactions
described under 4€ceProhibited Transactions,a€ do not apply to transactions under a previously established contract, plan or instruction to trade in Reddit securities entered
into in accordance with Rule 10b5-1 (a 4€ceTrading Plana€) that:a€¢has been submitted to and preapproved by the Compliance Officer in writing;a€¢includes a a€ceCooling
Off Perioda€ for &—|Section 16 reporting persons that extends to the later of 90 days after adoption or modification of a Trading Plan, or two business days after filing the
Form 10-K or Form 10-Q covering the fiscal quarter in which the Trading Plan was adopted, up to a maximum of 120 days; anda—|for persons other than Section 16 reporting
persons and Reddit, that extends 30 days after adoption or modification of a Trading Plan;a€¢for Section 16 reporting persons, includes a representation in the Trading Plan
that the Section 16 reporting person is (1) not aware of any MNPI about Reddit or its securities; and (2) adopting the Trading Plan in good faith and not as part of a plan or
scheme to evade Rule 10b-5;4€¢has been entered into in good faith at a time when the individual was not in possession of MNPI about Reddit and not otherwise in a blackout
period, and the person who entered into the Trading Plan has acted in good faith with respect to the Trading Plan; &€¢either (1) specifies the amounts, prices, and dates of all
transactions under the Trading Plan; or (2) provides a written formula, algorithm, or computer program for determining the amount, price, and date of the transactions, and
(3) prohibits the individual from exercising any subsequent influence over the transactions; anda€¢complies with all other applicable requirements of Rule 10b5-1.The
Compliance Officer may impose such other conditions on the implementation and operation of the Trading Plan as the Compliance Officer deems necessary or advisable.
Individuals may not adopt more than one Trading Plan at a time except under the limited circumstances permitted by Rule 10b5-1 and subject to preapproval by the
Compliance Officer.An individual may only modify a Trading Plan outside of a blackout period and, in any event, when the individual does not possess MNPI. Modifications to
and terminations of a Trading Plan are subject to preapproval by the Compliance Officer and modifications of a Trading Plan that change the amount, price, or timing of the
purchase or sale of the securities underlying a Trading Plan will trigger a new Cooling Oi—€ Period.Reddit reserves the right to publicly disclose, announce, or respond to
inquiries from the media regarding the adoption, modification, or termination of a Trading Plan and non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangements, or the execution of transactions
made under a Trading Plan. Reddit also reserves the right from time to time to suspend, discontinue, or otherwise prohibit transactions under a Trading Plan if the
Compliance Officer or the Board of Directors, in its discretion, determines that such suspension, discontinuation, or other prohibition is in the best interests of
Reddit.Compliance of a Trading Plan with the terms of Rule 10b5-1 and the execution of transactions pursuant to the Trading Plan are the sole responsibility of the person
initiating the Trading Plan, and none of Reddit, the Compliance Officer, or Reddita€™s other employees assumes any liability for any delay in reviewing and/or refusing to
approve a Trading Plan submitted for approval, nor the legality or consequences relating to a person entering into, informing Reddit of, or trading under, a Trading
Plan.Interpretation, Amendment, and Implementation of this PolicyThe Compliance Officer shall have the authority to interpret and update this Policy and all related policies
and procedures. In particular, such interpretations and updates of this Policy, as authorized by the Compliance Officer, may include amendments to or departures from the
terms of this Policy, to the extent consistent with the general purpose of this Policy and applicable securities laws.Actions taken by Reddit, the Compliance Officer, or any
other Reddit personnel do not constitute legal advice, nor do they insulate you from the consequences of noncompliance with this Policy or with securities laws.Certification of
ComplianceAll directors, officers, employees, and others subject to this Policy may be asked periodically to certify their compliance with the terms and provisions of this
Policy.Trading by RedditWe will not transact in our securities unless in compliance with applicable U.S. securities laws, rules and regulations and applicable New York Stock
Exchange listing standards.Schedule IIndividuals Subject to Quarterly Trading BlackoutsChief Executive Officer and PresidentMembers of the Board of Directors of Reddit,
Inc. Chief Operating OfficerChief Financial Officer Chief Technology Officer Chief Legal OfficerChief Accounting OfficerAll other employees of RedditSchedule IIIndividuals
Subject to Preclearance RequirementChief Executive Officer and PresidentMembers of the Board of Directors of Reddit, Inc. Chief Operating OfficerChief Financial Officer
Chief Technology Officer Chief Legal OfficerChief Product Officer Chief People OfficerChief Marketing & Consumer Experience OfficerChief Revenue OfficerExecutive
Assistant to the Chief Executive OfficerChief of Staff to the Chief Executive OfficerEVP, Business Marketing and Growth EVP, Ads MonetizationAll employees with the title of
Vice President or equivalentOther persons designated by the Chief Legal OfficerDocumentExhibit 21.1Subsidiaries of Reddit, Inc.*Name of SubsidiaryA A A A Jurisdiction of

Incorporation or OrganizationReddit Australia Pty LtdA A A A AustraliaReddit Rede de Comunidades do Brasil Ltda.A A A A BrazilReddit Canada

LimitedA A A A CanadaDubsmash Inc.A A A A DelawareMemorable AI LLCA A A A DelawareReddit Sub Holding Company, Inc.A A A A DelawareSpell,

LLCA A A A DelawareSpiketrap Inc.A A A A DelawareReddit France SASA A A A FranceReddit Germany GmbHA A A A GermanyReddit Community Network India Private

LimitedA A A A IndiaReddit Technologies India Private LimitedA A A A IndiaReddit Ireland LimitedA A A A IrelandReddit Community Network Mexico, S. DE R.L. DE

C.V.A A A A MexicoReddit Netherlands B.V.A A A A NetherlandsReddit Portugal, Unipessoal LDAA A A A PortugalReddit SG Pte. Ltd.A A A A SingaporeReddit Iberia

S.L.A A A A SpainReddit UK LimitedA A A A United Kingdom* Includes subsidiaries that do not fall under the definition of 4€cesignificant subsidiarya€ as defined under Rule
1-02(w) of Regulation S-X.DocumentExhibit 23.1KPMG LLPSuite 140055 Second StreetSan Francisco, CA 94105Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting
FirmWe consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statements (Nos. 333-278119 and 333-279525) on Form S-8 of our report dated February 12, 2025, with
respect to the consolidated financial statements of Reddit, Inc../s/ KPMG LLPSan Francisco, California February 12, 2025KPMG LLP, a Delaware limited liability partnership
and a member firm of the KPMG global organization of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Limited, a private English company limited by
guarantee.DocumentExhibit 31.1CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 20021, Steven Huffman, certify that:1.I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Reddit,
Inc.;2.Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;3.Based on my knowledge, the financial
statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;4.The registranta€™s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:(a)Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or
caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;(b)[Reserved];(c)Evaluated the
effectiveness of the registranta€™s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and(d)Disclosed in this report any change in the registranta€™s internal control over
financial reporting that occurred during the registranta€™s most recent fiscal quarter (the registranta€™s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registranta€™ s internal control over financial reporting; and5.The registranta€™ s other certifying officer
and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registranta€™s auditors and the audit committee of the
registranta€™s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):(a)All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of
internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registranta€™ s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and(b)Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registranta€™s internal control over
financial reporting.Date: February 12, 2025/s/ Steven HuffmanA A A A Steven HuffmanChief Executive Officer(Principal Executive Officer)DocumentExhibit
31.2CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULES 13a-14(a) AND 15d-14(a) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF
THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 20021, Andrew Vollero, certify that:1.I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Reddit, Inc.;2.Based on my knowledge, this report
does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;3.Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial
information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the
periods presented in this report;4.The registranta€™s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:(a)Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls
and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;(b)[Reserved];(c)Evaluated the effectiveness of the registranta€™s
disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period
covered by this report based on such evaluation; and(d)Disclosed in this report any change in the registranta€™ s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during
the registranta€™s most recent fiscal quarter (the registranta€™s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registranta€™ s internal control over financial reporting; and5.The registranta€™s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent
evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registranta€™s auditors and the audit committee of the registranta€™s board of directors (or persons performing
the equivalent functions):(a)All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably
likely to adversely affect the registranta€™s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and(b)Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves
management or other employees who have a significant role in the registranta€™ s internal control over financial reporting.Date: February 12, 2025/s/ Andrew

VolleroA A A A Andrew VolleroChief Financial Officer(Principal Financial Officer)DocumentExhibit 32.1CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS
ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002In connection with the Annual Report of Reddit, Inc. (the &€ceCompanya€) on Form 10-K
for the period ended December 31, 2024 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the 4€Reporta€), each of the undersigned hereby
certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. A§ 1350, as adopted pursuant to A§ 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as amended, that:1.The Report fully complies with the
requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and2.The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the

Executive Officer)Date: February 12, 2025/s/ Andrew VolleroA A A A A A A A Andrew VolleroChief Financial Officer(Principal Financial Officer)DocumentExhibit 97REDDIT,
INC. POLICY FOR RECOVERY OF ERRONEOUSLY AWARDED COMPENSATIONReddit, Inc. (the &€ceCompanya€) has adopted this Policy for Recovery of Erroneously
Awarded Compensation (the a€cePolicya€), effective as of March 20, 2024 (the d€meEffective Datea€). Capitalized terms used in this Policy but not otherwise defined herein
are defined in Section 11. 1.Persons Subject to PolicyThis Policy shall apply to current and former Officers of the Company. Each Officer shall be required to sign an



acknowledgment pursuant to which such Officer will agree to be bound by the terms of, and comply with, this Policy; however, any Officera€™s failure to sign any such
acknowledgment shall not negate the application of this Policy to the Officer.2.A A A A Compensation Subject to PolicyThis Policy shall apply to Incentive-Based Compensation
received on or after the Effective Date. For purposes of this Policy, the date on which Incentive-Based Compensation is a€cereceiveda€ shall be determined under the
Applicable Rules, which generally provide that Incentive-Based Compensation is a€cereceiveda€ in the Companya€™s fiscal period during which the relevant Financial
Reporting Measure is attained or satisfied, without regard to whether the grant, vesting, or payment of the Incentive-Based Compensation occurs after the end of that
period.3.A A A A Recovery of CompensationIn the event that the Company is required to prepare a Restatement, the Company shall recover, reasonably promptly, the portion
of any Incentive-Based Compensation that is Erroneously Awarded Compensation, unless the Committee has determined that recovery would be Impracticable. Recovery shall
be required in accordance with the preceding sentence regardless of whether the applicable Officer engaged in misconduct or otherwise caused or contributed to the
requirement for the Restatement and regardless of whether or when restated financial statements are filed by the Company. For clarity, the recovery of Erroneously Awarded
Compensation under this Policy will not give rise to any persona€™s right to voluntarily terminate employment for &€cegood reason,a€ or due to a a€ceconstructive
terminationa€ (or any similar term of like effect) under any plan, program, or policy of, or agreement with, the Company or any of its affiliates.4.A A A A Manner of Recovery;
Limitation on Duplicative RecoveryThe Committee shall, in its sole discretion, determine the manner of recovery of any Erroneously Awarded Compensation, which may
include, without limitation, reduction or cancellation by the Company or an affiliate of the Company of Incentive-Based Compensation or Erroneously Awarded Compensation,
reimbursement or repayment by any person subject to this Policy of the Erroneously Awarded Compensation, and, to the extent permitted by law, an offset 1of the
Erroneously Awarded Compensation against other compensation payable by the Company or an affiliate of the Company to such person. Notwithstanding the foregoing, unless
otherwise prohibited by the Applicable Rules, to the extent this Policy provides for recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation already recovered by the Company
pursuant to Section 304 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 or Other Recovery Arrangements, the amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation already recovered by the
Company from the recipient of such Erroneously Awarded Compensation may be credited to the amount of Erroneously Awarded Compensation required to be recovered
pursuant to this Policy from such person.5.A A A A Administration This Policy shall be administered, interpreted, and construed by the Committee, which is authorized to
make all determinations necessary, appropriate or advisable for such purpose. The Board of Directors of the Company (the d€ceBoarda€) may re-vest in itself the authority to
administer, interpret, and construe this Policy in accordance with applicable law, and in such event references herein to the &€ceCommitteea€ shall be deemed to be
references to the Board. Subject to any permitted review by the applicable national securities exchange or association pursuant to the Applicable Rules, all determinations and
decisions made by the Committee pursuant to the provisions of this Policy shall be final, conclusive, and binding on all persons, including the Company and its affiliates,
equityholders, and employees. The Committee may delegate administrative duties with respect to this Policy to one or more directors or employees of the Company, as
permitted under applicable law, including any Applicable Rules. 6.A A A A InterpretationThis Policy will be interpreted and applied in a manner that is consistent with the
requirements of the Applicable Rules, and to the extent this Policy is inconsistent with such Applicable Rules, it shall be deemed amended to the minimum extent necessary to
ensure compliance therewith. 7.A A A A No Indemnification; No LiabilityThe Company shall not indemnify or insure any person against the loss of any Erroneously Awarded
Compensation pursuant to this Policy, nor shall the Company directly or indirectly pay or reimburse any person for any premiums for third-party insurance policies that such
person may elect to purchase to fund such persond€™s potential obligations under this Policy. None of the Company, an affiliate of the Company or any member of the
Committee or the Board shall have any liability to any person as a result of actions taken under this Policy.8.A A A A Application; EnforceabilityExcept as otherwise
determined by the Committee or the Board, the adoption of this Policy does not limit, and is intended to apply in addition to, any other clawback, recoupment, forfeiture, or
similar policies or provisions of the Company or its affiliates, including any such 2policies or provisions of such effect contained in any employment agreement, bonus plan,
incentive plan, equity-based plan, or award agreement thereunder or similar plan, program, or agreement of the Company or an affiliate of the Company or required under
applicable law (the &€ceOther Recovery Arrangementsa€). The remedy specified in this Policy shall not be exclusive and shall be in addition to every other right or remedy at
law or in equity that may be available to the Company or an affiliate of the Company.9.A A A A SeverabilityThe provisions in this Policy are intended to be applied to the fullest
extent of the law; provided, however, to the extent that any provision of this Policy is found to be unenforceable or invalid under any applicable law, such provision will be
applied to the maximum extent permitted, and shall automatically be deemed amended in a manner consistent with its objectives to the extent necessary to conform to any
limitations required under applicable law. 10.A A A A Amendment and TerminationThe Board or the Committee may amend, modify, or terminate this Policy in whole or in
part at any time and from time to time in its sole discretion. This Policy will terminate automatically when the Company does not have a class of securities listed on a national
securities exchange or association.11.A A A A DefinitionsA A A A 4€ceApplicable Rulesa€ means Section 10D of the Exchange Act, Rule 10D-1 promulgated thereunder, the
listing rules of the national securities exchange or association on which the Companya€™ s securities are listed, and any applicable rules, standards, or other guidance
adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission or any national securities exchange or association on which the Companya€™s securities are listed.a€ceCommitteea€
means the Compensation and Talent Committee of the Board or, if such committee is not comprised solely of independent directors (as determined under the Applicable
Rules), a majority of the independent directors serving on the Board.d€ceErroneously Awarded Compensationd€ means the amount of Incentive-Based Compensation received
by a current or former Officer that exceeds the amount of Incentive-Based Compensation that would have been received by such current or former Officer based on a restated
Financial Reporting Measure, as determined on a pre-tax basis in accordance with the Applicable Rules. a€ceExchange Acta€ means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended.a€ceFinancial Reporting Measurea€ means any measure determined and presented in accordance with the accounting principles used in preparing the
Companya€™s financial statements, 3and any measures derived wholly or in part from such measures, including GAAP, IFRS, and non-GAAP/IFRS financial measures, as well
as stock or share price and total equityholder return. 4€eGAAP4€ means United States generally accepted accounting principles.a€ceIFRS4€ means international financial
reporting standards as adopted by the International Accounting Standards Board.d€celmpracticablea€ means (a) the direct costs paid to third parties to assist in enforcing
recovery would exceed the Erroneously Awarded Compensation; provided that the Company (i) has made reasonable attempts to recover the Erroneously Awarded
Compensation, (ii) documented such attempt(s), and (iii) provided such documentation to the relevant listing exchange or association, (b) to the extent permitted by the
Applicable Rules, the recovery would violate the Companyd€™s home country laws pursuant to an opinion of home country counsel; provided that the Company has (i)
obtained an opinion of home country counsel, acceptable to the relevant listing exchange or association, that recovery would result in such violation, and (ii) provided such
opinion to the relevant listing exchange or association, or (c) recovery would likely cause an otherwise tax-qualified retirement plan, under which benefits are broadly
available to employees of the Company, to fail to meet the requirements of 26 U.S.C. A§ 401(a)(13) or 26 U.S.C. A§ 411(a) and the regulations promulgated
thereunder.a€celncentive-Based Compensationd€ means, with respect to a Restatement, any compensation that is granted, earned, or vested based wholly or in part upon the
attainment of one or more Financial Reporting Measures and received by a person: (a) after beginning service as an Officer; (b) who served as an Officer at any time during
the performance period for that compensation; (c) while the issuer has a class of its securities listed on a national securities exchange or association; and (d) during the
applicable Three-Year Period. 4€ceOfficera€ means each person who serves as an executive officer of the Company, as defined in RuleA 10D-1(d) under the Exchange
Act.a€ceRestatementa€ means an accounting restatement to correct the Companya€™ s material noncompliance with any financial reporting requirement under securities
laws, including restatements that correct an error in previously issued financial statements (a) that is material to the previously issued financial statements or (b) that would
result in a material misstatement if the error were corrected in the current period or left uncorrected in the current period.a€ceThree-Year Perioda€ means, with respect to a
Restatement, the three completed fiscal years immediately preceding the date that the Board, a committee of the Board, or the officer or officers of the Company authorized
to take such action if Board action is not required, concludes, or reasonably should have concluded, that the Company is required to prepare such Restatement, or, if earlier,
the date on which a court, regulator, or other legally authorized body directs the Company to prepare such Restatement. The a€ceThree-Year Perioda€ also includes any
transition period (that results from a change in the Companya€™s fiscal year) within or immediately following 4the three completed fiscal years identified in the preceding
sentence. However, a transition period between the last day of the Companya€ ™s previous fiscal year end and the first day of its new fiscal year that comprises a period of
nine to 12 months shall be deemed a completed fiscal year.SACKNOWLEDGMENT AND CONSENT TOREDDIT, INC. POLICY FOR RECOVERY OF ERRONEOUSLY AWARDED
COMPENSATIONThe undersigned has received a copy of the Policy for Recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation (the a€cePolicya€) adopted by Reddit, Inc. (the
a€ceCompanya€).For good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is acknowledged, the undersigned agrees to the terms of the Policy and agrees that compensation
received by the undersigned may be subject to reduction, cancellation, forfeiture, and/or recoupment to the extent necessary to comply with the Policy, notwithstanding any
other agreement to the contrary. The undersigned further acknowledges and agrees that the undersigned is not entitled to indemnification in connection with any
enforcement of the Policy and expressly waives any rights to such indemnification under the Companya€™ s organizational documents or

otherwise. Date Signature Name Titleb




